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1    COMPENSATION FUND’S GENERAL INFORMATION 

REGISTERED NAME:      COMPENSATION FUND

PHYSICAL ADDRESS:      Compensation House
  Corner Hamilton and Soutpansberg Streets

  Pretoria 

POSTAL ADDRESS:   Private Bag X 955
                                    Pretoria
                                    0001

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S:   +27 860 105 350

FAX NUMBER:   +27 12 326 1570 / 012 357 1772

EMAIL ADDRESS:    CF-info@labour.gov.za

WEBSITE ADDRESS:  www.labour.gov.za

EXTERNAL AUDITORS INFORMATION:    AUDITOR GENERAL OF SOUTH AFRICA (AGSA)



6 Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

ComComCompenpenpensatsatsationionion FuFuFundndnd AnnAnnAnnualualual ReReReporporport (t (t (20120120155 -5 - 20202016)16)16)

2    LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS 

AGSA  Auditor General of South Africa
AMA  American Medical Association
APP  Annual Performance Plan
ARLAC  African Regional Labour Administration Centre
BPM&R Business Process Management and Reengineering
CAA  Constant Attendance Allowance
CEO  Chief E ecutive O cer
CF  Compensation Fund
CFO  Chief Financial O cer
COIDA  Compensation of Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act
CPI  Consumer Price Index
DG  Director-General
DoL  Department of Labour
ER  Employee Relations
EXCO  Executive Committee
GRAP  Generally Recognised Accounting Principles
HRM  Human Resource Management
ISSA  Internal Social Security Association
KZN  Kwa-Zulu Natal
KRA  Key Result Area
MANCO Management Committee
MTEF  Medium Term Expenditure Framework
NEDLAC National Economic Development and Labour Council
NGO  Non-Governmental Organisations
OHS  Occupational Health and Safety
PA  Pension Administrators
PD  Permanent Disabled
PFMA  Public Finance Management Act
PIC  Public Investment Corporation
PTSD  Post-Traumatic Stress disorder
PSRMF Public Sector Risk Management Framework
PWDs  Persons with Disabilities 
POE  Portfolio of Evidence
RMA  Rand Mutual Assurance
RMC  Risk Management Committee
ROE  Return of Earnings
SAP  Systems Application and Products in Data Processing
SCM  Supply Chain Management
SCOPA Standing Committee on Public Accounts
SCSF  Strengthening Civil Society Fund
SMS  Senior Management System
SP  Strategic Plan
TR     Treasury Regulations
TTD  Temporary Total Disabled
UIF  Unemployment Insurance Fund
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3    FOREWORD BY THE COMMISSIONER 

                                    
In June 2015 the Compensation Fund implemented the 
Action Plan. The Action plan was developed after exten-
sive consultation and engagements with both internal 
and external stakeholders.

The Action Plan is not replacing the current Strategic Plan 
and Annual Performance Plan of the Fund but will enhance  
the pursuit of the objectives as outlined in these documents.

The Plan is driven by four pillars, namely:

 • Improving the Financial Administration of the Fund;
 • Improving customer service and service delivery environment;
 • Improving the overall internal administrative processes of the Fund and;
 • Improving the human resource management environment. 

The plan is furthermore broken down into short, medium and long term goals depending 
on resource requirements of an initiative. In this regard the Fund has started to see prog-
ress on the Action Plan with 74% of the short term targets set for being met.  

The 2015/2016 Annual Report which in many ways re ect our service delivery and develop-
mental achievements and challenges, is presented in recognition of our legislative obliga-
tion to be an accountable and transparent organisation. 

This year’s Annual Report demonstrates that the Compensation Fund is improving payment 
of bene ts, which is assisting in creating a social security net for vulnerable workers. For 
an example, during the year under review, the Fund has paid R2 billion on medical claims, 
R132 million on Compensation bene ts and R960 million on monthly pensions.

We have achieved the above results in a persistently challenging environment thanks to our 
sta , service providers, stakeholders and enormous support from both Ministry and the 
Director General’s o ce with the desired added value through their total dedication and 
observance of the highest quality standards.  
 

_________________      
Mr. V. Mafata     
ACTING COMPENSATION FUND COMMISSIONER
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   DIRECTOR-GENERAL OVERVIEW 

entity 

Notwithstanding the challenging economic con-
ditions, Compensation Fund raised R7.6 billion 
during the 2015/16 nancial year. This represents 
a 10% decline in total revenue compared to 
2014/15 nancial year revenue collection gures. 

During the year under review the Fund record-
ed received investment return of R360 million 
showing a decline of 95% as compared to the 
previous year. 

The Fund has set aside R12 billion; of which R4 
billion will be used in the short to medium term to provide for the claims which might have 
happened on or before 31 March 2016, but were not reported to the Fund. 

The Fund has a non-distributable (revaluation) reserves of R102 million and a distributable 
reserve of 21.7 billion which had not been distributed, representing the overall total reserves as 
at 31 March 2016 of R21.9 billion.

In preparing the Annual Financial Statements, the Fund used Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practices (GRAP) basis of accounting as well as the going concern concept, hence the Fund is 
liquid and, therefore, in a sound nancial state.

Medical payments made for the nancial year peaked to an average of R200 million by mid-
year before levelling o  to just under R100 million per month. Delays in resolving claims often 
result in the Fund paying a substantial amount in judicial imposition of interest. The Fund has 
implemented measures to ensure that claims are adjudicated within 60 days of receipt to avoid 
unnecessary legal claims. This includes appointment of additional Claims O cers, seasonal 
Nurses and Doctors who are responsible for adjudicating claims.

During September 2014 the Minister approved the budget for the 2015/16 Financial Year. The 
Fund did not adjust this budget during the budget review process in September 2015. There 
was some overspending on the programmes dealing with the core business of the Fund. The 
reason for this was to improve the claims processing procedure and also because of increased 
spending on the Compensation of Employees as a result of decentralisation of CF functions to 
the Provinces. 

The Fund’s budget is broken down into three programmes; Administration, Operations and 
Provincial Operations. 

4
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Spending trends of the three programmes were as follows:

• Programme 1: Administration; 103% of the approved budget was spent
 • Programme 2: Operations Management; 212% of the approved budget was  
  spent
 • Programme 3: Provincial Operations; 76% of the approved budget was spent

Illustration of the spending trends per programme and directorate.

2015/16 EXPENDITURE REPORT

COMPENSATION FUND PROGRAMMES

BUDGET PER PROGRAMME
2015-16 APPROVED 

BUDGET PER
PROGRAMME

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURE AS AT 

31 MARCH
VARIANCES % SPENT

Programme 1: Administration 796 658 822 937 -26 279 103%

Programme 2: Operations 
Management 4 006 042 8 509 117 -4 503 075 212%

Programme 3: Provincial Operations 
- COIDA 41 878 31 979 9 899 76%

TOTAL 4 844 578 9 364 033 -4 519 455 193%

2015/16 Budget vs Expenditure

5 000 000

4 000 000

3 000 000

2 000 000

1 000 000

-

2015-16 Approved Budget Per Programme

% Spent

Programme 1:
Administration

Programme 2:
Operations Management

Programme 3:

796 658

4 006 042

41 878103% 212% 76%
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2015/16 EXPENDITURE REPORT

COMPENSATION FUND PROGRAMMES

BUDGET PER PROGRAMME
2015-16 APPROVED 

BUDGET PER
PROGRAMME

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURE AS AT 

31 MARCH
VARIANCES % SPENT

Programme 1: Administration 796 658 822 937 -26 279 103%

Compensation Commissioner 1 196 693 503 58%

Internal Audit 7 016 2 964 4 052 42%

Risk Management 39 312 5 284 34 028 13%

Chief Financial O cer 90 883 21 266 69 617 23%

Revenue/Income 6 026 1 255 4 771 21%

Financial Reporting 22 859 51 397 -28 538 225%

Financial Control 5 493 1 794 3 699 33%

Support Service (SCM) 114 171 109 919 4 252 96%

Chief Director: Corporate Services 272 230 42 85%

Human Resources Management 351 284 494 674 -143 390 141%

Communications & Stake holders 55 236 57 383 -2 147 104%

Organisational E ectiveness 7 815 1 412 6 403 18%

Information Technology 95 095 74 666 20 429 79%

Programme 2: Operations 
Management 4 006 042 8 509 117 -4 503 075 212%

Compensation Claims 985 336 6 072 413 -5 087 077 616%

Medical Services 3 003 328 2 032 540 970 788 68%

Chief Operating O cer 1 357 439 918 32%

Legal Services 12 808 398 042 -385 234 3108%

Call Centre 1 870 1 213 657 65%

Board O ce 1 343 4 470 -3 127 333%

Programme 3: Provincial Opera-
tions - COIDA 41 878 31 979 9 899 76%

Free State 4 963 2 866 2 097 58%

Western Cape 7 350 3 212 4 138 44%

Noerthern Cape 2 795 1 934 861 69%

Mpumalanga 2 579 3 320 -741 129%

Limpopo 4 333 2 493 1 840 58%

Eastern Cape 5 962 5 475 487 92%

Kwazulu Natal 7 216 6 838 378 95%

North West 3 120 2 624 496 84%

Gauteng 3 560 3 217 343 90%

TOTAL BUDGET 4 844 578 9 364 033 -4 519 455 193%
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The Fund’s Corporate Support division is responsible for ensuring that the institutional ca-
pacity of the Fund is strengthened. There have been some changes in the top management 
of the Fund as part of e orts to turnaround the fortunes of the Compensation Fund. Part 
of the changes has been the appointment of a new Compensation Commissioner and the 
replacement of some of the key personnel in Senior Management. 

The Fund has just concluded a Skills Audit Project. The Skills Audit projects concluded that 
the Fund lacks the required skills to e ectively implement the mandate in terms of the 
COIDA legislation. The recommendations of the Skills Audit will be implemented during the 
2016/17 nancial year. The recommendations will impact on the current sta  and in the 
recruitment of new personnel. The Fund is also in the process of reviewing its business and 
functional model to ensure that adequate attention is given to the three business segments, 
namely; Pensions, Compensation and Medical Insurance. This process will be nalised during 
the rst quarter of 2016/2017 nancial year.

During the 2016/17 the Fund will pilot its Active Labour Market Instruments with regards to 
training of unemployed bene ciaries in the various scarce skills required by the Fund. 
 
Requests for roll over of funds 

The Fund accumulates its surplus and de cits and as a result there will be no requests for 
roll over of Funds. 

Supply Chain Management 

The Fund’s supply Chain Management practices during the Financial Year was done in line 
with the prescribed policies and standards published by National Treasury. Despite this, 
there are challenges that have been noted relating to compliance to these practices. These 
challenges have resulted in irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure being recorded 
during the 2015/16 nancial Year.

 

There were no unsolicited bids accepted by the Fund during the 2015/16 nancial year.
  

The Fund has put in place the required SCM processes and systems during the nancial 
year and strives to continuously improve in its SCM practices. These systems and processes 
will assist in addressing the non-compliance to policies.

The Fund has adopted an Action Plan which is aimed at addressing the root causes of the 
nancial and administrative ine ciencies reported by the Auditor General in the di erent 

audit reports. 
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We will continue to implement the Action Plan and the Strategic Plan to ensure that the 
Fund delivers on its mandate. 

Events after the reporting date

The Fund wants to draw an attention that it lost an arbitration case against the debt collec-
tor. This resulted in material and signi cant adjustments after the reporting date.

The following: 

• In lieu of lost income:    R349 159 649.00
 • Vat:          R48 882 357.16
 • Interest on lost income:        R5 533 686.95 
 • Estimated legal fees:   R2 680 000.00

  Total:      R406 255 693.11

The Fund’s Actuaries have performed the actuarial valuation on the Fund as a going con-
cern. The Fund has set aside R12 billion for claims and R20 billion for pension and despite 
that the fund has nancial backed reserves amounting to R22 billion. There are su cient 
reserves to cover both long and short term liabilities of the Fund.

I would like to extend the hand of appreciation to the Minister of Labour, the Deputy Minis-
ter, the Portfolio Committee on Labour, the Board of the Compensation Fund, Audit Com-
mittee and all other stakeholders of the Fund for their unwavering support during the past 

nancial year. 

_________________   
Mr. T.M. Lamati   
DIRECTOR-GENERAL
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5    STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF THE
   ACCURACY OF THE ANNUAL REPORT 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I con rm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the Annual Report is consistent with the Annual 
Financial Statements audited by the Auditor General. 

The 2015/16 Annual Report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions. 

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the Annual Report 
as issued by National Treasury. 

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the General 
Acceptable Accounting Standards (GRAP) applicable to the Compensation Fund. 

The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements 
and for the judgements made in this information. 

The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of 
internal control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity 
and reliability of the Performance Information, the Human Resources information and the 
Annual nancial Statements. 

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual Financial 
Statements. 

In our opinion, the Annual Report fairly re ects the operations, the performance informa-
tion, the human resources information and the nancial a airs of the entity for the nan-
cial year ended 31 March 2016. 

Yours faithfully, 

_________________      
Mr. V. Mafata     
ACTING COMPENSATION FUND COMMISSIONER

_________________   
Mr. T.M. Lamati   
DIRECTOR-GENERAL



14 Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

ComComCompenpenpensatsatsationionion FuFuFundndnd AnnAnnAnnualualual ReReReporporport (t (t (20120120155 -5 - 20202016)16)16)

7

6 STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

6.1. Vision

To be a world class provider of sustainable compensation for occupational injuries and dis-
eases, rehabilitation and reintegration services. 

6.2. Mission

• To provide e cient, quality, client-centric and accessible COID services.
• To sustain nancial viability.
• To ensure an organisation which takes care of the needs of its sta  for e ective 
 service delivery

6.3. Values

We shall at all times adhere to or live the Batho Pele Principles 

   LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

7.1. Constitutional Mandate

The mandate of the Compensation Fund is derived from Section 27 (1) (c) of the Constitu-
tion of the Republic of South Africa. In terms of this Act, speci cally the mentioned Section, 
all South Africans have a right to social security. The Compensation Fund is mandated to 
provide social security to all injured and diseased employees

7.2. Legislative Mandate

The Compensation Fund is a Schedule 3A Public Entity (These entities are normally exten-
sions of a public entity with the mandate to ful l a speci c economic or social responsibility 
of government. They rely on government funding and public money, either by means of a 
transfer from the Revenue Fund or through statutory money. As such, these entities have 
the least autonomy.) of the Department of Labour. The Fund administers the Compensation 
Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act No 130/1993 as amended by the COIDA 61/1997. 
The main objective of the Act is to provide compensation for disablement caused by occu-
pational injuries or diseases sustained or contracted by employees, or for death resulting 
from injuries or diseases, and provide for matters connected therewith.

The Fund generates its revenue from levies paid by employers and this consists of annual 
assessments paid by registered employers on a basis of a percentage or xed rate of the 
annual earnings of their employees. The COID Act, however, makes provision for a minimum 
assessment to ensure the assessment is not less than the administration costs incurred.
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• Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996, as amended;
 • Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993; 
 • National Economic Development and Labour Council Act (NEDLAC), 1994;
 • Labour Relations Act, 1995, as amended;
 • Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997, as amended
 • Employment Equity Act, 1998, as amended;
 • Skills Development Act 1998, as amended; 
 • Unemployment Insurance Act, 2001, as amended; 
 • Unemployment Insurance Contributions Act, 2002;
 • Employment Services Act, 2014;
 • Public Finance Management Act, 1999, as amended;
 • Public Service Act, 1994, as amended;
 • Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003;
 • Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000;
 • Prevention and Combating of Corrupt Activities Act, 2004;
 • Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000;
 • Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000; and
 • Promotion of Equality and Elimination of Unfair Discrimination Act, 2000.
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8 ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE
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PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
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10

9    AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) 
and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report ndings 
on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected 
programmes presented in the annual performance report, compliance with legislation and 
internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable ndings as described 
under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. 
Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.
 
I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the re-
ported performance information for the following selected programmes presented in the 
annual performance report of the entity for the year ended 31 March 2016:

•  Programme 2: Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act (1993) 
 Operations on pages 36 to 40

• Programme 3: Provincial Operations Compensation for Occupational Injuries and  
 Diseases Act (1993) on pages 40 to 46

I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness 
and reliability.

I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether 
it was presented in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and 
whether the reported performance was consistent with the planned programmes. I further 
performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well de ned, veri able, 
speci c, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s 
Framework for Managing Programme Performance Information (FMPPI).

I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it 
was valid, accurate and complete.

There are material ndings in respect of the selected programmes.

Refer to part E (FINANCIAL INFORMATION), pg. 86, for the AGSA Audit Report

   OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE

10.1. Service Delivery Environment 

The Fund has registered a total of 129 123 claims and adjudicated 135,531 claims in the 
2015/16 nancial year. The adjudication process is where compensation fund is determining 
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liability in respect of the claims submitted by the clients. The process involves accepting lia-
bility, not accepting, repudiating and or querying of submitted claims and where appropriate 
requesting provision of additional information to assist in deciding upon liability of a claim.

Table 1: Claims registered, accepted, repudiated for 01 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 compared 
to previous years

The analysis of the table above indicates that the number of claims registered in the 
2015/16 nancial year is less than 2014/15 nancial year. The decline in registered accident 
might be attributed to the internal controls of the new online system that is able to detect 

ctitious claims. It can also be attributed to employers not reporting accidents. The number 
of adjudicated claims is more than the claims registered during the reporting period, it is 
largely attributed to the number of claims which were not nalised in the 2014/15 nancial 
year that were processed in the 2015/16 nancial year. 

During the current nancial year, a total amount of R 960 336 000 was approved for payment.
The table below indicates bene ts paid in the nancial year under review.

Table 2: Pensions

COMPENSATION FUND

ADJUDICATED

PERIOD CLAIMS
REGISTERED

CLAIMS 
ACCEPTED

CLAIMS NOT 
ACCEPTED

CLAIMS 
REPUDIATED

UNDECIDED,
OUTSTANDING 
INFORMATION

01 April 2013 
to 31 March 2014 310,710 260,253 88 50,369

01 April 2014 
to 31 March 2015 225,511 309,065 155 N/A

01 April 2015
to 31 March 2016 129,123 135,531 2,805 1 2,807

PENSIONS

YEAR AMOUNT CAPITALISED MONTHLY PENSION PAYMENTS (R ‘000)

2013/14 420,428 789,696

2014/15 234,898 897,939

2015/16 70,545 960,336
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Table 3: Temporary Total Disabilities

Table 4:  Permanent Disabilities

The Compensation Fund has reviewed the existing bene ts and increased the bene ts to be 
paid to injured employees and their dependants in a form of loss of earnings, lump sums 
and monthly pensions. 

 • Increase of the salary ceiling with 6% from R355 752 to R377 097 per annum; 
 • All pensions payable from the Compensation Fund to be increased by 5%;
 • The maximum monthly earnings level on which compensation for Temporary  
  Total Disablement is based, increased with 6% from R29 646 per month to  
  R31 425 per month;
 • The maximum monthly earnings level on which compensation for Permanent  
  Disablement from 31% to 100% is based,  should be increased with 6% from  
  R29 646 per month to R31 425 per month;
 • The maximum earnings for the calculation of compensation for Permanent  
  Disablement of 30% and less should be increased with 6% from R16 603 per  
  month to R17 599 per month; 
 • The minimum monthly earnings level on which compensation for Temporary  
  Total Disablement and fatal injuries is based should be increased with 6%   
  from R4 151 per month to R4 400 per month;
 • The minimum monthly earnings level on which compensation for Permanent  
  Disablement for 30% and less is based should be increased with 6% from 
  R4 151 per month to R4 400 per month;

TEMPORARY TOTAL DISABILITIES

YEAR AMOUNT PAID DURING THE YEAR (R ‘000)

2013/14 69,755

2014/15 27,257

2015/16 25,468

PERMANENT DISABILITIES

YEAR AMOUNT PAID DURING THE YEAR (R ‘000)

2013/14 87,777

2014/15 64,608

2015/16 106,779
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 • The maximum bene t payable in respect of partial dependency should be  
increased by 6% from R128 110 to R135 797;

 • The minimum level of the Constant Attendance Allowance (CAA) bene t   
should be increased by 6% from R1 659 per month to R1 759 per month; 

 • The maximum Funeral bene t should be increased by 5% from R16 398 
  to R17 218;

• The minimum monthly value in respect of Free Food should be increased with  
  5% from R226 to R237 and the minimum monthly value in respect of free   
  quarters should be increased with 5% from R101 to R106.

Decentralisation of COID Services

The claims processing has been decentralised to all provinces aiming to be nearer to our 
clients for easy access and to speed up processing turn-around time, all provinces have 
appointed COID managers.

Table 5: Provincial Production Statistical Breakdown Report

The table above provides a comparison of claims registered and adjudicated in the provinc-
es from 2013/14 until 2015/16. There are processed claims which re ect two provinces and 
are where o cials are transferred to a province and allocated province of the user is not 
updated in the system. 

PROVINCIAL PRODUCTION STATISTICAL BREAKDOWN REPORT

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

PROVINCE REGISTERED REGISTERED REGISTERED ADJUDICATED

GAUTENG 1,300 4,569 80,026 86,482

FREE STATE 693 2,389 4,698 6,044

NORTHERN CAPE 12,005 76,312 2,885 3,491

WESTERN CAPE 3,530 11,437 14,705 16,459

EASTERN CAPE 551 2,240 3,781 3,566

KWAZULU-NATAL 1,765 4,446 10,477 7,589

MPUMALANGA 275 1,202 3,816 3,705

NORTH WEST 662 2,797 2,844 3,483

LIMPOPO 4,129 23,897 5,891 7,583

TOTAL 310,710 225,511 129,123 138,402
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In the 2016/17 nancial year, the Fund will embark on role matrix audit to align o cial’s 
roles, provinces, processing centres and delegation as per COIDA.

Medical Services

The strategic objective of the Medical Services Directorate is to provide medical advice/ 
opinion on occupational diseases and undertake the monitoring of compliance with COIDA. 
The directorate consists of Medical O cers and Nurses.

• Advising on all medical expenses emanating from occupational injuries and  
  diseases;
 • Processing and nalisation of all occupational diseases claims;
 • Provision of medical advice on continued medical aid, chronic medication and  
  assistive devices;
 • Determination of COID medical tari s in consultation with medical service  
  provider associations; and
 • Provision of medical advice on the Fund’s liability and extent thereof for 
  occupational injuries and diseases

Medical payments

During the 2015/16 nancial year 899,018 medical invoices were paid compared to the 
609,589 paid in the 2014/15 nancial year. The value of approved medical invoices for 
2015/16 nancial year is R2, 620, 159 compared to R1, 461,089 paid in the previous year.

Table 6: Medical Claims compared to last three nancial years

 
The tari  fees for medical expenses are revised annually through consultative process with 
the healthcare service providers; in the 2015/16 nancial year the tari  increase is 6.6% 
which is more than the 2014/15 nancial year increase. 

Contribution to the Social Security 
 
The Compensation Fund continues to be a member of the Inter Departmental Task Team 
on comprehensive social transformations of our stakeholders in general and employees 
in particular. The Fund participated in the African Regional Labour Administration Centre 

PENSIONS

YEAR NUMBER OF INVOICES PAID RAND VALUE (R ‘000)

2013/14 1,817,383 2,130,197

2014/15 609,589 1,461,089

2015/16 899,018 2,620,159
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PROVINCE ORGANISATION’S 
NAME MAIN OBJECTIVE PROGRESS 

AND ACHIEVEMENTS

EASTERN CAPE 1. Aliwal North To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training mainly 
shop stewards and farm 
workers in the rural areas 
Still pending an amended 
report due to incomplete 
information.

Still pending: an amended 
report due to incomplete 
information.

2. Matatiele To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training mainly 
shop stewards and farm 
workers in the rural areas.

• Conducted 44 workshops 
• Only 10 % farm owners are 
compliant with OHS Act
• Farm owners were however 

exible and compliant except 
for one.
• The project attracted a total 
of 380 participants.

(ARLAC) on the regional workshop on Employment Injury Compensation Schemes. The CF 
also participated on the International Social Security Association (ISSA) presenting the CF 
assessment model.

Prevention of accident through Strengthening Civil Society Fund

In advocating the Injury On Duty and Occupational Health Safety Policy, the Compensa-
tion Fund has funded 18 non-pro t organisations from eight provinces (Eastern Cape, Free 
State, KwaZulu-Natal, Mpumalanga, Limpopo, North West, Northern Cape, Western Cape) 
to train disadvantaged employees, union shop steward from di erent sectors, and train 
communities on the Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act as well as on 
Occupational Health and Safety Act. 

 • The Fund has developed a Strengthen Civil Society Fund Committee (SCSFC)  
  which is working with the Department of Labour (DoL) Head O ce committee  
  to assess the proposals from these organisations. 
 • The committee also presents recommended organisation to the Board for 
  funding approval.
 • The committee in Compensation Fund visits organisations training sessions to  
  monitor deliverables as per the contract/agreement signed with DoL.

As part of the monitoring and evaluation process, the Compensation Fund developed COIDA 
Guidelines which are used as a basis for developing training material by the projects.
Spread sheets for claims enquiries were also developed in order for all the projects to be 
monitored and evaluate the impact of the training workshops.

Table 7: Progress on the Implementation of the Strengthening Civil Society Fund 
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FREE STATE 3. Mangaung To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training mainly 
shop stewards and farm 
workers in the rural areas for 
12 months.

• The project targeted 900 
employees in 8 farming and 
rural areas.
• 25 workshops were conducted.
• A total of 906 employees 
participated at the work-
shops.

4. Maokeng To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training mainly 
shop stewards and farm 
workers in the rural areas 
for 12 months. To also elect 
farmworkers safety represen-
tatives and establish Health 
and Safety Committees.

• Total number of 21 workshops
• Total number of 21 villages 
• Total of 1136 participants
• Averaged 54 workers per 
workshop
• Allocated budget R300 
000.00

5. Qholaqhwe To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training mainly 
shop stewards and farm 
workers in the rural areas for 
12 months.

• Conducted 10 workshops
• A total of 272 employees 
participated
• More cases were reported.
• Head O ce and the provin-
cial management held brief-
ing meeting with the project 
on 04/09/2015.

6. Hennenman 
-

ment Forum

To raise awareness on COIDA 
and OHS policies by training 
mainly shop stewards and 
farm workers in the rural 
areas for 12 months.

• Total number of 21 workshops
• Total number of 5 villages 
• Number of participants: not 
mentioned
• Allocated budget R299 
600.00

KWAZULU-NATAL 7. University
of KZN

This project is based in the 
University of KZN, focusing in 
the chemical industry which 
has substantial health and 
safety risks and hazards.
The Department of Environ-
mental Health has a strong 
and viable relationship with 
trade unions through educa-
tion on OHS and COIDA. The 
main objective of the project 
is to develop curricula in OHS 
and COIDA for the chemical 
industry using union repre-
sentatives as pilot subjects for 
the modules.

• This project received the 
rst trench of money in  

January 2016.
• 2 OHS and 2 COIDA work-
shops were conducted during 
2015/16 nancial year.
• Trade unions participated in 
the workshops
• A total of 125 participants.

LIMPOPO
Centre

To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training mainly 
shop stewards and farm 
workers in the rural areas for 
12 months.

• Conducted workshops in 
farming areas
• Conducted the required 12 
workshops plus additional 6 
which made total of 18 work-
shops. 
• 641 employees participated
• 2650 pamphlets were 
distributed to the public as 
indirect bene ciaries.
• Averaged 92 workers per 
workshop
• Allocated budget was  R217 
507.00
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Centre
To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training mainly 
shop stewards and farm 
workers in the rural areas for 
12 months.

Pending report from Head 
O ce. The CF team visited the 
organisation where 90 employ-
ees participated. 

Centre
To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training mainly 
shop stewards, NGOs, factory 
workers and farm workers in 
the rural areas for 12 months.

• Conducted 9 COIDA and 
OHS workshops in 5 villages.
• A total number of 324 em-
ployees participated.

MPUMALANGA 11. Nkomazi To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training mainly 
shop stewards and farm 
workers in the rural areas for 
12 months.

• Total number of 17 workshops 
• Total number of 17 villages 
• Total of 1070 participants 
comprising of 435 males and 
635 females. 
• Averaged 63 workers per 
workshop
• Allocated budget was 
R350000.00

12. Leandra To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training mainly 
shop stewards and farm 
workers in the rural areas for 
12 months.

• A total of six workshops 
were conducted.
• 207 farm workers also par-
ticipated.
• Head O ce management 
and the provincial manage-
ment visited the project in 
March 2016.
• A total of 245 employees 
attended the workshops.

NORTHERN CAPE 13. Sika Sonke To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training mainly 
shop stewards and farm 
workers in the rural areas for 
12 months.

Pending reports from Head 
O ce. Pending audited nan-
cials.

14. Hope Town To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training mainly 
shop stewards and farm 
workers in the rural areas for 
12 months.

Pending reports from Head 
O ce. Pending audited nan-
cials.

15. Emntlakoloni To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training mainly 
shop stewards and farm 
workers in the rural areas for 
12 months.

Pending reports from Head 
O ce. Pending audited nan-
cials.

NORTH WEST 16. Lethabong To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training mainly 
shop stewards and farm 
workers in the rural areas for 
12 months.

• Conducted 21 workshops
• 1707 participants 
• The budget approved was 
R350 000. 00
• Farm communities are chal-
lenged with accessibilities to 
Labour Centres, Literacy, and 
Confusion on payments of 
claims, non-compliance and 
delaying tactics of employers 
to submit their reports.
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10.2. Organisational environment
 
In an e ort to improve the ability of the Fund to deliver on its mandate the Fund is busy 
with a restructuring process. Since the implementation of the approved structure which 
started in 2013, a number of initiatives have being implemented. Based on these initiatives, 
there is a need to align the organisational structure with the new developments. In addition 
to the above there are other functions which the Fund is considering to establish or uplift in 
order to achieve its legislative mandate. During the Financial Year, the Fund also conducted 
a Skills Audit through the Skills Audit project which is continuing into the 2016/17 Financial 
Year. The project seeks to quantify and qualify the skills gap so as to ensure relevant skills 
are acquired to uplift performance of the Fund.

Compensation Fund is instituting a standardized Business Process Management and Re-
engineering (BPM&R) methodology to enable an enterprise view of our current business 
processes and identify improvement opportunities. This methodology utilizes end-to-end 
business process scenarios as the core framework to guide BPM&R throughout Compensa-
tion Fund. Process champions apply resources to solving business decisions related to the 
structuring of end-to-end business processes and investing in business systems.

The processes were discussed with 8 Provinces and agreed on a standardized process 
through all Provinces. Medical Services and Legal Services business processes and standard 
operating procedures were developed and signed o . uery Resolution for Call centre was 
also developed and implemented. The uality Management team also embarked on a jour-
ney to identify the suitable to business processes modeling (Mapping) tool. 

10.3. Key policy developments and legislative changes

During the year under review there were no major changes to the Compensation Fund 
Legislation.

Centre
To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training farm 
workers and casual workers 
mainly in the Prixley Ka Seme 
District. Trench 1 report and 
waiting for the second trench 
report.

• Conducted workshops in the 
Prixley Ka Seme District within 
Siyancuma municipality.
• A total of 434 employees 
participated in the work-
shops.
• 5 COIDA cases were report-
ed.

WESTERN CAPE 18. Swellendam To advocate COIDA and OHS 
policies by training mainly 
shop stewards and farm 
workers in the rural areas for 
12 months.

• 3 programs were conducted
• 219 participants from 
various farms and 75 season-
al workers
• The total funding was 
R341 000.00
• Challenges discovered were 
that employers did not know 
how to register injuries on 
duty and they neglect their 
obligation to report the inju-
ries, employers also deducts 
expenses where compensa-
tion has occurred. Employers 
do not have safety commit-
tees in the workplace.
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 • Substance Abuse Policy was developed in 2015/2016 nancial year as a new  
Policy. The Policy was approved on 23 February 2016. 

• Skills Development Policy was amended and approved on 23 February 2016. 

 • Controls (Monitoring & Evaluation of Training Interventions) were not there in  
  the previous Policy 
 • Roles and Responsibilities were not clear and in some instances and didn’t suit  
  the Fund due to leadership structures
 • Delegations were also not clear in the previous policy
 • Recovery procedure was not clear
 • There was nothing about International Training and Donor Funded Training
 • Lastly, there was no ROI measure in place with regard to the Short 
  Learning Programmes – there was no contractual obligations on the side of  
  the bene ciaries.

10.4. Strategic outcome oriented goals 

Government has agreed on 14 Outcomes as a key focus in the Medium Strategic Frame-
work (MTSF). There are three (3) Outcomes applicable to the Compensation Fund and these 
have now been the basis for the development of the Strategic Plan (SP) and the Annual Per-
formance Plan (APP). The three Outcomes identi ed for the Compensation Fund are:

• Outcome 4: Decent employment through inclusive economic growth. 
• Outcome 12: An e cient, e ective and development oriented public service. 
• Outcome 13: A comprehensive, responsive and sustainable social protection system

Based on the three Outcomes discussed above, the Compensation Fund has developed 
four key Strategic Outcome Oriented Goals. These Strategic Outcomes Oriented Goals are 
strategic priorities which form the basis of the Compensation Fund’s Strategic Objectives. 
The Strategic Outcomes identi ed will be the results of the Fund’s performance as viewed 
by our bene ciaries and will be the basis for achieving the Outputs. 

STRATEGIC OUTCOMES

STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTED GOAL 1 Strengthening the institutional capacity of the Fund

GOAL STATEMENT Establish and maintain e ective administration and 
corporate governance systems

STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTED GOAL 2 Strengthening of Social Security through compensat-
ing for occupational injuries and diseases
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ALIGNMENT OF GOVERNMENT OUTCOMES, DOL STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
(KRA’s), CF STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND CF STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

GOVERNMENT SERVICE 
DELIVERY OUTCOMES

DOL STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES

CF STRATEGIC 
OUTCOMES

CF STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES

Outcome 4: Decent
Employment
through inclusive
economic growth

KRA 3: Protecting vulner-
able workers

Strengthening of Social 
Security through com-
pensating for occu-
pational injuries and 
diseases

Provide faster, reliable 
and accessible COID 
Services by 2020

Outcome 13: A com-
prehensive, responsive 
and sustainable social 
protection system

KRA 5: Strengthening
social protection

Outcome 12: An 
e cient, e ective and 
development oriented 
public service

KRA 8: Strengthening
the institutional
capacity of the
Department

Strengthening the insti-
tutional capacity of the 
Fund

Provide an e ective and 
e cient client oriented 
support services

During August 2015 the Compensation Fund developed the 5 year Strategic Plan 2015/16-
2019/20 and also revised the APP 2015/2016. As a result of this process the strategic objec-
tives were revised. These changes are re ected in the tables below

The Fund will strive to contribute towards the achievement of all Department of Labour’s 
Strategic Objectives, but will focus more speci cally on: 

• Objective (KRA 3): Protecting vulnerable workers
• Strategic Objective 5 (KRA 5): Strengthening social protection. 
• Strategic Objective 8 (KRA 8): Strengthening the institutional capacity of the Department. 

Table 8:  Alignment of Government Outcomes, DOL Strategic Objectives (KRA’s), CF Strategic 
Outcomes and CF Strategic Objectives according to the revised 5 year strategic plan

Table : The Fund will pursue the following strategic objectives over the ne t ve years 

STRATEGIC OUTCOMES

CF STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES RESPONSIBLE PROGRAMME

1. Provide an e ective and e cient client oriented 
support services Programme 1: Administration

2. Provide faster, reliable and accessible COID Ser-
vices by 2020

Programme 2: Compensation for occupational  
injuries and diseases act (1993) operations 

Programme 3: Provincial operations: compensation 
for occupational injuries and diseases act (1993)

1GOAL STATEMENT E ective administration of compensation for dis-
ablement caused by occupational injuries or dis-
eases sustained or contracted by employees in the 
course of their employment, or for death resulting 
from such injuries or diseases; and to provide for 
matters connected therewith
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11   PROGRAMME INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME

11.1. Programme 1: Administration 

Purpose 

• The most important reason for the existence of the Directorates: Risk Management  
 and Internal Audit  is to assist the Compensation Fund in ful lling its mandate and  
 responsibilities for corporate governance and  nancial management, internal 
 control, risk management systems and the internal and external audit functions.

The Directorate: Internal Audit provides independent, objective assurance and consulting 
services, designed to add value and improve the e ectiveness of systems of governance, 
risk management and control processes within the Fund.

The Directorate: Risk Management supports the Compensation Fund to improve its per-
formance, and this is embedded in a sound control environment by proactively identifying 
risks before they materialise so that mitigation strategies may be planned and executed as 
required in the day to day management of the business to minimise adverse impacts that 
could a ect the Fund from achieving its objectives. In addition, security breaches are inves-
tigated and reported to the relevant authorities.

• The purpose of the Chief Directorate: Financial Management is to o er nancial   
 support to the operations and day to day running of the Fund. The Chief Directorate  
 must ensure that:

 • Revenue is generated timeously;
 • Debt is recovered timely;
 • All bene ciaries are paid on time; and
 • All suppliers are paid within 30 days.

The Chief Directorate: Financial Management must also ensure that SCM processes are 
followed when procuring goods and services and that reconciliations are done monthly and 
that monthly, quarterly and yearly reports (budget against expenditure and nancial state-
ments) are submitted to the relevant stakeholders timeously.

• The programme is also responsible for the provision of Human Resource 
 Management, Communication, Organisational E ectiveness and Organisational   
 Performance Monitoring and Evaluation and Information and Communications 
 Technology services to the Compensation Fund. 
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11.1.1. Strategic objectives and objective statement: Administration

Table 10: Strategic Objectives

PERFORMANCE OF CF PROGRAMMES AND SUB-PROGRAMMES

PROGRAMME/ACTIVITY/OBJECTIVE

STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVE

PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR

ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT 

2014/2015

PLANNED 
TARGET

2015/2016

ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT

2015/2016

DEVIATION 
FROM 

PLANNED TAR-
GET TO ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT 

2015/2016

COMMENT ON 
DEVIATIONS

RISK MANAGEMENT

Provide an 
e ective and 
e cient client 
oriented sup-
port services.

The Fund risk 
management 
maturity 
improved 
annually to 
a level by 31 
March 2016

Achieve risk 
management 
maturity level 2

The Fund risk 
management 
maturity 
improved 
annually to 
level 3  by  31 
March 2016

Achieved

The Fund risk 
management 
maturity 
improved 
annually to 
level 3  by  31 
March 2016

Not applicable Not applicable

INTERNAL AUDIT

Provide an 
e ective and 
e cient client 
oriented sup-
port services.

A three-
year rolling 
and annual 
risk based 
(2015/16 
– 2017/18) 
internal  audit 
plan approved 
by 31 March 

A three-year 
rolling and 
annual risk 
based internal  
audit plan ap-
proved by 31 
March 2015

Plan approved 
by 31 March 
2016

Achieved

Annual Audit 
Plan 2016/17 
approved 
by the Audit 
Committee on 
23 February 
2016

Not applicable Not applicable

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

Strategic Objective Provide an e ective and e cient client oriented 
support services

Objective Statement To provide value adding services to clients through 
Human Resources, Risk Management, Financial Ser-
vices and Audit Services

Baseline • 481 853 employers assessed
• R33 Billion proceeds from investments.
• 70% achievement of the audit plan (Based on the 
average of 2013/14-81% and 2014/15- 61%
• Risk Management maturity level 2

Table 11: Performance of CF Programmes and Sub-Programmes
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PROGRAMME/ACTIVITY/OBJECTIVE

STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVE

PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR

ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT 

2014/2015

PLANNED 
TARGET

2015/2016

ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT

2015/2016

DEVIATION 
FROM 

PLANNED TAR-
GET TO ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT 

2015/2016

COMMENT ON 
DEVIATIONS

2016

Percentage of 
the risk based 
audit plan 
implemented 
annually by 31 
March  2016

61% of the plan 
implemented 
by 31 March 
2015 (22 proj-
ects)

70% of the 
risk based 
audit plan 
implemented 
annually by 31 
March 2016

70.45% (31/44) 
of the project 
plan was 
implemented 
by 31 March 
2016
[5 Ad Hoc and 
6 Rolled over 
projects were 
also included 
in the updated 
annual audit 
plan resulting 
in the projects 
increasing 
from 33 to 
44. These  11 
projects were 
completed]

Overachieve-
ment  of 0.45%

System:

Audit software 
(teammate) is 
e cient. 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Provide an 
e ective and 
e cient client 
oriented sup-
port services.

Percentage of 
active regis-
tered employ-
ers assessed 
annually by 31 
March 2016 

481 853 regis-
tered (active) 
employers as 
at 31 March 
2015. 3% 
increase from 
the previous 
year

95% of active 
employers 
assessed 
(excl. exempt-
ed employers) 
(457 588) by 
31 March 
2016

46% of active 
employers 
were assessed

[208 613 
of active 
employers 
assessed as 
at 31 March 
2016

272 443 ROEs 
(6.2 Billion) 
assessed as 
at 31 March 
2016]

Underachieve-
ment of 49%

• Non-com-
pliance of 
submissions 
of the ROE’s 
by employers.
• Limitations 
of the estima-
tion policy to 
address back-
log of ROE’s 
received.

Percentage an-
nual increase 
on investment 
income by 
31 March of 
the current 

nancial year 
compared to 
the previous 

nancial year

49.7 billion in 
investments

CPI+2% annual 
increase on 
investment 
income by 
31 March of 
the 2015/16 

nancial year 
compared to 
the 2014/15 

nancial year

4.02% growth 
was achieved

[The target 
should be R 
53 billion. 
 
Using CPI 
+ 2% = 7% 
growth 

Underachieve-
ment of 2.98%

• Economic: 
The unfavour-
able economic 
landscape 
resulted in 
the expected 
growth not be-
ing achieved.
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PROGRAMME/ACTIVITY/OBJECTIVE

STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVE

PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR

ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT 

2014/2015

PLANNED 
TARGET

2015/2016

ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT

2015/2016

DEVIATION 
FROM 

PLANNED TAR-
GET TO ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT 

2015/2016

COMMENT ON 
DEVIATIONS

The Invest-
ments as at 
1 April 2015 
amounted to 
R 49.7 billion 
and the clos-
ing balance as 
at 31 March 
2016 amount-
ed to R 51 
billion. 

Di erence=R 2 
billion

R2 billion/R 
49.7 bil-
lion=4.02%] 

 

Number of 
matters a ect-
ing the AGSA 
audit report 
as at 31 March 
2015 cleared 
annually by 31 
March 2016

A plan to ad-
dress 100% of 
the matters af-
fecting the au-
dit report for 
the 2013/14 

nancial year 
was approved 
during 3

26 matters 
a ecting 
the AGSA 
audit report 
as at 31 March 
2015 cleared 
annually by 31 
March 2016

Not achieved

16 matters 
a ecting the 
AGSA audit 
report were 
cleared  by 31 
March 2016

Underperfor-
mance of 10

The AGSA 
audit ndings 
are included in 
the CF action 
plan which 
is monitored 
continuously. 
Dealing with 
some of the 

ndings is 
taking longer 
than what was 
expected.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Provide an 
e ective and 
e cient client 
oriented sup-
port services.

Percentage 
of vacancies 
at CF Head 
O ce and 
provinces 
maintained 
annually

13.5% of va-
cancies at CF 
Head O ce 

10% of va-
cancies at CF 
Head O ce 
and Provinces 
maintained 
by 31 March 
2016

Not achieved

18% vacancy 
rate as at 31 
March 2016 
at CF Head 
O ce and 
Provinces 

[Total vacant 
posts (240)/
Total ap-
proved posts 
(1332)%] 

Underachieve-
ment of  8% Dependencies 

on depart-
mental dele-
gation.
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11.1.2. Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 

• The following strategies will be implemented by the Fund in order to improve the  
vacancy rate:

 • The nal revised HR delegation has been approved for implementation in   
April 2016

 • Capacitate the Directorate: HRM by prioritising the lling of the posts to run  
  with recruitment and selection process, in order to ensure the lling of 
  vacancies within the CF Head O ce 
 • In order to improve the return of investment, the Fund has awarded a 
  contract to an Investment Advisor – Alexander Forbes to advise the Fund on  
  better and more informed asset allocation of the investment portfolio’s 
  managed by PIC so to position the Compensation Fund for long term growth  
  and sustainability PIC. Work will commence in April 2016.
 • The following strategies will be implemented to improve the assessments of   
  active registered employers:
 • Issue a nal reminder for all outstanding ROEs (2015 and prior) by 
  30 September 2016. 
 • Implement Guideline or Circular from position paper by 30 September 2016.
 • Full implementation of the Estimation Policy in line with the guideline or 
  circular from position paper above by 31 December 2016.

11.1.3. Changes to planned targets

The overarching reasons for revising the APP 2015/16, during uarter 2 of the Financial 
Year, were as follows:

 • During the revision of the Strategic plan, the CF Outcome and Strategic 
  objectives were also revised. In the previous Strategic Plan, CF had 4 Strategic
  outcomes and 8 Strategic objectives. The revised Strategic plan is more 
  focused and re ects 2 Outcomes and 2 Strategic Objectives. This will enable 
  CF to focus resources in a more e ective manner in order for CF to achieve its 
  mandate. As a result of the revision of 5 year Strategic Plan the APP also had 
  to be amended to ensure that both documents are aligned to each other.
 • To address the AGSA 2014/15 ndings related to indicators being SMART, 
  indicators were revised
 • The revised APP indicators focuses externally and not internally as was the 
  case with the initial APP where a large number of the indicators were 
  internally focused. This will allow CF to be more e cient and e ective when 
  dealing with the CF’s core business of service delivery
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CHANGES TO THE APP

INDICATOR STATUS IN APP REASON FOR CHANGE

The Fund risk management maturity 
improved annually to a level by 31 March 
2016 (Initial APP wording: Implementation 
of a  3 year risk based and annual audit 
plan, approved by Audit Committee with 
100% completion by 31 March

Reworded The wording was changed to incorporate 
the SMART principle

Reporting quarterly to Audit Committee Removed The indicator is operational in nature and 
has been moved to the operational plans

A three-year rolling and annual risk based 
(2015/16 – 2017/18) internal  audit plan 
approved by 31 March 2016

Reworded The wording was changed to incorporate 
the SMART principle

Number of bi-monthly reports presented 
to the Risk Management Committee in the 

nancial year

Removed The indicator is operational in nature and 
has been moved to the operational plans

Percentage of the risk based audit plan 
implemented annually by 31 March  2016

Reworded The wording was changed to incorporate 
the SMART principle

Percentage of active registered employers 
assessed annually by 31 March 2016

New The revised indicator and target was 
changed in order to meet the SMART 
Principle (Relevant): Addressed the AGSA 
2014/15 nding by reviewing indicators 
which were deemed not to be relevant.

8% (i.e. R632 million) increase in employ-
er contributions from R7.9 billion to R8.5 
billion by 31 March 2019.

Removed The indicator and target does not meet 
the SMART Principle (Relevant): Ad-
dressed the AGSA 2014/15 nding by 
reviewing indicators which were deemed 
not to be relevant.

Percentage annual increase on investment 
income by 31 March of the current nancial 
year compared to the previous nancial 
year

New The revised indicator and target was 
changed in order to meet the SMART 
Principle (Relevant): Addressed the AGSA 
2014/15 nding by reviewing indicators 
which were deemed not to be relevant.

18.51% Increase in the value of investments 
by 31 March 2019.

Removed The indicator and target does not meet 
the SMART Principle (Relevant): Ad-
dressed the AGSA 2014/15 nding by 
reviewing indicators which were deemed 
not to be relevant.

Implementation of the approved Assess-
ment Model by 2019

Removed The revised APP indicators focuses exter-
nally and not internally as was the case 
with the initial APP where a large number 
of the indicators were internally focused.

Number of matters a ecting the AGSA 
audit report as at 31 March 2015 cleared 
annually by 31 March 2016 (Initial APP 
wording: 100% (i.e. 95) of matters a ecting 
the AGSA audit report for the 2013/14 audit 
cycle cleared by 31 March 2019)

Reworded The wording was changed to incorporate 
the SMART principle

Percentage of vacancies at CF Head O ce 
and provinces maintained annually

New As a result of a AGSA nding in the 
2014/15 nancial year the indicator 
revised to address the nding which re-
quired CF to include both CF Head o ce 
and Provincial vacancies in the APP

% of vacancies at CF Head O ce Removed As a result of a AGSA nding in the 
2014/15 nancial year the indicator 
revised to address the nding which re-
quired CF to include both CF Head o ce 
and Provincial vacancies in the APP

Table 12: Changes to the APP
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11.1.4. Linking performance with budgets 

Table 13: Linking performance with budgets

 
Programme 1, Administration has overspent by 3% during the 2015/16 nancial period; 
which is within the 5% per cent range as set by the National Treasury.

Out of the seven planned indicators the Fund only achieved three, denoting a 57% under-
achievement against the over expenditure of 18%.

2015/16 EXPENDITURE REPORT

COMPENSATION FUND PROGRAMMES

BUDGET PER PROGRAMME
2015 - 16 

APPROVED BUDGET 
PER PROGRAMME

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURE 

31 MARCH 2016
VARIANCES % SPENT

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION 796 658 821 534 -24 876 103%

COMPENSATION COMMISSIONER 1 196 693 503 58%

INTERNAL AUDIT 7 016 2 964 4 052 42%

RISK MANAGEMENT 39 312 5 284 34 028 13%

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 90 883 21 266 69 617 23%

REVENUE/INCOME 6 026 1 255 4 771 21%

FINANCIAL REPORTING 22 859 51 397 -28 538 225%

FINANCIAL CONTROL 5 493 1 794 3 699 33%

SUPPORT SERVICE (SCM) 114 171 109 919 4 252 96%

CHIEF DIRECTOR: CORPORATE SERVICES 272 230 42 85%

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT 351 284 493 271 -141 987 140%

COMMUNICATIONS AND STAKE HOLDERS 55 236 57 383 -2 147 104%

ORGANISATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS 7 815 1 412 6 403 18%

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 95 095 74 666 20 429 79%
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11.2. Programme 2: Compensation for Occupational Injuries and 
Diseases Act (1993) Operations 

Purpose 

Provide an e ective safety net through the registration, processing and payment of medi-
cal claims resulting from occupational injuries and diseases, and monitoring of compliance 
with COIDA legislation.

•  is responsible for development and 
 coordination of policy and procedures regarding bene ts; review compensation 
 bene ts; manage and evaluate the impact of strengthening Civic Society Fund (CSF); 
 Training of provinces,  manage and communicate with compensation bene ts stake 
 holder.
• The Directorate: Medical Services develop policies and procedures on medical 
 services; manage decentralised medical services in provinces; manage the 
 compensation process with necessary medical expertise.
• The Directorate: Legal Services provides legal support, legal administration and 
 advice in the implementation of the COIDA and relevant legislation associated with 
 the Compensation Fund.  The strategic goal of this unit is to contribute to legislative  
 reforms and provide an e ective legal support to the Fund by advising on legal 
 matters, addressing the entire current backlog in respect of the objections and 
 application for increased compensation lodged in terms of sections 91 and 56 of the  
 COIDA respectively and drafting of legislation.
• The Directorate: Client Service is responsible to support all components of the Fund 
 to deliver COID services and information to the clients in line with Batho Pele 
 Principles. The directorate is responsible for the receipt of customer enquiries at the 
 Call Centre and CF Head o ce walk-in centre enquiries.

11.2.1. Strategic objectives and objective statement: Compensation for 
Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act (1993) Operations

Table 14: Strategic Objectives

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

Strategic Objective Provide faster, reliable and accessible COID Services 
by 2020

Objective Statement Promote rehabilitation, re-integration and return to 
work of injured and diseased workers and con-
tribute to various schemes designed to decrease 
unemployment including investing mandated funds 
in socially responsible investments

Baseline All claims were paid within 45 days
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PERFORMANCE OF CF PROGRAMMES AND SUB-PROGRAMMES

PROGRAMME/ACTIVITY/OBJECTIVE

STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVE

PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR

ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT 

2014/2015

PLANNED 
TARGET

2015/2016

ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT

2015/2016

DEVIATION 
FROM 

PLANNED TAR-
GET TO ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT 

2015/2016

COMMENT ON 
DEVIATIONS

Provide 
faster, reliable 
and accessible 
COID Services 
by 2020

Percentage 
of Authorised 
claims paid 
within 5 work-
ing days

N/A 100% of 
authorised 
claims paid 
within 5 
working days 
yearly

95% of claims 
paid within 5 
working days

(R3,706 billion 
out of R3.905)

Underachieve-
ment of 5%

System:

• No interface 
between SAP 
FI and Ume-
hluko system.
• The Ability Fi-
nancial System 
does not have 
a creditor’s 
module.

Reviewed 
Compensa-
tion bene ts 
for annual 
adjustments

Annual review 
of compensa-
tion bene ts 
for adjust-
ments

Annual review 
of compensa-
tion bene ts 
for adjust-
ments by 
March 2016

The pro-
posed bene t 
increase were 
submitted on 
28 January 
and published 
on the 12th 
of February in 
the Govern-
ment Gazette

Compensation 
bene ts for 
adjustments 
were not 

nalised by 31 
March 2016

Delay in the 
approval of 
the proposed 
bene ts re-
sulted in the 
proposal pub-
lication being 
delayed. Final 
publication on 
the increase 
in bene ts 
can only be 
done 60 days 
after publi-
cation of the 
proposed 
bene ts

Reviewed 
medical Tari s 
for annual 
adjustments

N/A Annual review 
of medical tar-
i s for annual 
adjustment by 
March 2016

The medical 
tari s were 
reviewed and 
published in 
the Govern-
ment Gazette 
on 28 March 
2016 

Not applicable Not applicable

Annual im-
provement in  
administration 
of bene ts 
(compensation 
and medical)

N/A Chronic 
medication 
distribution 
programme to  
bene ciaries 
piloted by 
March 2016

Chronic 
medication 
distribution 
programme 
was not pi-
loted

Pilot of Chron-
ic medication 
distribution 
programme 
not done by 31 
March 2016

System:

• The original 
plan was for 
CF to co-oper-
ate with DOH 
on the project. 

Table 15: Performance of CF Programmes and Sub-Programmes
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11.2.2. Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 

The following strategies will be implemented in order to overcome under performance:

• In order to improve the payment of all claims, there is a proposal to interface 
  Umehluko directly to SAP FI (The latter system has the creditors’ module). The 
  speci cations were given to IT. It is envisaged that the Fund will go-live on 
  01 July 2016
 • Reviewed Compensation bene ts will be published in April 2016

The chronic 
medication 
tender was 
however 
advertised 
during quarter 
4.

Due to logis-
tical reasons 
this process 
could not 
be nalised 
resulting in CF 
advertising the 
Tender on its 
own
• There was 
a delay in the 
tender approv-
al processes

N/A Hospital 
bene ts 
management 
programme 
implemented 
by March 2016

Hospital 
bene ts 
management 
programme 
was not imple-
mented 
The hospi-
tal bene t 
Management 
tender was 
however ad-
vertised during 
quarter 4.

Hospital 
bene ts 
management 
programme 
was not im-
plemented by 
March 2016

System:

The was a 
delay in the 
tender approv-
al processes 

Annual im-
provement in 
management 
of   litiga-
tion cases, 
hearings and 
objections

N/A Electronic case 
management 
system piloted 
by March 2016

Electronic case 
management 
system was 
not piloted 
 CF is in the 
process of 

nalising the 
improvement 
speci cations 
for SAP 

Electronic case 
management 
system was 
not piloted

System:

The original 
plan was to 
make use 
of Com-
mission for 
Conciliation, 
Mediation and 
Arbitration 
(CCMA) case 
management 
system. CF will 
instead make 
use of the al-
ready existing 
system on 
SAP.
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 • Implementation of the Hospital Bene t Management System will commence 
  once the successful bidder is appointed (During uarter 2 of the 2016/17 
  nancial year)
 • Implementation of the Chronic Medication System will commence once the 
  successful bidder is appointed (During uarter 2 of the 2016/17 nancial year)
 • Final speci cations for the SAP system will be nalised by the end of 1 of 
  2016/17. It is expected that the SAP system will be nalised by end of 3 of 
  2016/17

11.2.3. Changes to planned targets 

The overarching reasons for revising the APP 2015/16, during uarter 2 of the Financial 
Year, were as follows:

 • During the revision of the Strategic Plan, the CF Outcome and Strategic 
  Objectives were also revised. In the previous Strategic Plan, CF had 
  4 Strategic outcomes and 8 Strategic Objectives. The revised Strategic Plan is 
  more focused and re ects 2 Outcomes and 2 Strategic Objectives. This will 
  enable CF to focus resources in a more e ective manner in order for CF to  
  achieve its mandate. As a result of the revision of 5 year Strategic Plan the 
  APP also had to be amended to ensure that both documents are aligned to 
  each other.
 • To address the AGSA 2014/15 ndings related to indicators being SMART, 
  indicators were revised
 • The revised APP indicators focuses externally and not internally as was the 
  case with the initial APP where a large number of the indicators were internally 
  focused. This will allow CF to be more e cient and e ective when dealing with 
  CF’s core business of service delivery

Table 16: Changes to the APP

CHANGES TO THE APP

INDICATOR STATUS IN APP REASON FOR CHANGE

Percentage of Authorised claims paid 
within 5 working days

New Programme 2 for COIDA Operations was 
not in the initial APP 2015/16 resulting in 
new indicators having to be developed

Reviewed medical Tari s for annual 
adjustments

New Programme 2 for COIDA Operations was 
not in the initial APP 2015/16 resulting in 
new indicators having to be developed

Annual improvement in  administration of 
bene ts (compensation and medical)

New Programme 2 for COIDA Operations was 
not in the initial APP 2015/16 resulting in 
new indicators having to be developed

Annual improvement in management of   
litigation cases, hearings and objections

New Programme 2 for COIDA Operations was 
not in the initial APP 2015/16 resulting in 
new indicators having to be developed
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11.2.4. Linking performance with budgets 

Table 17: Linking performance with budgets

Programme 2, Operations Management, has overspent by 212% during the 2015/16 -
nancial period. This is mainly due to the actuarial evaluation made in terms of section 17 
of COIDA. This relates to the accidents that had occurred by the 31st March 2016 but not 
reported, and also due to the payment that was made to the debt collector as a result of a 
court order.

Out of the 5 planned indicators only one indicator has been achieved (20% was achieved)

11.3. Programme 3: Provincial Operations: Compensation for 
Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act (1993)

Purpose

Provide an e ective safety net through the registration, processing and payment of medi-
cal claims resulting from occupational injuries and diseases, and monitoring of compliance 
with COIDA legislation. 

All Provinces are responsible for the provision of the following services within their 
scope of work:

•  registering, adjudicating and processing of compensation  
 bene ts comprising loss of earnings-Temporary Total Disablement (TTD); Permanent  
 Disablement (PD), including pension as well as bene ts for the surviving dependants  
 in fatal injuries. The directorate is responsible for authorising payments of all 

2015/16 EXPENDITURE REPORT

COMPENSATION FUND PROGRAMMES

BUDGET PER PROGRAMME
2015 - 16 

APPROVED BUDGET 
PER PROGRAMME

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURE 

31 MARCH 2016
VARIANCES % SPENT

PROGRAMME 2: OPERATIONS 
MANAGEMENT 4 006 042 8 510 520 -4 504 478 212%

COMPENSATION CLAIMS 985 336 6 073 816 -5 088 480 616%

MEDICAL SERVICES 3 003 328 2 032 540 970 788 68%

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER 1 357 439 918 32%

LEGAL SERVICES 12 808 398 042 -385 234 3108%

CALL CENTRE 1 870 1 213 657 65%

BOARD OFFICE 1 343 4 470 -3 127 333%
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 bene ts including medical expenses. The directorate also monitor compliance with  
COIDA by Exempted Employers as well as monitoring employers on reporting of 
accidents generally, through preliminary investigations and advise on levying of 
penalties for late reporting or non-reporting of accidents.

• Medical Services: The directorate provides medical advice and medical opinion, to  
all sub-directorates within the Fund. The directorate is responsible for preauthorisation  

 for medical treatment and the rehabilitation and reintegration programme.
• Legal Services: The directorate provides legal support, legal administration and 
 advice in the implementation of the COIDA and relevant legislation associated with 
 the Compensation Fund.  The strategic goal of this unit is to contribute to legislative 
 reforms and provide an e ective legal support to the Fund by advising on legal 
 matters, addressing the entire current backlog in respect of the objections and 
 application for increased compensation lodged in terms of sections 91 and 56 of the 
 COIDA respectively and drafting of legislation.
  
11.3.1. Strategic Objective and Objective Statement: Provincial 
Operations: Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases 
Act (1993)

Table 18:  Strategic Objectives

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

Strategic Objective Provide faster, reliable and accessible COID Services 
by 2020

Objective Statement To process compensation bene ts and medical 
expenses for injured and diseased workers and pro-
mote Rehabilitation, Re-integration and Return to 
work Policy for injured and diseased workers

Baseline 60 working days to process claims for payment
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PERFORMANCE OF CF PROGRAMMES AND SUB-PROGRAMMES

PROGRAMME/ACTIVITY/OBJECTIVE

STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVE

PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR

ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT 

2014/2015

PLANNED 
TARGET

2015/2016

ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT

2015/2016

DEVIATION 
FROM 

PLANNED TAR-
GET TO ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT 

2015/2016

COMMENT ON 
DEVIATIONS

Provide 
faster, reliable 
and accessible 
COID Services 
by 2020

Percentage of 
the regis-
tered claims 
adjudicated 
in the current 

nancial year

309 220 claims 
adjudicated
(Not measured 
in 2015/16)

85 % of the 
registered 
claims adju-
dicated in the 
current nan-
cial year

80%

103 055 claims 
out 129 170 
of registered 
claims were 
adjudicated

Underachieve-
ment of 5% skills:

• Incomplete 
claims being 
registered by 
employers and 
delays in the 
submission 
outstanding 
information 
• High vacancy 
rate in the 
Provinces 
which impact-
ed negatively 
on rate of 
adjudication of 
claim.
• Inadequate 
IT infrastruc-
ture (Slowness 
of the system) 
in provinces.

Percentage 
of reported 
compensa-
tion bene ts 
approved for 
payment in 
the current  

nancial year

N/A 85 % of  
reported 
compensa-
tion bene ts 
approved for 
payments  in 
current nan-
cial year

97%

40 097 out 
of 41 467 
received 
bene ts were 
approved for 
payment 

Overachieve-
ment of 12% Human 

A dedicated 
team was 
assigned to 
prioritise 
all accepted 
claims.

Percentage 
of approved 
medical 
invoices for 
payment in 
the current  

nancial year

609 589 
medical claims 
approved 

85%  of ap-
proved med-
ical invoices 
for payment 
in the current  

nancial year

73%

529 785 
approved 
for payment 
out of 729 
954  invoices 
received

Underachieve-
ment of 12%

System: 

• Inadequate 
IT infrastruc-
ture (Slowness 
of the system) 
in provinces.
• Under 
allocation of 
resources in 
provinces to 
COID sta .

Table 19:  Performance of CF Programmes and Sub-Programmes
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Percentage of 
new  regis-
tered compen-
sation claims 
adjudicated 
within 60 
working days

N/A 85% of 
registered 
compensation 
claims adjudi-
cated within 
60 working 
days of being 
received

76%

77 916 out of 
103055 claims 
adjudicated 
were adjudi-
cated within 
60 working 
days

Underachieve-
ment of 9%  skills:

• Incomplete 
claims being 
registered by 
employers and 
delays in the 
submission 
outstanding 
information 
• High vacancy 
rate in the 
Provinces 
which impact-
ed negatively 
on rate of 
adjudication of 
claim.
• Inadequate 
IT infrastruc-
ture (Slowness 
of the system) 
in provinces.

Percentage of 
medical claims 

nalised with-
in 60 working 
days of receiv-
ing invoice

N/A 85% of med-
ical claims 

nalised 
within 60 
working days 
of receiving 
invoice

97%

512 976 out of 
529 785 med-
ical invoices 
approved for 
payment with-
in 60 working 
days

Overachieve-
ment of 12%

System:

The CF 
introduced 
AUTOPAY to 
improve the 
turnaround 
time for 
processing 
new invoices. 
The system 
auto rejects 
incorrectly 
submitted 
invoices and 
only accepts 
correctly 
switched 
invoices for its 

nalisation.

11.3.2. Strategy to overcome areas of under-performance 

The following strategies will be implemented in order to overcome under performance:

• A project plan to deal with the backlog to be introduced by quarter 1 of 2016/17.
• Request provinces to ll posts and continue with the training of o cials through 
 developed Training Plan.
• Increase roles of Pension Administrators’ (PA) in processing compensation bene t in 
 order to improve performance.  Continue with the appointment of Medical posts for  
 Nurses and Doctors.
• Continue with the training of o cials on the Umehluko system.
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11.3.3. Changes to planned targets

The overarching reasons for revising the APP 2015/16, during uarter 2 of the Financial 
Year, were as follows:

• During the revision of the Strategic plan, the CF Outcome and Strategic objectives 
 were also revised. In the previous Strategic Plan, CF had 4 Strategic outcomes and 
 8 Strategic objectives. The revised Strategic Plan is more focused and re ects 2 

Outcomes and 2 Strategic Objectives. This will enable CF to focus resources in a 
 more e ective manner in order for CF to achieve its mandate. As a result of the 
 revision of 5 year Strategic Plan the APP also had to be amended to ensure that both 
 documents are aligned to each other.
• To address the AGSA 2014/15 ndings related to indicators being SMART, indicators 
 were revised
• The revised APP indicators focuses externally and not internally as was the case with 
 the initial APP where a large number of the indicators were internally focused. This 
 will allow CF to be more e cient and e ective when dealing with the CF’s core 
 business of service delivery

Table 20: Changes to the APP

CHANGES TO THE APP

INDICATOR STATUS IN APP REASON FOR CHANGE

Percentage of the registered claims adjudi-
cated in the current nancial year

New The revised indicator and target was 
changed in order to meet the SMART 
Principle (Relevant): Addressed the AGSA 
2014/15 nding by reviewing indicators 
which were deemed not to be relevant.

% increase in the registration of  claims 
received in comparison to the previous 

nancial year 

Removed The indicator and target does not meet 
the SMART Principle (Relevant): Addressed 
the AGSA 2014/15 nding by reviewing 
indicators which were deemed not to be 
relevant.

Percentage of reported compensation ben-
e ts approved for payment in the current  

nancial year

New The revised indicator and target was 
changed in order to meet the SMART 
Principle (Relevant): Addressed the AGSA 
2014/15 nding by reviewing indicators 
which were deemed not to be relevant.

% increase in the number of adjudicat-
ed claims in comparison to the previous 

nancial year

Removed The indicator and target does not meet 
the SMART Principle (Relevant): Addressed 
the AGSA 2014/15 nding by reviewing 
indicators which were deemed not to be 
relevant. 

Percentage of approved medical invoices for 
payment in the current  nancial year

New The revised indicator and target was 
changed in order to meet the SMART Princi-
ple (Relevant): Addressed the AGSA 2014/15 

nding by reviewing indicators which were 
deemed not to be relevant.
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Percentage of the registered claims adjudi-
cated in the current nancial year

New The revised indicator and target was 
changed in order to meet the SMART Princi-
ple (Relevant): Addressed the AGSA 2014/15 

nding by reviewing indicators which were 
deemed not to be relevant.

% increase in the registration of  claims 
received in comparison to the previous 

nancial year

Removed The indicator and target does not meet the 
SMART Principle (Relevant): Addressed the 
AGSA 2014/15 nding by reviewing indica-
tors which were deemed not to be relevant.

Percentage of reported compensation ben-
e ts approved for payment in the current  

nancial year

New The revised indicator and target was 
changed in order to meet the SMART Princi-
ple (Relevant): Addressed the AGSA 2014/15 

nding by reviewing indicators which were 
deemed not to be relevant.

% increase in the number of adjudicated 
claims in comparison to the previous nan-
cial year

Removed The indicator and target does not meet the 
SMART Principle (Relevant): Addressed the 
AGSA 2014/15 nding by reviewing indica-
tors which were deemed not to be relevant.

Percentage of approved medical invoices for 
payment in the current  nancial year

New The revised indicator and target was 
changed in order to meet the SMART Princi-
ple (Relevant): Addressed the AGSA 2014/15 

nding by reviewing indicators which were 
deemed not to be relevant.

11.3.4. Linking performance with budgets 

Table 21: Linking performance with budgets

2015/16 EXPENDITURE REPORT

COMPENSATION FUND PROGRAMMES

BUDGET PER PROGRAMME
2015 - 16 

APPROVED BUDGET 
PER PROGRAMME

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURE 

31 MARCH 2016
VARIANCES % SPENT

PROGRAMME 3: PROVINCIAL 
OPERATIONS - COIDA 41 878 31 979 9 899 76%

FREE STATE 4 963 2 866 2 097 58%

WESTERN CAPE 7 350 3 212 4 138 44%

NORTHERN CAPE 2 795 1 934 861 69%

MPUMALANGA 2 579 3 320 -741 129%

LIMPOPO 4 333 2 493 1 840 58%

EASTERN CAPE 5 962 5 475 487 92%

KWAZULU-NATAL 7 216 6 838 378 95%

NORTH WEST 3 120 2 624 496 84%

GAUTENG 3 560 3 217 343 90%
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12

The main reasons contributed to this are as follows:

The Compensation Fund has no control over the Provincial O ces spending; the Depart-
ment of Labour does, through the percentage split spending agreement.

Out of the ve planned indicators, two were achieved, denoting a 40% achievement rate.

   REVENUE COLLECTION 

The over collection in the Revenue from exchange transactions was due to the interest hike 
during the nancial year and as such the Fund had more returns on the money market.

Table 22: Revenue Collection

The reason for under collection in the Revenue from Assessment is due to the unfavourable 
market conditions wherein companies shut down and as such the companies were unable 
to submit their ROEs.

The reason for the over collection in Revenue from penalties is that the Fund never antici-
pated that most employers will submit their ROEs late.  Despite the extension in the dead-
line for ROE submissions most employers did not adhere to the time line.

The over collection in the Revenue from exchange transactions was due to the interest hike 
during the nancial year and as such the Fund had more returns on the money market.

REVENUE COLLECTION

2015/16 2014/15

SOURCES 
OF REVENUE ESTIMATE

ACTUAL 
AMOUNT 

COLLECTED

(OVER)/
UNDER 

COLLECTION
ESTIMATE

ACTUAL 
AMOUNT 

COLLECTED

(OVER)/
UNDER 

COLLECTION

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Revenue from 
- 7 852 764 7 675 104 1 77 660 6 293 000 8 544 458 (2 251 58)

Revenue from ex- 2 294 192 3 680 167 (1 385 975) 6 691 971 3 317 761 3 374 010

TOTAL 10 146 956 11 355 271 (1 208 315) 12 984 971 11 633 970 1 122 552
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13   CAPITAL INVESTMENT 

Table 23: Infrastructure

The reason for the under spending of R28 million was that the Fund intended to refurbish 
the Compensation House, however due to some unforeseen circumstances the project was 
never implemented.

During the year under review the following progress has been made which is related to 
Capital Investment:

• Progress made on implementing the Capital, Investment and Asset Management   
Plan. Plans to renovate the Fund’s building were not implemented and will be 
implemented upon receiving a complete condition assessment report.

• Infrastructure projects which have been completed in the current year and the 
progress in comparison to what was planned at the beginning of the year. Provide 
reasons for material variances 

• Repainting of parking bay lines and replacement of broken tiles at CF.
 • Reseal Bhisho roof on the expansion joints.
 • Water testing and cleaning of water tanks: Water testing done and showed no 
  need to clean tanks.

• Infrastructure projects that are currently in progress: 

 • Conduct condition assessment for the Compensation House Building: 
  30 July 2016.
 • Parapet ashings & Box gutters maintenance on roof for Bhisho building: 
  30 September 2016.

• Plans to close down or down-grade any current facilities:
 
 • Move CF o cials to an alternative building and implement recommendations  

INFRASTRUCTURE

2015/16 2014/15

INFRASTRUCTURE 
PROJECT BUDGET ACTUAL EX-

PENDITURE

(OVER)/
UNDER 

EXPENDITURE
BUDGET ACTUAL EX-

PENDITURE

(OVER)/
UNDER 

EXPENDITURE

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

30 400 2 026 28 374 7 200 6 773 427

TOTAL 30 400 2 026 28 374 7 200 6 773 427
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from the building condition assessment report at Compensation House 
building and surrender leased Benstra building.

• Progress made on the maintenance of infrastructure

• Cleaning service provider has been acquired.
 • Pest control and fumigation services done.
 • Maintenance for lifts and escalators done.
 • Appointed an o cial (Maintenance O cer) for electrical works.
 • Appointment of plumbing service provider at its nal stage.
 • Leased buildings maintenance rendered through the Landlords services and 
  CF Facilities o cials.
 • Expansion joints leaking at Bhisho building where sealed.

• Developments relating to the above that are expected to impact on the public 
 entity‘s current expenditure. 

 • Remuneration for the Maintenance O cer and maintenance contracts 
  payments for the duration appointed for. 

• Details as to how asset holdings have changed over the period under review, 
 including information on disposals, scrapping and loss due to theft 

 • Damaged and obsolete assets were disposed through scrapping method of 
  disposal during the period under review and asset register updated
 • Lost asset(s) were investigated and written o  during the period under review, 
  disciplinary process underway against a ected o cials.
 • The Fund reviewed and reassessed the useful life of its assets and adjustments 
  were made to the asset register.

• Measures taken to ensure that the public entity‘s asset register remained up-to-date 
 during the period under review.

 • Some of the measures taken to ensure that the Fund’s asset register 
  remained up to date during the period under review includes amongst others:

  o Performance of monthly asset reconciliation between asset register 
   and general ledger
  o Performance of asset veri cation process twice in a nancial year to 
   establish existence of the Fund’s assets as per asset register
  o Disposal of redundant, damaged and obsolete assets was performed 
   during the period under review for the assets that were stored in the 
   warehouse for over ve years.
  o Introduction of new asset movement process was implemented and 
   improved in order to update asset register.

• The current state of the public entity‘s capital assets, for example what percentage is 
 in good, fair or bad condition 
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• The Fund’s capital assets are generally and mostly in a bad condition and fully 
  depreciated however still in use. Future replacement plans are in place to 
  improve performance of the assets and increase future expected service 
  potential. 

• Major maintenance projects that have been undertaken during the period under 
 review.
 
 • Minor operating maintenance was made to the current infrastructure to 
  respond to the break downs experienced during the period.

• Progress made in addressing the maintenance backlog during the period 
 under review: 

 • The current status of the Fund’s building is resulting in the backlog increasing 
  due to deteriorating ageing infrastructure and high maintenance demands. 
  Repairs work e orts to rectify this maintenance backlog has been put in place, 
  however, due to the nature of the building break downs are experienced 
  regularly. This outlines the need for moving to an alternative accommodation 
  and allow condition assessment outcome to be implemented.
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14

15

16

INTRODUCTION

Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which public entities are direct-
ed, controlled and held to account. In addition to legislative requirements based on a pub-
lic entity‘s enabling legislation, and the Companies Act, corporate governance with regard 
to public entities is applied through the precepts of the Public Finance Management Act 
(PFMA) and run in tandem with the principles contained in the King‘s Report on Corporate 
Governance.

PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES 

During the year under review the Compensation Fund appeared once before the Standing 
Committee of Public Accounts as follows:

• 02 June 2015

The purpose of the engagement was to engage with the Fund and to get assurance from 
the Compensation Fund regarding improvement initiatives aimed at improving nancial 
management in the Fund.

This resulted in the Fund adopting an “Action Plan” which is a blue print in trying to improve 
service delivery and address issues raised by SCOPA.

The Fund also appeared once (1) before the Portfolio Committee on  15 April 2015 regard-
ing quarterly performance report.

EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY 

During the 2014/15 Financial Year the Compensation Fund submitted the following plans 
and reports to the executive authority:

• Revised Strategic Plan 2015/16-2019/20
• Revised Annual Performance Plan 2015/16
• Annual Performance Plan 2016/17
• Annual Report 2014/15
• 4 uarterly Progress reports for the Financial Year 2015/16

All of the plans and reports were endorsed by the Executive Authority.
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17  THE COMPENSATION BOARD 

17.1. Introduction

The role of the CF board is to advise the Minister.

17.2. The role of the Board is as follows:

• To advise the Minister on matters of policy arising out of or in connection with the 
application of Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act, 1993 (Act 
no 130 of 1993) as amended; 

• The Board may at the request of the Director General advice the Minister regarding 
the performance of particular functions; 

• The Board may advice on the nature and extent of the bene ts that can be payable 
 to employees or dependents of employees, including the adjustments of existing 
 pensions; 
• The Board may advice on the amendment of the Act;

17.3. Board Charter 

The Board has made the following progress in complying with the charter.

• The Board deliberates on the CF quarterly reports and provide inputs 
• Review of Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder policy (PTSD)
• Review of Organ Donor Policy 
• The Board has recommended that Public Investment Corporation (PIC) to  

consider Property Investment and property management for accommodation of 
state employees

• The  Board has adopted the criterion for funding of Rehabilitation centres for the
employees injured and who contracted diseases at the workplace

• Annual medical tari s were increased
• Annual Bene ts were increased
• Instruction 168 aligned with AMA-guide 

17.4. Composition of the Board

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

NAME DESIGNATION (IN TERMS OF THE PUBLIC ENTITY 
BOARD STRUCTURE) CONSTITUENCIES

Mr  M Mngqibisa * Principal Board Member GPAA

Mr  P Matshidze Principal Board Member RMA

Ms  T Pugh Principal Board Member FEMA

Table 24: The Board consists of fteen non-e ecutive directors
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*  Chairperson
** New appointment

The Minister appoints the Advisory Board as per Section 10 of COID Act 

Principal Board Member FEMA

Dr C Mbekeni Principal Board Member BUSA

Mr F Xaba Principal Board Member BUSA

Dr B Kitsnasamy Principal Board Member DEPT. OF HEALTH

Mr T Szana Principal Board Member DEPT. OF LABOUR

Mr S Tsiane Principal Board Member NUMSA

Ms J Bodibe Principal Board Member COSATU

Mr S Motloung Principal Board Member FEDUSA

Ms E Kula Principal Board Member BUSA

Mr K Cowley Principal Board Member BUSA

Mr M Samela Principal Board Member NACTU

Mr S Sobuwa ** Principal Board Member HPCSA

BOARD RESIGNATIONS

NAME Prof N Taukobong Mr A Phala

DESIGNATION Principal Member Principal Member

DATE APPOINTED 1 May 2014 1 Jan 2014

DATE RESIGNED 31 Aug 2015 4 April 2016

QUALIFICATIONS Masters of Physiotherapy

AREA OF EXPERTISE

BOARD DIRECTORSHIPS (LIST THE 
ENTITIES)

Professional Board for Physiotherapy, Podiatry 
and Bio-kinetics (PPB)
Education Committee (PPB)
South African Society of Physiotherapy Education 
(SASP) committee
Physiotherapy Lecturers’ Forum (convener)
Northern Gauteng SASP branch committee

CONSTITUENCIES REPRESENTED HPCSA Labour

NO OF MEETINGS ATTENDED 7 2

Table 25: Board Resignations
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17.5. Committees 

Committee members

Table 26: Attendance of Board Meetings

ATTENDANCE OF BOARD MEETINGS

COMMITTEE NO OF MEMBERS MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS ATTENDED NAME OF MEMBERS

Board

 

15 9

7 Mr M Mngqibisa *

7 Mr K Cowley

5 Mr F Xaba

5 Ms E Kula Ameyaw

4 Dr C Mbekeni

8 Mr S Tsiane

2 Mr A Phala

9 Ms J Bodibe

8 Mr S Motloung

9 Mr M Samela

1 Dr B Kistnasamy 

6 Mr T Szana

4 Prof N Taukobong

5 Ms T Pugh

7 Mr G McIntosh

5 Mr P Matshidze

1 Mr S Sobuwa

Table 27: Assessments and Bene ts committee (ABC)

ASSESSMENTS AND BENEFITS COMMITTEE (ABC)

COMMITTEE NO OF MEMBERS MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS ATTENDED NAME OF MEMBERS

ABC

 

7 6

6 Ms J Bodibe *

4 Mr S Motloung

3 Mr S Tsiane

2 Mr F Xaba

1 Prof N Taukobong

5 Mr G McIntosh

6 Mr M Willie



55Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

ComComCompenpenpensatsatsationionion FuFuFundndnd AnnAnnAnnualualual ReReReporporport (t (t (20120120155 -5 - 20202016)16)16)

Table 28: Technical Committee on Occupational Injuries and Diseases (TCOID)

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE ON OCCUPATIONAL INJURIES AND DISEASES (TCOID)

COMMITTEE NO OF MEMBERS MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS ATTENDED NAME OF MEMBERS

TCOID

 

7 10

10 Mr S Motloung *

7 Ms J Bodibe

2 Prof N Taukobong

9 Ms  J  Mahlangu 

7 Dr  D Kritzinger

0 Mr  Phala

2

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE (IC)

COMMITTEE NO OF MEMBERS MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS ATTENDED NAME OF MEMBERS

IC

 

6 5

5 Mr S Tsiane *

4 Ms J Bodibe

2 Ms E Kula

4 Mr K Cowley  

3 Mr  F Xaba

1 Mr  T Szana

Table 29: Investment committee (IC)

STRATEGIC AND OPERATIONAL COMMITTEE (STRATOP)

COMMITTEE NO OF MEMBERS MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS ATTENDED NAME OF MEMBERS

StratOp

 

7 6

5 Ms E Kula Ameyaw *

3 Mr S Tsiane 

5 Ms J Bodibe 

0 Mr F Xaba  

3 Mr S  Motloung 

4 Mr E Hadzi

3 Mr G McIntosh

Table 30: Strategic & Operational Committee (StratOp)
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Remuneration of Board members 

Members of the Board shall be paid the prescribed remuneration and travelling and subsis-
tence allowances out of the Compensation Fund;
Members not in full- time employment of the state must be paid allowances determined by 
the Minister.

Remuneration of Board members is determined by National Treasury Regulations Chairper-
son of sub-committee’s R 3 856 and member at R 3 048.

THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS ARE NOT REMUNERATED

NAME REMUNERATION OTHER ALLOWANCE OTHER RE-IMBURSEMENTS TOTAL

Mr M Mngqibisa * Not paid

Mr P Matshidze  Not paid

Ms T Pugh Not paid  

Mr G McIntosh  Not paid  

Dr C Mbekeni Not paid   

Dr  B Kitsnasamy Not paid  

Mr G McIntosh Not paid

Mr T Szana Not paid

Mr E Hadzi Not paid

Ms J Mahlangu Not paid

Dr D Kritzinger Not paid

Mr M Willie Not paid

Table 31: The following members that are not remunerated 

THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS RECEIVED REMUNERATED (R’000)

NAME REMUNERATION OTHER ALLOWANCE OTHER RE-IMBURSEMENTS TOTAL

Mr S Tsiane 54 54

Mr A Phala   6 6

Ms J Bodibe  116 116

Mr S Motloung    96 96

Ms E Kula 50 50

Mr K Cowley  30 30

Mr M Samela 36 36

Mr S Sobuwa ** 3 3

Prof N Taukobong  17 17

Table 32:  Board members remuneration

1
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18 RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Compensation Fund has progressed in implementing a formalised and systematic risk 
management process in order to provide reasonable assurance that set strategies and 
objectives are achieved. This was driven and achieved through strengthening and enhance-
ment of the following:

18.1. Risk Management Enablers

During the 2015/16 nancial year, the Fund continued to build on its Risk Management 
capabilities through the review and updating of the Risk Management Policy, Strategy and 
Methodology in line with the King Code on Corporate Governance for South Africa 2009 
(King III) and the Public Sector Risk Management Framework (PSRMF) to ensure that they 
remain relevant to the Fund and any possible changes in the operating environment, pre-
scripts and best practices. The policy, strategy and methodology were submitted to the Risk 
Management Committee of the Fund for consideration and recommendation for approval 
by the Compensation Commissioner. The Fund remains consistent in implementing the 
approved Risk Management Policy through the strategy and methodology.

18.2. Risk Management Process

The Fund has the Strategic, Fraud and Operational Risk Registers.  During the nancial year, 
risk monitoring workshops were conducted on a monthly basis to ensure that treatment 
action plans are adequately addressed and that risks are reduced within the approved risk 
appetite and tolerance levels. Furthermore, management and sta  continued to receive 
training to assist them in managing the risks e ciently and e ectively. 
 
In order to ensure that there is an orderly and timely recovery of critical functions from 
a disaster or disruptive event in the Fund and that all employees are better prepared in 
the event of extended service outages caused by the factors beyond the Fund’s control, a 
Business Continuity Plan was developed and approved during the year. The aforesaid aims 
to assure that in such circumstances, services are restored as e ectively as possible in the 
short possible timeframe to enable the Fund to deliver the services to its stakeholders. A 
Crisis Management Plan was also developed and approved to assist the Fund to be thor-
oughly equipped in managing crisis.

18.3. Governance 

The Director General (DG) as the Accounting Authority has been assigned by the Minister 
of the Department of Labour, as being responsible for the risk management processes. It 
is in this regard that the Risk Management Committee (RMC) of the Fund was appointed 
to assist and advise both the DG and the Commissioner on how risks should be managed 
throughout the Fund.  This Committee is supported by the Risk Management Unit in ful ll-
ing its mandate.
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18.4. Risk Management Committee Composition and Attendance

During the 2015/16 nancial year, the RMC provided advice and recommendations for im-
provement to the DG and the Commissioner and reported on the extent of e ectiveness of 
risk management in the Fund.

The RMC convened seven (7) meetings during the year comprising of (six (6) Ordinary meet-
ings and one (1) Special meeting. 

Table 33: The Composition of the committee and attendance
 

THE COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE AND ATTENDANCE

NAME MEETINGS HELD ATTENDED MEMBERSHIP/DESIGNATION

Mr Luyanda Mangquku 7 7 Chairperson

Mr Khulekani Buthelezi 7 6 Representative of the Audit Committee

Mr Vuyo Mafata 7 4 Acting Compensation Commissioner

Ms Katlego Mocwiri 7 7 Director: Risk Management

Ms Tshidi Ikaneng 7 4 Independent RMC Member

Mr Johnny Modiba 7 0 Chief Financial O cer

Mr Tshepo Mokomatsidi 7 5 Chief Director: Corporate Support Services 

Ms Lungisa Matandela 7 4 Chief Director: Operations

Mr J Ledwaba 7 2 Acting Chief Director: Corporate Support

Ms Boitumelo Gumbu 7 7 Director: Internal Audit

Mr V Pillay 7 4 Business Relations Manager

Mr Johan Nel 7 1 Business Relations Manager

Mr Bheki Gutshwa 7 2 National Treasury Representative

Ms Mmabatho Raganya 7 2 National Treasury Representative

18.5. RMC Roles and Responsibilities

The RMC continued to ful l its roles and responsibilities outlined in its approved Terms of 
Reference. After each RMC meeting, the Committee consistently provided the Minister, the 
DG and the Commissioner with its independent report on the e ectiveness of the risk man-
agement process as well as strategic recommendations to address any de ciencies identi-

ed by the Committee in pursuit of improving the control environment and service delivery 
of the Fund. 

The RMC reviewed and recommended the following prescripts for approval by the DG and/ 
Commissioner: 

 Risk Management Policy, Strategy, Methodology, the Fund’s Risk Appetite and 
 Tolerance Framework, Business Continuity Management Policy, Business Continuity  
 Plan, Compliance Risk Management Policy and Strategy. 
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The RMC also ensured that adequate and e ective measures are taken and implemented 
by management to curb fraud and corruption activities within the Fund. The Committee 
continues to monitor that robust prevention and detection measures are implemented for 
the Fund to uphold to its zero tolerance approach to fraud and corruption. 

18.6. Management

Management at all levels throughout the Fund are accountable to the DG and the Minister 
for designing, implementing and monitoring the risk management processes and integrat-
ing them into their daily operations.  This was further formalised by including risk manage-
ment as part of Core Management Criteria in the Performance Agreements of all Managers.

The RMC and the Risk Management Unit have provided the advisory services to manage-
ment in assisting them to manage risks e ectively. It is worth noting that management did 
not always implement timeously the agreed upon treatment action plans aimed at reducing 
the risks to acceptable levels of the Fund’s risk appetite and tolerance. This can be attribut-
ed to signi cant vacancies in critical positions which emerged at senior management levels, 
mainly due to restructuring. All these vacancies were subsequently lled in the 4th quarter 
of the year.

It is our well-considered view that the Risk Management Unit and the RMC delivered on 
their mandate through regular reporting and escalation of risk related matters a ecting 
the Fund as well as making practical recommendations on how these matters could be 
addressed. The timeous reporting, escalations and recommendations were referred to all 
relevant structures, including the Audit Committee, Advisory Board, Minister, DG and the 
Commissioner. 

18.8. Risk Management Progress

The Risk Management Unit was able to execute 91% of its total Operational Plan for the 
2015/16 nancial year, with 6% of the Plan in progress and only 3% not started. All the 
remaining items of the plan will be completed in the rst quarter and second quarter of the 
2016/17 nancial year. 
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19 INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT 

• Background information

Currently the Fund does not have an Internal Control Unit within its structure. The 
 “Internal Control” function is performed on an ad-hoc structure within the O ce of  

the CFO and is headed by a Director.

The Internal Control Unit is responsible for Audit Co-ordination, the Audit Action   
 plan, responding to Audit ndings, nancial misconduct investigations and compliance 
 management.

• Audit Co-ordination

 A request for information register was put in place to track and monitor all information 
 requested by the Auditor General.

 The Internal Control Unit is the main custodian of the AGSA request for information 
 register. As at 31 March 2016, 95 requests for information were received from AGSA 
 as part of the 2015/16 Audit planning phase. Most of these request were fully 
 submitted with some partially submitted by the Fund.

 As part of ensuring that su cient information is provided to AGSA, the Request for 
 Information Register was updated weekly by the Unit and sent weekly to the various 
 directorates. On-going meetings between the directorates and AGSA were held to 
 clarify misunderstandings of requests. One of the challenges encountered by the 
 Unit in the Co-ordination of the AGSA Audit was requests for information that were 
 not su ciently understood by management or AGSA needed clarity on the 
 Fund’s internal and operational processes. Both the AGSA and management of the 
 Fund met regularly to clarify matters. 

 A register of Communication of ndings was kept by the Internal Control Unit. As at 
 31 March 2016, 3 Communication of Findings were issued by the AGSA and all were 
 fully responded to. All ndings were followed up with the various directorates and  
 the responses were reviewed to ensure that communications related to ndings 
 were responded to.

• The Audit Action plan

 The Fund was issued with the 2014/15 Management Report with a total of 184 
 ndings, compared to the 2013/14 which had 317 ndings during August 2015. The 
 Internal Control Unit co-ordinated and assisted the various directorates to come up 
 with Audit Action Plans for the ndings.

 The Audit Action Plan was implemented in Sept 2015 by the unit and was followed 
 up and monitored on a monthly basis. As at 31 March 2016, 60 out of the 184 ndings 
 issued by AGSA in the 2014/15 nancial year, were considered resolved by Management. 
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Internal Audit was engaged to verify Portfolio of Evidence (POE’s) submitted to Internal  
 Control in response to resolved ndings for completeness, accuracy and de ciencies 
 in Internal Control measures.

 As per the veri cation report issued by Internal Audit, 19 of these ndings were 
 considered to be resolved, 20 partially resolved and 21 not adequately resolved. 
 Internal Control is engaging relevant directorates to review the Portfolio of evidence 
 in question.

 Monthly meetings were held with Directors from all the Units to get the latest status 
 update on the Audit Action plans. Statistics and monthly reports on the Audit Action 
 Plan were tabled at the Management Committee (MANCO) and the Executive 
 Committee (EXCO) respectively.

 In January 2016, the Acting Compensation Commissioner facilitated a workshop to 
 interrogate the Audit Action Plan. In this workshop 49 critical ndings were identi ed 
 and resolutions were made to the Audit Action Plan. Internal Control was tasked with 
 co-ordinating and monitoring the Resolutions. A Portfolio of evidence le was kept 
 by the Internal Control Unit for all ndings that were considered to be resolved by 
 Management. The Unit was responsible for following up and ensuring that POE’s for 
 all ndings that management deemed to be resolved were submitted. An extensive 
 process to check the validity and accuracy of the POE’s was conducted by the Internal 
 Control Unit prior to submitting the POE’s for nal veri cation by Internal Audit.

 The Fund was not able to resolve some of the ndings due to their complex nature, 
 but the Internal Control Unit will be continuing with the monitoring and further 
 implementation of the Audit Action plan to address critical ndings.

• Financial misconduct Investigations

As at 31 March 2016, a total of 130 cases were recorded in the nancial misconduct 
register. A Financial Misconduct Advisory Committee (FINMAC) was set up to over-
see the investigation process and make recommendations to the Commissioner on 
actions to be taken as well as corrective action to address identi ed internal control 
de ciencies.

A total of 3 meetings were held by FINMAC during the year. As at 30 December 2015, 
a total of 70 cases were investigated by the Unit and presented to FINMAC.          

Out of the 70 cases, 46 cases were recommended for condonation and a submission 
was prepared accordingly for the Director General’s approval. 8 Cases were referred 
to Employee Relations (ER) for further recommendations. 4 Cases related to overpay-
ments from Operations and 2 cases were duplicates. A further 60 cases were investi-
gated and presented to FINMAC in March 2016. Out of these 60 cases, 9 cases were 
recommended for condonation, 17 cases recommended to be removed from the 
register as no nancial misconduct occurred,  5 cases con rmed as duplicates and to 
be removed from the register and 29 cases referred back for further investigation by 
Internal Control. 
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• Compliance Management

A total of 31 nance related policies were critically analysed and reviewed by the Fund 
and after much deliberations 20 were sent to the Fund’s Accounting Authority for 
approval. As at December 2015, a total of 20 policies were approved by the Director 
General. The balance of the 11 policies still needed further review by management.

   INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

Internal Audit is established in terms of section 51(1) (ii) of the Public Finance Management 
Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999, as amended, read with the Treasury Regulations 27.1 and 27.2. 
The sections states that “the Accounting Authority must ensure that the entity has and 
maintain a system of Internal Audit under the control and direction of the Audit Committee, 
complying with and operating in accordance with the regulations and instructions pre-
scribed in terms of section 76 and 77 of the PFMA.”

The key objectives of Internal Audit are to assist the Fund to achieve its objectives by pro-
viding reasonable assurance on whether: 

• Governance process is e ective by establishing and preserving values, setting goals,  
 monitoring activities, performance, and de ning the measures of accountability;
• Risk management system is adequate, e ective, and e cient;  
• System of internal control is adequate, e ective, and e cient
• Integrity and reliability of nancial information is maintained;
• Resources are utilised economically, e ectively, and e ciently;
• Assets are safeguarded; and
• Rules, regulations, policies, procedures, and laws are complied with. 

Key Activities Includes:

• Development of a three year Internal Rolling Plan and the Operational Plan, which is  
approved by the Commissioner and the Audit Committee;

• Execute the approved Internal Audit Plan;
• Report quarterly to Management and the Audit Committee;
• Perform secretarial functions to the Audit Committee;
• Review the Internal Audit and Audit Committee Charters;
• Review Internal Audit policies and procedures; 
• Monitor compliance to the procedures, standards, and the code of ethics;
• Sta  training and development to ensure that the Internal Audit sta  is competent.

Summary of audit work done by Internal Audit

• The Internal Audit and Audit Committee Charters were reviewed and approved.
• The three year Rolling Plan was approved by the Audit Committee and the Commissioner.
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• The Directorate was fully capacitated as at 31 March 2016. 
• The directorate trained three (3) learners on the Internal Audit Technicians (IAT) and  

six (6) Professional Internal Auditor (PIA) Learnership Programmes.
• The Directorate independently executed audit projects based on the approved Risk 

Based Annual Plan and provided practical recommendations. The reports were 
communicated to responsible management, the Commissioner, Audit Steering 
Committee, and the Audit Committee. The details of executed projects are provided 
in the table below:

ASSURANCE PROJECTS

NO INTERNAL AUDIT AREA NUMBER OF FINDINGS REPORT RATING

1 Accounts Payable 7 Critical

2 Risk Management 6 Signi cant

3 IT General Controls Review 10 Signi cant

4 Supply Chain Management (Compliance) 3 Signi cant

5 Performance Information PR 4 3 Critical

6 Annual Report Analysis 3 Signi cant

7 uarterly Performance Information ( PR1) 3 Signi cant

8 Class 13 Migration to RMA 10 Signi cant

9 Recruitment and Selection Process 11 Signi cant

10 Turnaround Strategy Review 6 Signi cant

11 Inter le Project 7 Signi cant

12 uarterly Performance Information ( PR 2) 4 Signi cant

13 Compensation and Claims (Compliance) 1 Signi cant

14 Free State Provincial O ce 18 Signi cant

15 Northern Cape Provincial O ce 21 Signi cant

16 Performance Information ( PR 3) 2 Signi cant

17 Employer Assessment Model 5 Signi cant

18 PFMA Compliance Report 4 Signi cant

19 Interim Financial Statements 8 Signi cant

100

Table 34: Assurance Projects
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FOLLOW UP REVIEWS

NO INTERNAL AUDIT AREA
NUMBER OF 

FINDINGS PER THE 
ORIGINAL REPORT

REPORT 
RATING

FINDINGS 
RESOLVED

PARTIALLY 
RESOLVED

NOT 
RESOLVED

1 Revenue and debtors-fol-
low up

23 Critical 12 3 8

2 Call Centre Follow-up 6 Signi cant 1 1 4

3 SAP Follow up 14 Signi cant 9 1 4

4 Accounts Payable Follow up 7 Signi cant 4 2 1

5 Budget Follow up 8 Signi cant 1 0 7

6 Contract Management 
Follow up

10 Signi cant 4 1 5

7 Debt Collection Follow up 5 Signi cant 2 0 3

100 33 8 32

Table 35: Follow up Reviews

STATUS ON THE AG FINDINGS VERIFIED BY INTERNAL AUDIT AS AT 31 MARCH ‘16

FINDINGS NUMBER

Findings raised by the Auditor General 184

Findings reported as resolved by management as per the POE received. 60

Findings veri ed by Internal Audit as at 31 March 2016 60

Findings resolved as veri ed by Internal Audit 19

Findings partially resolved as veri ed by Internal Audit 20

Findings not resolved as veri ed by Internal Audit 21

Audit Committee objectives and activities 

The Audit Committee was established in terms of the PFMA and Treasury Regulations to 
assist the Executive Authority in ful lling its oversight responsibility. The duties of the Com-
mittee are broadly de ned in Section 27.1 of the Treasury Regulations. 
The objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the Executive and Accounting Authorities 
in ful lling their oversight responsibilities for:
 
• The integrity of the Fund’s nancial statements;
• The Fund’s compliance with legislation, legal and regulatory requirements;
• The auditor’s quali cations and independence, and 
• The performance of the Fund’s internal audit function and independent auditors. 

Table 36: Status on the AG ndings veri ed by internal audit as at 31 March 2016
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Audit Committee Activities

The responsibilities of the AuditCommittee include the nancial reporting process, the sys-
tem of internal control, risk management, the audit process, and the monitoring of compli-
ance with laws, regulations and the Fund’s own code of business conduct.

Internal Control

• Consider the e ectiveness of the internal control systems, including information 
 technology, security and control.
• Understand the scope of internal and external auditor’s review of internal control 
 over nancial reporting, and obtain reports on signi cant ndings and recommendations 
 together with management’s responses.
• Assess whether the Fund’s assets have been properly safeguarded and used.

Internal Audit

• Review the e ectiveness of the internal audit function.
• Review charter, plans, activities, sta ng and organisational structure of the Internal 
 Audit
• Approve the Risk-based three year Rolling Plan and the Annual Audit Plan.
• Review the Capacity Building and Training Strategy within the Internal Audit function.
• Monitor the work of the Internal Audit against the Annual Audit Plan.
• Review and evaluate the reports and results of the work undertaken by the Internal 

Audit and the implementation of follow up action required.
• Ensure that duplication of e ort is avoided, through an e ective partnership/combined 
 assurance between the Internal Audit and the o ce of the Auditor-General.
• Review compliance with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of 
 Internal Auditing and Code of Ethics of the Institute of Internal Auditors.

External Audit -Auditor-General

Review the e ectiveness of the external audit function and through the following:

• Review the Audit Plan of the Auditor-General (AG) and comment on the scope and 
 approach and their co-ordination with Internal Audit.
• Review any accounting and auditing concerns arising from the internal and external 
 audit.
• Make recommendations regarding follow up work, arising out of reports and queries 
 raised by the AG.
• Discuss the extent of the external auditor’s proposed audit coverage.
• Discuss concerns about the nature, extent and frequency of management’s 
 assessment of the accounting and control systems in place to prevent and detect 
 fraud, with the external auditor.
• Review the extent of the external auditor’s planned reliance on the work of Internal 
 Auditors.

Risk Management

• Review the Fund’s risk pro le on an annual basis.
• Ensure that an Enterprise Risk Management System is in place and that Internal 
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 Audit evaluates and reports on the e ectiveness of the process.  
• Review that the Fraud Prevention plan is implemented to prevent and detect fraud.

Compliance

• Review the e ectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with laws and 
 regulations and the results of management’s investigation and follow-up (including 
 disciplinary action) of any instances of non-compliance. 
• Review the process for communicating the code of conduct to the Fund’s personnel 
 and for monitoring compliance therewith.

Management Accounts and Annual Financial Statements

• Review the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of the nancial information provided to 
 management and other users of such information and annually review the Annual 
 Financial Statements and recommend its approval to the Director-General.
• Review signi cant accounting and reporting issues, including complex or unusual 
 transactions and highly judgmental areas, and recent professional and regulatory 
 pronouncements, and understand their impact on the nancial statements.
• Review the Annual Financial Statements and consider whether they are complete, 
 consistent with information known to committee members and re ect appropriate 
 accounting principles.
• Review other sections of the Annual Report and related regulatory matters before 
 release and consider the accuracy and the completeness of the information.

Reporting

• Regularly report to the Accounting/Executive Authority about committee activities 
 and issues that arise with respect to the quality or integrity of the Fund’s Financial 
 Statements, the compliance with legal or regulatory requirements, and the 
 performance of the internal audit function.
• Provide an open avenue of communication between internal audit, the external 
 auditors, management and the Accounting Authority.
• Report annually to the Executive Authority, describing the committee’s composition, 
 responsibilities and how they were discharged, and any other information required 
 by rules.
• Review any other reports the Fund issues that relate to committee responsibilities.

Ethics

• Monitor the ethical conduct of the Fund, its executives and senior o cials.
• Review any statements on ethical standards or requirements for the Fund and assist 
 in developing such standards and requirements.
• Identify any violations of ethical conduct.
• Make recommendations on any potential con ict of interest or questionable 
 situations of a material nature.

Other Responsibilities

• Review and assess the adequacy of the audit committee charter annually.
• Evaluate the committee’s and individual members’ performance on a regular basis.

2
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   COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

During the 2015/16 nancial year the Compensation Fund has adhered to various pieces of 
legislation such as the Public Service Act, 1994 (as amended) and the Public Service Reg-
ulations, 2001 .The Fund is also continuing to implement the Compensation for Occupa-
tional Injuries and Diseases Act (Act No.130 of 1993) (COIDA). The Fund is continuing with 
the implementation and revision of various departmental circulars and policies. The Fund 
strived to adhere to the principles of the King III report. Oversight structures such as the 
Risk Committee and the Audit Committee have been established to enhance the Corporate 
Governance. These oversight structures are functioning e ectively in advising the Commis-
sioner, Director-General and the Minister to ensure adherence to the various legislations 
and policies by the Fund.

• Institute and oversee special investigations as needed.
• Con rm annually that all responsibilities outlined in this charter have been carried out.
• Attendance of Audit Committee meetings by audit committee members (Tabular form) 

Attendance of audit committee meetings by audit committee members

The table below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS: AUDIT COMMITTEE REMUNERATION

NAME Ms R Kalidass Mr K Buthelezi Mr L Mangquku Mr C Terhoeven Mr F Xaba *

QUALIFICATIONS Chartered 
Accountant ACCA Chartered 

Accountant
Chartered 
Accountant

BA Hons (Indus-
trial Psychology)

INTERNAL OR 
EXTERNAL 

Chairperson
External

Member
External

Member
External

Member
External

Member
External

IF INTERNAL, 
POSITION IN THE 
PUBLIC ENTITY

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

DATE APPOINTED October 2013 October 2013 October 2013 October 2013 May 2014

DATE RESIGNED N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

MEETINGS
ATTENDED 10/10 9/10 10/10 8/10 6/10

21 

Table 37: Audit committee members: Audit committee remuneration
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222 FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 

As required by Section 29.1.1(e) of the Treasury Regulations prescribed under the PFMA, 
the CF prepared an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy to e ectively manage the risk of 
fraud, to which the CF is exposed.

In line with the Anti-Corruption Strategy launched by the National Government, the Compen-
sation Fund (Fund) adopted and enforced a zero tolerance stance to fraud and corruption. 

All reported incidents of fraud were recorded, investigated and followed up by the applica-
tion of available remedies and sanctions through the implementation of appropriate pre-
ventive, detective and corrective measures. During the year under review plans were put 
in place to enhance the prevention, detection as well as investigation capacity of the Fund. 
To a large extent, a number of investigations were carried out during the year under review 
and the reported cases are at various stages of investigation.  

The Fund was less successful in implementing the prevention and detection aspects of the 
anti-fraud and corruption strategy. However the Fund continued to encourage the use of 
its fraud-hotline for whistle-blowers to report allegations. These minimal implementation 
measures were due to chronic capacity constraints experienced by the Fraud Awareness 
and Investigation Unit.

The Whistle blowing mechanisms in place to facilitate reporting of fraud and corruption 
include fraud-hotline; e-mails; walk-ins or reporting directly to the line Manager if he/ she is 
not implicated. The reported cases of fraud and corruption are recorded and investigated 
with the nal report containing ndings and recommendations issued to business for im-
plementation. Follow-ups on implementation of recommendations are made with business 
on a regular basis with progress presented to the Risk Management Committee at-least 
quarterly. Statistics on reported cases on Fraud and Corruption investigated during the 

nancial year under review is disclosed under Material Losses through Criminal Conduct 
section of the Annual Financial Statements.

MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

All Senior Managers of the Fund including o cials have declared their nancial interest as 
per the requirement by the Public Service Commission and the Department of Public Ser-
vices and Administration. O cials within Financial and the Supply Chain Management have 
since been required by the Auditor-General to also declare their nancial interests. O cials 
are, also, from time to time required to declare their nancial interests during oversight 
structures’ meetings. All CF o cials undergo the security clearance process.
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24 CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Code clari es and acts as a guideline to all employees spelling out clearly what is expected 
of them from an ethical point of view. This normally occurs when both employer and employee 
in an employment relationship sign a performance agreement. The declaration is signed by the 
employee and attached in the agreed performance agreement as a code of conduct declaring 
that the employee is expected to adhere to the code when performing his or her duties and 
agreeing to it. This is a signed declaration of commitment and abiding to the expected conduct 
regarding performance of duties in an employer employee relationship.

The primary objectives of this document are: 

• To ensure that employees are aware of the Laws of the country, stay away from 
 politics at work, respect authority (protocol), respect and treat the public with dignity 
 as well as respect fellow employees;
• To pledge and commit to perform duties as per the agreed  and acceptable standards; 
 and 
• To guide employees on what needs to be done to avoid con icts of rights and interests 
 as well as their personal conduct in both public and private capacity that might bring 
 the image of the Department into disrepute.

The Code requires its employees to operate in a professional manner that would result in 
the rendering of e ective and su cient service delivery to the public and communities in 
general. Commitment in the Code of Conduct will eliminate corruption as a destructor to 
service delivery within the Department.

The last point to note is that should there be any breach of this Code of Conduct by the em-
ployee, depending on the severity of the misconduct, disciplinary action may be instituted 
against such an o cial. 

It is therefore important and reasonable enough that every employee must read, under-
stand and sign a copy of the Code of Conduct on completion of the Performance Agree-
ment to be attached as an annexure as an indication that the said employee will conduct 
him/herself in a manner that would be acceptable and not questionable at all times.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES 

The Fund is committed to providing a healthy and safe working environment for all its em-
ployees and stakeholders by implementing a Safety, Health, and Environmental (SHE) Policy 
and Procedure. The SHE Policy and Procedure complies with the Occupational Health and 
Safety Act, Act No. 85 of 1993, as amended. The objective of the SHE Policy and Procedure 
in the Fund is to create a consistent, reliable system of occupational health and safety that 
can be evaluated on an on-going basis to ensure continuous improvement and sustainabil-
ity. The Fund will ensure that its activities and processes do not impact negatively on the 
environment by complying with the relevant legislation and by adopting the best safety, 
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health and environment (SHE) practices and procedures through a system that will allow 
continual improvement on the following: 

• Hazard and risk identi cation, monitoring and control measures Communication 
 Strategies on safety, health and environmental issues SHE training and awareness 
 programmes. 

The following functions were achieved: 

• The Environmental Policy statement was approved.
• Water quality test was conducted to ensure that water is suitable for consumption in 
 the Compensation House.
• Health and Safety within the organisation was maintained as prescribed in terms 
 of the Occupational Health and Safety Act, (Act 85 of 1993), as the required 
 appointments were made and duties performed.
• Trainings amongst Occupational health and safety committee members were 
 conducted. SHE inspections were conducted. 
• Evacuation drill exercise was conducted in Compensation House building.
• Safety within the workplace was maintained as safety risk and hazards identi ed 
 were attended to and the challenge with large volumes of paper was minimised by 
 appointing paper recycling service provider.  

   SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The Fund has invested R1.2 billion in Socially Responsible Investments at the PIC that will 
assist in job creation. It is envisaged that at the end of 2018 R3.4 billion will be invested in 
this area in order to create more jobs.

22
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Report of the Audit Committee for the period 2015/16

Introduction

The committee is pleased to present its nal annual audit committee report for the nan-
cial year ending 31 March 2016.

This report is presented accordance with the requirements of the Public Finance Manage-
ment Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended and the recommendations contained in the King III 
Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa and the King Code of Governance Princi-
ples (King III).

Audit Committee Responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as 
its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its a airs in compliance with this charter and 
has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.
The Audit Committee also reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from 
sections 51 (1) (a) (ii) and 77 of the Public Finance Management Act read with Treasury Reg-
ulation 27.1

Committee Meetings

The Audit Committee of the Compensation Fund comprises of four independent members, 
and one Board representative, who have been instrumental in providing independent ad-
vice to the Fund.

Audit Committee Composition for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 is as follows: 

AUDIT COMMITTEE COMPOSITION: 1 APRIL 2015 TO 31 MARCH 2016

NAME QUALIFICA-
TIONS

INTERNAL
OR EXTERNAL

IF INTERNAL, 
POSITION IN 
THE PUBLIC 

ENTITY

DATE 
APPOINTED

DATE
RESIGNED

MEETINGS
ATTENDED

Ms. R. Kalidass Chartered 
Accountant

Chairperson
External N/A October 2013 N/A 10/10

Mr. K. Buthelezi
B.Comm and 
Diploma in 
Auditing

Member
External N/A October 2013 N/A 9/10

Mr. L. Mangquku Chartered 
Accountant

Member
External N/A October 2013 N/A 10/10

Mr. C. Terhoeven Chartered 
Accountant

Member
External N/A October 2013 N/A 8/10

Mr. F. Xaba
BA Hons
(Industrial
Psychology)

Board
representative N/A May 2014 N/A 6/10

27  AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 
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The system of internal controls is designed to provide cost-e ective assurance that assets 
are safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital are e ciently managed. The system 
of internal control applied by the Compensation Fund over nancial and risk management 
is ine ective, ine cient and not transparent.

In accordance with the PFMA and the King III Report on Corporate Governance require-
ments, internal audit is required to provide the audit committee and management with 
assurance that the internal controls, governance and risk management processes of the 
Compensation Fund are appropriate and e ective.

This is achieved by means of the risk management, as well as the identi cation of corrective
actions and suggested enhancements to the internal controls and processes. The Risk
Management Unit is currently in the process of being capacitated to ensure that risk
management is implemented at both strategic and operational levels within the organisa-
tion.

Internal audit performed periodic independent evaluations of the adequacy and e ective-
ness of internal controls, nancial reporting, performance information and the integrity of 
information systems and records.

The following is a summary of internal audit work which was completed during the year 
under review:

Detailed Audit Projects

ASSURANCE PROJECTS

NO INTERNAL AUDIT AREA NUMBER OF FINDINGS REPORT RATING

1 Accounts Payable 7 Critical

2 Risk Management 6 Signi cant

3 IT General Controls Review 10 Signi cant

4 Supply Chain Management (Compliance) 3 Signi cant

5 Performance Information PR 4 3 Critical

6 Annual Report Analysis 3 Signi cant

7 uarterly Performance Information ( PR1) 3 Signi cant

8 Class 13 Migration to RMA 10 Signi cant

9 Recruitment and Selection Process 11 Signi cant

10 Turnaround Strategy Review 6 Signi cant

11 Inter le Project 7 Signi cant

12 uarterly Performance Information ( PR 2) 4 Signi cant

13 Compensation and Claims (Compliance) 1 Signi cant

14 Free State Provincial O ce 18 Signi cant

15 Northern Cape Provincial O ce 21 Signi cant

16 Performance Information ( PR 3) 2 Signi cant
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17 Employer Assessment Model 5 Signi cant

18 PFMA Compliance Report 4 Signi cant

19 Interim Financial Statements 8 Signi cant

100

FOLLOW UP REVIEWS

NO INTERNAL AUDIT AREA
NUMBER OF 

FINDINGS PER THE 
ORIGINAL REPORT

REPORT 
RATING

FINDINGS 
RESOLVED

PARTIALLY 
RESOLVED

NOT 
RESOLVED

1 Revenue and debtors-fol-
low up

23 Critical 12 3 8

2 Call Centre Follow-up 6 Signi cant 1 1 4

3 SAP Follow up 14 Signi cant 9 1 4

4 Accounts Payable Follow up 7 Signi cant 4 2 1

5 Budget Follow up 8 Signi cant 1 0 7

6 Contract Management 
Follow up

10 Signi cant 4 1 5

7 Debt Collection Follow up 5 Signi cant 2 0 3

100 33 8 32

As at 31 March 2016, 70% of the approved Annual Audit Plan was completed. The
implementation rate of internal audit ndings was 45% from the follow-up internal audits
conducted.

The Committee is satis ed that the internal audit function is operating e ectively and that it
continues to provide assurance in relation to the risks pertinent to the Compensation Fund 
in its audits.

The Committee remains concerned about the slow progress on the implementation of
management actions to address audit ndings and related risks associated with the
Compensation Fund.

There were signi cant matters which came to the attention of the Audit Committee to indi-
cate that material breakdown of controls, procedures and systems occurred during the year 
under review.

The following were areas of concerns:

• Ine ective and ine cient Information Technology Systems/Strategy;
• Inadequate Performance Management and Monitoring;
• Lack of capacity and skills, especially in Financial Management;
• Poor contracts and records management;
• Inadequate action taken to minimize Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure;
• Ine ective Supply Chain Management processes;
• Ine ective Revenue Management and Debt Collection;
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• Non-compliance with laws, regulations, policies and contracts;
• Controls de ciencies are not timely addressed, as evident by the status of follow-up
 activities and repeat/recurring ndings; and
• Recommendations from assurance providers and management action plans are not

timeously implemented.

Accordingly, we report that the general system of internal control for the period under 
review was unfortunately ine ective and ine cient, and that the internal controls are not 
operating satisfactorily to ensure that the nancial records may be relied upon for the 
preparation of the Annual Financial Statements and that accountability for assets and 
liabilities is maintained.

In-Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Report

The public entity has reporting monthly and quarterly to Treasury as is required by the 
PFMA. The audit committee is dissatis ed with the content and quality of monthly reports 
prepared and issued by the Compensation Fund during the year under review.
The Audit Committee will monitor the process and procedures designed and implemented 
to ensure that there is an improvement in the quality, accuracy and reliability of perfor-
mance information for the forthcoming nancial year and achievement of planned targets.

Evaluation of Financial Statements

The audit committee has:

• Reviewed and discussed the audited annual nancial statements to be included in 
 the Annual Report, with the Auditor-General and the Commissioner.
• Reviewed the Auditor-General‘s management report and management‘s response
 thereto.
• Reviewed any changes in accounting policies and practices.
• Reviewed the entity‘s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions.
• Reviewed the information on predetermined objectives to be included in the annual
 report.
• Reviewed any signi cant adjustments resulting from the audit.
• Ensured that the quality and timeliness of the nancial information availed to the 
 Audit Committee for oversight purposes during the year such as interim nancial 

statements.

Whilst the audit opinion remains a Disclaimer, the Audit Committee is pleased to note the
following improvement in the audit outcome since the previous nancial year:

• 17% decline in ndings a ecting the Auditors Report
• 23% decline in total number of ndings included in the AGSA Management Letter
• The following issues on the audit report which formed the basis of a disclaimer in 

the prior year were resolved:
• Accruals
• Commitments
• Related party transactions

 • Aggregate misstatements.
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TOTAL NUMBER OF AUDIT FINDINGS

NATURE OF AUDIT 
FINDINGS

2014/15 
AUDIT CYCLE

2015/16 
AUDIT CYCLE % CHANGE

Matters a ecting the auditor’s report 53 44 17%

Other important matters 91 55 40%

Administrative matters 6 42 -600%

Regional audits 34 0 100%

TOTAL 184 141 23%
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Total number of Audit Findings 2014/15 Audit Cycle

Total number of Audit Findings 2015/16 Audit Cycle

Total number of Audit Findings % Change

auditor’s report
Other important

matters
Administrative

matters

We concur with and accept the Auditor-General of South Africa’s report on the annual 
nancial statements, and are of the opinion that the audited nancial statements should be 

accepted together with the report of the Auditor-General of South Africa.

Auditor-General of South Africa

We have met with the o ce of the Auditor-General of South Africa to ensure the resolution 
of signi cant issues. We shall continue to engage regarding corrective action to be taken to
address the root causes of audit ndings.

Remedial Action

The Audit Committee believes that the following 8 interventions are required to address the 
root causes of audit ndings and to turn around the situation at the Fund:

• Implementation of the recommendation of the Skill Audit
• Implementation of the Fraud Prevention measures across the Fund, as contained in 
 the Plan
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• Consequence management and holding sta  accountable
• Performance and documents management
• Business Process Mapping and Re-engineering
• ICT Governance and Management
• Monthly management accounts and proper reconciliations
• Skills transfer and capacity building

In addressing the above, Management has compiled an Action Plan which aims to address
some aspect of service delivery and nancial management in the Compensation Fund. It
contains a set of items that require urgent attention in the medium term to ensure that the
Compensation Fund improves the quality of its nancial information, pays out claims as 
required and addresses its people management issues.

The set of activities have been clustered into four core areas and is detailed in the
Commissioner’s Report:

• Improving Financial Administration
• Improving Customer Service Improvement
• Improving the overall Internal Administration
• Improving the Human Resource Management environment

Our oversight responsibilities for the forthcoming nancial year will include rigorous mon-
itoring of managements adherence to the above mentioned action plan. Should this plan be
implemented as intended, we are con dent that the Compensation Fund will be able to
reposition itself in order to e ectively and e ciency deliver upon its mandate.

Conclusions

We would like to extend our appreciation to the Executive Authority, Accounting Authority,
Commissioner, Management, as well as the internal and external auditors for their e orts 
made in addressing concerns raised by the Audit Committee. We look forward to an im-
proved audit outcome in the 2016/2017 nancial year.

Ms Rachel Kalidass
Chairperson: Audit Committee
Date: 31 July 2016
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PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
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28   INTRODUCTION 

The primary purpose of Human Resources at the Compensation Fund is to strike a balance 
between meeting the needs of employees and what best serves the market driven needs of 
the Compensation Fund.

During the year under review the following HR goals were set:

• Implement Recruitment and Retention Strategy through maintenance of 10% 
 vacancy rate
• Full compliance and implementation of the Performance Management Policy
• Strengthening human capacity through the implementation of 100% of training 
 programmes in the Workplace Skills Plan (WSP)
• Manage the Employee Health and Wellness (EHW) Strategy as well as the Gender, 
 Disability and Youth of the Compensation Fund
• Manage the employee relations of the Compensation Fund

The strategic workforce of the Compensation Fund was planned for by all Managers and 
was integrated into each Directorate/Chief Directorate Work plan.

Compliance with the Department of Labour Performance Management system was commu-
nicated to the Compensation Fund sta  throughout the year.

The Employee Health and Wellness Strategy was approved and implemented. The Gender, Dis-
ability and Youth programmes of the Compensation Fund were implemented and reported. 

The following Policies were revised, that is, the Skills Development Policy and the Substance 
Abuse Policy . 

• The Employee Health and Wellness Programmes as well as the Gender, Disability and 
 Youth Programmes were achieved.
• The Skills Audit Project of the Compensation Fund was a huge success.

• Non-compliance to the Performance Management Policy
• Non-compliance to HR legislative prescripts
• The vacancy rate was not reduced as per the set target of 10%
• Finalisation of decentralisation and placement of sta

CF has set itself the future HR plans and goals

• Reduce the vacancy rate of the Compensation Fund to 10% at the end of the 
 2016/2017 nancial year
• Achieve 50% target with the appointment of women at Senior Management level

2
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29

• Achieve 2% target with the appointment of People with Disabilities in the 
Compensation Fund  

• Provide 100% customer service to the Compensation Fund o cials
• Implement the Skills audit recommendations through the Compensation Fund and 

the Provinces 
• Provide Health and Wellness programmes to the Compensation Fund O cials 

Compliance with all HR Legislative Prescripts
• Conduct advocacy sessions on HR related activities.

HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS 

ATTENDANCE OF BOARD MEETINGS

PROGRAMME/
ACTIVITY/
OBJECTIVE

TOTAL 
EXPENDITURE 

FOR THE ENTITY

PERSONNEL
EXPENDITURE

PERSONNEL 
EXPENDITURE 

AS A 
% OF TOTAL 

EXPENDITURE

NO OF
EMPLOYEES

AVERAGE 
PERSONNEL 

COST PER 
EMPLOYEE

(R’000) (R’000) (R’000)

Compensation 
Fund 9 364 033 494 193 5% 1 242 398

TOTAL   9 364 033 494 193 5% 1 242 398

The nal audited personnel related expenditure accounted for by the CF for all the 100% 
approved posts, inclusive of Provincial O ces amounts to R 494 193

PERSONNEL COSTS BY SALARY BAND

LEVEL PERSONNEL
EXPENDITURE

% OF PERSONNEL 
EXP. TO TOTAL 

PERSONNEL COST

NO OF
EMPLOYEES

AVERAGE PER-
SONNEL COST PER 

EMPLOYEE

(R’000) (R’000) (R’000)

Top Management 
(Levels 15-16) 0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 
(Levels 13-14) 15 443 3% 12 1 287

Professional skilled                  
(Levels 9-12) 19 768 4% 120 165

Skilled (Levels 6-8) 424 389 86% 710 598

Semi-skilled  (Levels 4-5) 14 826 3% 197 75

Unskilled  (Levels 2-3) 19 768 4% 13 1 521

TOTAL 494 194 100% 1052 3 645

Table 39: Personnel costs by salary band 

Table 38: Personnel cost by programme for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
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Above table incorporates the personnel expenditure on total personnel cost for 100% ap-
proved posts within the CF, inclusive of Provincial O ces posts. However the percentage 
for the split costs is not re ected in the above gures.

PERFORMANCE REWARDS

PROGRAMME/ ACTIVITY/ 
OBJECTIVE

PERFORMANCE
REWARD

PERSONNEL 
EXPENDITURE

% OF PERFORMANCE 
REWARDS TO TOTAL PER-

SONNEL COST

(R’000)

Top Management 0  1 300 -

Senior  management 0 275 448 -

Professional skilled 0  19 768 -

Skilled 23 163 084 0.01%

Semi-skilled 5 14 826 0.03%

Unskilled 0 19 768 -

TOTAL 28 494 194 0.01%

Table 40: Performance Rewards

TRAINING COST

PROGRAMME/
ACTIVITY/
OBJECTIVE

PERSONNEL
EXPENDITURE

TRAINING
EXPENDITURE

TRAINING 
EXPENDITURE 

AS A 
% OF TOTAL 

EXPENDITURE

NO OF
EMPLOYEES

TRAINED

AVERAGE 
TRAINING
COST PER 

EMPLOYEE

(R’000) (R’000) (R’000)

Top Management 
(Levels 15-16) 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management         
(Levels 13-14) 15 443 9 12 1 287              0.20 

Professional skilled                  
(Levels 9-12) 19 768 113 120 165              0.11 

Skilled (Levels 6-8) 424 389 86 710 598              0.19 

Semi-skilled (Levels 4-5) 14 826 3 197 75              0.34 

Unskilled (Levels 2-3) 19 768 4 13 1 521              0.16 

TOTAL 494 194 215 1 052 3 645              1.00 

Table 41: Training cost 
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EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES AS AT 31 MARCH ‘16 PER PROGRAMME

PROGRAMME/
ACTIVITY/
OBJECTIVE

2014/2015
NO OF

EMPLOYEES

2015/2016
APPROVED

POSTS

2015/2016
NO OF

EMPLOYEES

2015/2016
VACANCIES

% OF
VACANCIES

Programme 1: 
Corporate Management 
and Executive Support

22 35 27 8 23

Programme 2: 
Financial Management 396 431 382 49 11

Programme 3: 
Operations Management 122 148 129 19 13

Programme 4: 
Corporate Services 57 76 54 22 29

TOTAL 597 690 592 98 14

Table 42: Employment and vacancies as at 31 March 2016 per programme

EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES BY SALARY BAND AS AT 31 MARCH ‘16

SALARY BAND
2014/2015

NO OF
EMPLOYEES

2015/2016
APPROVED

POSTS

2015/2016
NO OF

EMPLOYEES

2015/2016
VACANCIES

% OF
VACANCIES

Top Management 
(Levels 15-16) 1 1 0 1 100

Senior Management 
(Levels 13-14) 16 16 12 4 25

Professional skilled                  
(Levels 9-12) 79 116 90 25 22

Skilled (Levels 6-8) 279 299 287 37 12

Semi-skilled  (Levels 4-5) 207 224 190 30 13
Unskilled  (Levels 2-3) 15 34 13 1 3
TOTAL 597 690 592 98 14

During this reporting period, two posts at SMS levels were advertised and lled within a six 
months period, although this might not re ect above given the assumption of duty date 
being 1 April 2016, which is the next reporting period. However, the vacancy rate was 14% 
which attributed to capacity constraints. The CF needs to prioritise the process of nalising 
the decentralisation process which contributed to the delayed process on lling of vacant 
posts within six months.

It should be noted that due to the Restructuring process that occurred within the CF, some 
of the employees are placed in the posts either lower or above their salary levels (held out 
of adjustment) as re ected in the column for number of employees as at end of 2015/16 

nancial year. This was due to a minimal number of approved posts that matches the salary 
levels of the employees.

Table 43: Employment and vacancies by salary band as at 31 March 2016
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EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES BY SALARY BAND AS AT 31 MARCH ‘16

SALARY BAND
EMPLOYMENT AT 
THE BEGINNING 
OF THE PERIOD

APPOINT-
MENTS TERMINATIONS EMPLOYMENT AT THE END 

OF THE PERIOD

Top Management 
(Levels 15-16) 1 0 1 0

Senior Management 
(Levels 13-14) 16 1 4  12

Professional skilled                  
(Levels 9-12) 81 15  6 90

Skilled (Levels 6-8) 258 42 13 287 

Semi-skilled  (Levels 4-5) 189 9 8  190

Unskilled  (Levels 2-3) 14 0 1 13

TOTAL 559 67 33 592

The table below provides information on changes in employment over the nancial year. 
Turnover rates provide an indication of trends in employment pro le of the Compensation 
Fund. 

Table 44: Employment Changes for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 

REASONS FOR STAFF LEAVING AS AT 31 MARCH ‘16

REASON NUMBER % OF TOTAL NO OF STAFF LEAVING

Death 1 0.1

Resignation 11 1.8

Dismissals 3 0.5

Retirement 9 1.5

Ill health 0 0

Expiry of contract 0 0

Other (Transfer out of the Compensation Fund) 9 1.5

TOTAL 33 5.5

In instances where retention e orts are unsuccessful, the recruitment and selection pro-
cess should commence immediately to ensure that the void left does not impact negatively 
on service delivery.

Table 45: Reasons for sta  leaving as at 31 March 2016
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LABOUR RELATIONS: MISCONDUCT AND DISCIPLINARY ACTION

NATURE OF DISCIPLINARY ACTION NUMBER

Verbal Warning 0

Written Warning 0

Final Written Warning 1

Dismissal 1

Equity Target and Employment Equity Status 

EQUITY TARGET AND EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS: MALE AS AT 31 MARCH ‘16

LEVELS MALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

CURRENT TARGET CURRENT TARGET CURRENT TARGET CURRENT TARGET

Top Management 
(Levels 15-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 
(Levels 13-14) 6 0 1 0

Professional skilled                  
(Levels 9-12) 43 0 0 2

Skilled (Levels 6-8) 86 1 3 5

Semi-skilled  (Levels 4-5) 80 2 1 1

Unskilled  (Levels 2-3) 10 0 0 0

TOTAL 225 3 5 8 

One male employee at salary levels 13 to 14 is held out of adjustment.

Table 46: Labour relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

Table 47: Equity Target and Employment Equity Status: Male as at 31 March 2016
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EQUITY TARGET AND EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS: FEMALE AS AT 31 MARCH ‘16

LEVELS FEMALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

CURRENT TARGET CURRENT TARGET CURRENT TARGET CURRENT TARGET

Top Management 
(Levels 15-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 
(Levels 13-14) 6 0 0 0

Professional skilled                  
(Levels 9-12) 42 0 1 2

Skilled (Levels 6-8) 152 11 0 29

Semi-skilled  (Levels 4-5) 101 5 0 0

Unskilled  (Levels 2-3) 3 0 0 0

TOTAL 304 16 1 31

Table 48: Equity Target and Employment Equity Status: Female as at 31 March 2016 

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY: PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH ‘16

LEVELS EMPLOYEES WITH DISABILITIES

MALE FEMALE

CURRENT TARGET CURRENT TARGET

Top Management (Levels 15-16) 0 0 0 0

Senior Management (Levels 13-14) 1 0

Professional skilled (Levels 9-12) 2 0

Skilled (Levels 6-8) 1 1

Semi-skilled  (Levels 4-5) 1 0

Unskilled  (Levels 2-3) 0 0

TOTAL 5 1

The Compensation Fund has no Plan on Employment Equity Targets for People with Dis-
abilities (PWDs) per race, gender and salary levels. However, it is guided by the Cabinet 
Committee’s decision, in line with the delivery Agreement, to retain 2% minimum employ-
ment equity target for the employment of PWDs. Due to inability to attract applicants with 
disabilities, the CF has a variance of 1% between the target (2%) and current target (1%) as 
at the end of the reporting period. In the nancial year 2016/17, the CF would be utilising 
Internship programme to create a talent pool to be used for the lling of entry vacant posts 
in future as an intervention.

Table 49: Employment equity: People with disabilities as at 31 March 2016
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PART E: FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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The reports and statements below comprise the AGSA Report and the Annual Financial 
Statements presented to Parliament:
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Notes to the annual Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March 2016  133 

Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on the Compensation Fund

Introduction

1. I was engaged to audit the  statements of the Compensation Fund set out 
 on pages 95 to169 , which comprise the statement of  position as at 31 March 
 2016, the statement of  performance, statement of changes in net assets, 
 cash  statement and statement of comparison of budget information with actual 
 information for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of 

 accounting policies and other explanatory information.

ts

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
 these  statements in accordance with South African Standards of Generally 
 Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the 
 Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and 
 the Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act of South Africa, 1993 
 (Act No. 130 of 1993) (COIDA), and for such internal control as the accounting authority 
 determines is necessary to enable the preparation of  statements that are 
 free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on the  statements based on 
 conducting the audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. 



87Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

ComComCompenpenpensatsatsationionion FuFuFundndnd AnnAnnAnnualualual ReReReporporport (t (t (20120120155 -5 - 20202016)16)16)

Because of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, 
 however, I was unable to obtain su cient appropriate audit evidence to provide a 
 basis for an audit opinion.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

Revenue and receivables from non-exchange transactions

4. I was unable to obtain su cient appropriate audit evidence for revenue from 
 non-exchange transactions and receivables from non-exchange transactions, as the 
 entity did not have processes in place to ensure that all employers were assessed 
 in terms of COIDA. Furthermore, management did not maintain proper accounting 
 records and adequate controls over assessment revenue and debtors. This resulted 
 in revenue being incorrectly recorded and payments received from debtors not 
 being posted in the correct period for the current and prior years. Interest and 
 penalties on outstanding debts were not charged. In addition, the entity could not 
 provide su cient appropriate audit evidence to support unallocated receipts. The 
 entity’s records did not permit the application of adequate alternative auditing 
 procedures regarding revenue and receivables from non-exchange transactions. 

 Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment was necessary 
 relating to:

 • revenue from non-exchange transactions of R7,675 billion (2015: R8,544 billion) 
 • receivables from non-exchange transactions of R3,740 billion (2015: R2,032 
  billion).

5. The limitations indicated above also have an impact on the debt impairment stated 
 at R112.261 million (2015: R1.008 billion) in the nancial statements.

Revenue and receivables from exchange transactions

6. Management did not implement adequate internal controls to maintain records of 
 revenue from exchange transactions. Therefore, I was unable to obtain su cient 
 appropriate audit evidence to substantiate whether management had correctly 
 accounted for all revenue from exchange transactions in accordance with GRAP 9, 
 Revenue from exchange transactions for the current and prior year. The entity’s 
 records did not permit the application of adequate alternative audit procedures in 
 this regard. As a consequence, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment 
 was required to revenue from exchange transactions stated at R3.680 billion (2015: 
 R3.317 billion) and receivables from exchange transactions stated at R1.208 billion 
 (2015: R1.199 billion).

7. Management did not implement adequate internal controls to maintain records of 
 bene ts. Therefore, I was unable to obtain su cient appropriate audit evidence to 
 substantiate whether management had correctly accounted for all claims in the 
 current and prior year. The entity’s records did not permit the application of 
 adequate alternative audit procedures regarding bene ts paid. As a consequence, 



88 Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

ComComCompenpenpensatsatsationionion FuFuFundndnd AnnAnnAnnualualual ReReReporporport (t (t (20120120155 -5 - 20202016)16)16)

 I was unable to determine whether any adjustment was required to bene ts paid 
 stated at R7.953 billion (2015: R6.030 billion).

Provision for outstanding claims 

8. I was unable to obtain su cient appropriate audit evidence for the provision for 
 outstanding claims. Management did not implement e ective systems of internal 
 control to maintain proper accounting records and information relating to the 
 movement in the provision for outstanding claims resulting from payments and the 
 measurement of estimates in accordance with GRAP 19, Provisions. Therefore, I 
 could not con rm, by any alternative means, whether any adjustment was necessary 
 to the provision for outstanding claims of R12.080 billion (2015: R10.548 billion) in 
 the nancial statements. 

Capitalised value of pensions 

9. I was unable to obtain su cient appropriate audit evidence relating to the movement 
 in the capitalised value of pensions resulting from payments and the measurement 
 of estimates in accordance with GRAP 19, Provisions, as the entity did not maintain 
 proper accounting records and internal controls. Therefore, I could not con rm, by 
 any alternative means, whether any adjustment was necessary to the capitalised 
 value of pensions of R20,784 billion (2015: R18,044 billion) in the nancial statements.
 
Payables from exchange transactions 

10. I was unable to obtain su cient appropriate audit evidence to substantiate whether 
 management had correctly accounted for all payables from exchange transactions 
 for the current and prior year, as management did not have adequate internal controls 
 to maintain records of payables from exchange transactions. The entity’s records 
 did not permit the application of adequate alternative audit procedures in this regard. 
 As a consequence, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment was required 
 to payables from exchange transactions stated at R817.883 million (2015: R720.468 
 million). 

Payables from non-exchange transactions 

11. I was unable to obtain su cient appropriate audit evidence to substantiate whether 
 management had correctly accounted for all payables from non-exchange transactions 
 for the current and prior year, as management did not have adequate internal controls 
 to maintain records of payables from non-exchange transactions. The entity’s records 
 did not permit the application of adequate alternative audit procedures in this regard. 
 As a consequence, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment was required 
 to payables from non-exchange transactions stated at R542.287 million (2015: 
 R594.900 million).

Prior period errors

12. The entity did not provide adequate records in respect of prior period errors reported. 
 Therefore, I was unable to obtain su cient appropriate audit evidence to substantiate 
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 the amount disclosed as prior period errors. I could not con rm by any alternative 
 means whether any adjustment was necessary to note 33 to the nancial statements. 

Employee related costs

13. I was unable to obtain su cient appropriate audit evidence to support employee 
 related costs for the current and prior year, as management did not have adequate 
 internal controls to maintain records of employee related costs. The entity’s records 
 did not permit the application of adequate alternative audit procedures in this regard. 
 As a consequence, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment was required 
 to employee related costs stated at R494.193 million (2015: R410.077 million). 

Lease rentals on operating lease

14. I was unable to obtain su cient appropriate audit evidence to support lease rentals 
 on operating lease for the current and prior year, as management did not have 
 adequate internal controls to maintain records of lease rentals on operating lease. 
 The entity’s records did not permit the application of adequate alternative audit 
 procedures in this regard. As a consequence, I was unable to determine whether 
 any adjustment was required to lease rentals on operating lease stated at R72.486 
 million (2015: R82.483 million).

Contingencies

15. I was unable to obtain su cient appropriate audit evidence for the amount dis
 closed as contingencies, as the entity did not maintain adequate internal controls to 
 maintain accounting records in respect of contingencies. The entity’s records did not 
 permit the application of adequate alternative audit procedures in this regard. As a 
 consequence, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment was required to 
 contingencies stated at R654 million (2015: R2,4 billion).

Irregular expenditure 

16. I was unable to obtain su cient appropriate audit evidence relating to the particulars 
 of irregular expenditure for the current year and prior year disclosed in the notes to 
 the nancial statements as per section 55(2)(b)(i) of the PFMA, as the entity did not 
 maintain proper records and adequate systems of internal control. The entity’s 
 records did not permit the application of adequate alternative audit procedures in 
 this regard. Therefore, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment was 
 necessary to irregular expenditure stated at R1 billion (2015: R1 billion) in the 
 nancial statements.

Fair value adjustments

17. During 2015, the entity did not accurately account for fair value adjustments for 
 investments in accordance with GRAP 104, Financial instruments. Consequently, fair 
 value adjustments was understated by R434,5 million. These di erences were not 
 corrected by management and adequate explanations were not provided. The auditor’s 
 opinion has been modi ed because of the e ects of the unresolved matter on the 
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 comparability of the current year’s gures and the corresponding gures.

Disclaimer of opinion

18. Because of the signi cance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of 
 opinion paragraphs, I have not been able to obtain su cient appropriate audit 
 evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, I do not express an 
 opinion on the nancial statements.

Emphasis of matters

19. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modi ed in respect of these 
 matters.

20. As disclosed in note 33 to the nancial statements, the corresponding gures for 
 31 March 2015 have been restated as a result of errors discovered during 2016 in 
 the nancial statements of the Compensation Fund at, and for the year ended, 
 31 March 2015.

Material losses

21. As disclosed in note 38 to the nancial statements, material losses of R12,4 million 
 (2015: R7,0 million) were incurred as a result of criminal conduct. 

Material overspending of the budget

22. As disclosed in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amount, the entity 
 materially overspent the budget on programmes 2 and 3 by R2,3 billion.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

23. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) 
(PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report 

 ndings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives 
 for selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, compliance 
 with legislation and internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable 
 ndings as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express 
 assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion 
 on these matters.

Predetermined objectives

24. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability 
of the reported performance information for the following selected programmes 
presented in the annual performance report of the entity for the year ended 
31 March 2016:
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• Programme 2: Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act 
  (1993) Operations on pages 36 to 38. 
 • Programme 3: Provincial Operations Compensation for Occupational Injuries 
  and Diseases Act (1993) on pages 41 to 43.  
25. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of 
 usefulness and reliability. 
26. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine 
 whether it was presented in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting 
 principles and whether the reported performance was consistent with the planned 
 programmes. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets 
 were well    measurable, time bound and relevant, as 
 required by the National Treasury’s Framework for Managing Programme Performance 
 Information (FMPPI).
27. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine 
 whether it was valid, accurate and complete.
28. The material  in respect of the selected programmes are as follows:

Programme 2: Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases (1993) 
Act Operations

Usefulness of reported performance information

29. The FMPPI requires performance targets to be  in clearly identifying the 
 nature and required level of performance. A total of 50% of the targets were not 

Reliability of reported performance information 

30. I did not raise any material  on the reliability of the reported performance 
 information.

Programme 3: Provincial Operations Compensation for Occupational  
Injuries and Diseases (1993) Act

Usefulness of reported performance information

31. The FMPPI requires performance targets to be measurable. A total of 60% of the 
 targets were not measurable.
32. The FMPPI requires performance indicators to be well  by having clear 

 so that data can be collected consistently and is easy to understand and 
 use. A total of 20% of the indicators were not well  

Reliability of reported performance information 

33. The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify 
 and store performance information to ensure reliable reporting of actual achievements 
 against planned objectives, indicators and targets. I was unable to obtain the information 
 and explanations I considered necessary to satisfy myself as to the reliability of the 
 reported performance information. This was due to the fact that the auditee could 
 not provide  appropriate evidence in support of the reported performance 
 information. 
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Additional matters 

34. I draw attention to the following matters:

Achievement of planned targets

35. Refer to the annual performance report on page 29 to 43 for information on the 
 achievement of the planned targets for the year. This information should be 
 considered in the context of the material  on the usefulness and 
 reliability of the reported performance information reported in paragraphs 29 
 to 33 of this report.

Compliance with legislation

36. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity had complied with 
 applicable legislation regarding  matters,  management and other 
 related matters. My material  on compliance with  matters in key 
 legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:

t

37. The  statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance 
 with the prescribed  reporting framework and were not supported by full 
 and proper records, as required by section 55(1)(a) and (b) of the PFMA. Material 
 misstatements  by the auditors in the submitted  statements were 
 not adequately corrected and the supporting records could not subsequently be 
 provided, which resulted in the  statements receiving a disclaimer of audit 
 opinion.

Procurement and contract management

38. Goods and services with a transaction value above R500 000 were procured without 
 inviting competitive bids, as required by treasury regulation 16A6.1. Deviations were 
 approved by the accounting authority even though it was not impractical to invite 
 competitive bids, in contravention of treasury regulation 16A6.4. 
39. Invitations for competitive bidding were not always advertised in at least the 
 Government Tender Bulletin, as required by treasury regulation 16A6.3(c).

Expenditure management

40. The accounting authority did not take  steps to prevent irregular as well as 
 fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting R1 billion (2015: R1 billion) and 
 R436.126 million (2015: R32.318 million) respectively as disclosed in notes 39 and 40 
 of the  statements, as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA

Revenue management

 and appropriate steps were not taken to collect all money due, as required 
 by section 51(1)(b)(i) of the PFMA and treasury regulation 31.1.2(a) and (e).
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42. Interest and penalties were not charged on all accounts in arrear, as required by 
sections 86(2) and 87(1) of COIDA.

Claims and payables management

43. The accounting authority did not maintain an e ective control environment to 
accept, adjudicate and make payments to the injured, as required by sections 22 and 
29 of COIDA.

Consequence management

44. Disciplinary steps were not taken against o cials who made or permitted irregular 
 or fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by section 51(1)(e)(iii) of the PFMA 
 and treasury regulation 9.1.3.
45. Investigations were not conducted into all allegations of nancial misconduct 
 committed by o cials, as required by treasury regulation 33.1.1.
46. Disciplinary hearings were not held for con rmed cases of nancial misconduct 
 committed by o cials, as required by treasury regulation 33.1.1.

Internal control

47. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the nancial statements, annual 
 performance report and compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are 
 limited to the signi cant de ciencies that resulted in the basis for the disclaimer of 
 opinion, the ndings on the annual performance report and the ndings on compliance 
 with legislation included in this report.

Leadership

48. The interventions to recruit adequately quali ed and skilled people started too 
 late in the nancial year to have a positive impact on the implementation of the 
 corrective actions and improving audit outcomes. This resulted in minimum 
 improvement in key controls over the processing of claims, debt collection, 
 compliance with legislation, and the quality of the nancial statements.
49. The entity did not have su cient monitoring controls to ensure the proper 
 implementation of action plans to address previously reported material misstatements 
 as well as internal control de ciencies. This resulted in the recurrence of numerous 
 ndings reported in prior years.
50. Cases that transpired during the 2014-15 and 2015-16 nancial years have not yet 
 been investigated. No action has yet been taken where some investigations con rmed 
 wrongful action by an individual and recommended action to be taken. 

Financial and performance management

51. The entity did not have a proper system of record management that provided for 
 the maintenance of information to support revenue management, expenditure 
 management as well as nancial and performance reporting. This included information 
 relating to supporting documentation for prior year misstatements, claims, payables, 
 impairment calculations, provision of claims, journal entries, contracts, and legal 
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 con rmations. As a result, signi cant delays were encountered and numerous 
 documents were not submitted for auditing.

Other reports

52. I draw attention to the following engagements that could potentially have an impact 
 on the entity’s nancial, performance and compliance related matters. My opinion is 
 not modi ed in respect of these engagements that are in progress or have been 
 completed.

Investigations

53. The Special Investigation Unit performed an investigation at the request of the 
 minister. This is a further investigation based on the outcome by an independent 
 consulting rm relating to an allegation of nancial misconduct involving previous 
 key o cials. The investigation has been completed, but the report has not been 
 nalised yet.
54. A total of 130 nancial misconduct cases were investigated during the year under 
 review, 60 of which were still in progress and 70 of which had been completed. All 
 involved employees and medical practitioners. Management did not act on the 
 recommendations of the reports for any of the 70 cases where investigations had 
 been completed.
55. A total of 110 fraud-related cases were also under investigation during the year, 
 27 of which had been completed, 27 of which were in a reporting stage, 45 of which
 were ongoing, and 11 of which had not yet been started. Some of the cases where  
 investigations had been completed were referred to the South African Police Service.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

Assets

Current Assets
Investments
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Non-Current Assets
Investments
Investment property
Property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation
Payables from exchange transactions
Payables from non-exchange transactions
Accruals
Provision for outstanding claims
Capitalised value for pensions

Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation
Provisions for outstanding claims
Capitalised value for pensions

Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Reserves
Revaluation reserve
Unclaimed monies
Accumulated surplus 
Total Net Assets

Note(s) 

2
3
5 
4 

6 

2
7
8
9

10
12
11
13
14
15

10
14
15

16

2016

R ‘000

14,984,029 
2,416

1,207,924 
3,740,970 

939
87,398

20,023,676

36,476,630
8,300

133,238
8,437

36,626,605
 

56,650,281 

1,269
817,883 
542,287 
500,479 

4,093,000 
1,042,000

6,996,918 

2,191 
7,987,000 

19,742,000 

27,731,191

34,728,109 

21,922,172 

102,441
61,463 

21,758,268 

21,922,172

12,100,836
2,724

1,198,550
2,032,660

613
35,554

15,370,937

37,652,192
7,500

137,739
14,439

37,811,870

53,182,807

1,350
720,468
594,900

55,274
3,257,000

892,000

5,520,992

3,041
7,291,000

17,152,000

24,446,041

29,967,033

23,215,774

102,441
52,110

23,061,223

23,215,774

2015
Restated*

R ‘000
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Administrative contributions by exempted employers 17 25,100 22,822

Dividends received 17 &18 249,599 156,585

Interest received - investments 18 3,404,422 3,136,535

Miscellaneous income 17 27 1,006

Rental of facilities and equipment 17 1,019 1,013

Total revenue from exchange transactions 3,680,167 3,317,961

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Taxation revenue

Contributions by employer 17 7,566,935 8,432,313

Penalties on late submission of ROE's 17 107,155 112,145

Transfer revenue

Recoveries from third parties 1,014 -

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 7,675,104 8,544,458

Total revenue 11,355,271 11,862,419

Expenditure

Bene ts 19 (7,952,904) (6,030,049)

Debt Impairment 21 (112,261) (1,008,063)

Depreciation and amortisation 8 &9 (12,350) (21,119)

Employee related costs 20 (494,193) (410,077)

Finance costs 23 (5,770) (211)

General expenses 24 (712,147) (492,314)

Lease rentals on operating lease 27 (72,486) (82,483)

Repairs and maintenance (1,922) (2,773)

Total expenditure (9,364,033) (8,047,089)

Operating surplus 1,991,238 3,815,330

(Loss) /gain on disposal of assets and liabilities (14) -

Fair value adjustments 25 (3,294,179) 2,824,222

(3,294,193) 2,824,222

(1,302,955) 6,639,552

Note(s)

2016

R ‘000

2015
Restated*

R ‘000
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Revaluation
reserve

Unclaimed
monies

Total 
reserves

Accumulated
surplus

Total net
assets

R ‘000 R ‘000 R ‘000 R ‘000 R ‘000

Balance at 1 April 2014 53,945 39,245 93,190 16,421,670 16,514,860

Revaluation of Land and buildings 48,496 - 48,496 - 48,496

Net income (losses) recognised directly
in net assets

48,496 - 48,496 - 48,496

Surplus for the year - - - 6,639,553 6,639,553

Total recognised income and expenses
for the year

48,496 - 48,496 6,639,553 6,688,049

Transfer to unclaimed monies - 12,865 12,865 - 12,865

Restated* Balance at 01 April 2015 102,441 52,110 154,551 23,061,223 23,215,774

De cit for the year - - - (1,302,955) (1,302,955)

Transfer to unclaimed monies - 9,353 9,353 - 9,353

Balance at 31 March 2016 102,441 61,463 163,904 21,758,268 21,922,172

Note(s) 16

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AS AT 31 MARCH 2016
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2016
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED 
Notes(s)

Receipts   

Receipts from non-exchange transactions 5,880,863 6,630,788

Rental facilities and equipment 1,019 1,013

Interest income 3,404,422 2,028,427

Dividends received 249,599 156,585

Other income 15,756 1,006

9,551,659 8,817,819

Payments

Payments to suppliers and employees (781,411) (908,348)

Finance costs (5,770) (211)

Bene ts (3,707,233) (2,455,745)

(4,494,414) (3,364,304)

28 5,057,245 5,453,515

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 8 (1,887) (13,187)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 8 26 -

Purchase of other intangible assets 9 - (21,329)

Purchase of investments (5,002,610) (5,507,771)

(5,004,471) (5,542,287)

Finance lease payments (930) 4,391

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 51,844 (84,381)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 35,554 119,935

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6 87,398 35,554

CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS AT 31 MARCH 2016
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Approved
budget

Adjust-
ments

Final 
Budget

Actual 
amounts on 
comparable 

basis

between 

and actual

Ref

R ‘000 R ‘000 R ‘000 R ‘000 R ‘000

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions 

Administration contribution by 
exempted employer s88 20,000 - 20,000 25,100 (5,100)

Rental of facilities and equipment 1,440 - 1,440 1,019 421

Miscellaneous income - - - 27 (27) 2

Interest received - investment  2,155,752 -  2,155,752 3,404,422 (1,248,670) 3

Dividends received 117,000 - 117,000 249,599 (132,599) 4
Total revenue from exchange 
transactions 2,294,192 - 2,294,192 3,680,167 (1,385,975)
Revenue from non-exchange 
transactions
Revenue

Contributions by employer 7,852,004 - 7,852,004 7,566,935 285,069 1

Penalties on late submission of ROE’s 760 - 760 107,155 (106,395) 5

Transfer revenue

Recoveries third party - - - 1,014 (1,014)
Total revenue from nonexchange
transactions 7,852,764 - 7,852,764 7,675,104 177,660

Total revenue 10,146,956 - 10,146,956 11,355,271 (1,208,315)

Expenditure

Employee costs 349,670 - 349,670 494,193 (144,523) 6

Depreciation and amortisation - - - 12,350 (12,350)

Finance costs - - - 5,770 (5,770)

Lease rentals on operating lease 43,047 - 43,047 72,486 (29,439) 7

Repairs and maintenance 14,238 - 14,238 (1,922) 16,160 9

3,966,010 - 3,966,010 7,952,904 (3,986,894) 10

General Expenses 441,213 - 441,213 828,251 (387,038)

Total expenditure 4,814,178 - 4,814,178 9,364,032 (4,549,854)

Operating surplus 5,332,778 - 5,332,778 1,991,239 3,341,539
Loss on disposal of assets and
liabilities - - - (14) 14

Fair value adjustments 1,139,559 - 1,139,559 (3,294,179) (4,433,738)

1,139,559 1,139,559 (3,294,193) (4,433,752)

 before taxation 6,472,337 - 6,472,337 (1,302,954) (7,775,291)
 for the year from continuing 

operations 6,472,337 - 6,472,337 (1,302,954) (7,775,291)

Capital budget 30,400 - 30,400 2,026 28,374 11

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AS AT 31 MARCH 2016
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Actual Amount on Comparable Basis
as Presented in the Budget and Actu-
al Comparative Statement 

6,502,737 - 6,502,737 (1,300,928) (7,803,665)

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2016

Budget explanations:

1. Contribution by employer

Due to the unfavourable markets more business have closed down, so fewer employers sub-
mitted their ROE’s.

2. Miscellaneous Income

The miscellaneous revenue relate to the waste paper that the Fund recycles. during the budget 
process this line item was not budgeted for.

3. Investment income

Due to the new mandate, that was implemented by the PIC at the request of the Fund and cou-
pled by the increase in the interest rate that yielded better returns on the interest at the PIC.

4. Dividends received

The reason for the increase in dividend income is due to the Fund’s new mandate which allows 
for the Fund to trade in unhedged equities on the Pension Portfolio exposing the instrument to 
better investments returns.

5. Penalties on late submission

The Fund never anticipated that so many employers will submit their ROE’s late since the dead-
line was extended on the website; but however employers continued not to adhere to deadlines.

6. Employee costs

The over expenditure is due to the increase of the split percentage for the enforcement and 
inspection the unit is now also concentrating on COID.

7. Lease Rentals and Operating Lease

The over spending on the budget is due to the decentralization of function and on-line services 
implemented within the fund.
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8. General Expenses

The over expenditure is attributed to the payment of the debt collector as a result of the court 
proceeding.

9. Repairs and Maintenance

The underexpenditure was due to the fact that the Fund intended to renovate Compensation 
House. Due to unforeseen circumstances, the project did not kick - o  the ground. Moving for-
ward the Fund will engage the PIC through its property management division to renovate the 
building.

The over expenditure is due to the actuarial valuation that was done at year end for the provi-
sion of outstanding claims and the increase in the technical liability for pensions.

11. Capital Expenditure

The underexpenditure was due to the fact that the Fund intended to renovate Compensation 
House. Due to unforeseen circumstances, the project did not kick - o  the ground. Moving for-
ward the Fund will engage the PIC through its property management division to renovate the 
building.

Accounting Policies for the year ended 31 March 2016

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

1.1. Basis of Preparation:

The annual nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of 
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board 
in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).In the 
absence of an issued and e ective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material
transactions, events or conditions were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 
of GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5.

In terms of section 55 (1) (b) of the Public Finance Management Act, the accounting authori-
ty for a public entity prepare nancial statements for each nancial year in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practice, unless the Accounting Standards Board approves the 
application of generally recognised accounting practice for that public entity.

The nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives 
issued by the Accounting Standard Board.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of nancial statements have been 
consistently applied in all years presented.
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The annual nancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the 
measurement of certain nancial instruments at fair value less point of sale costs, and incorpo-
rate the principal accounting policies set out below.

The annual nancial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis and the Fund 
will continue in operation and meet its statutory obligations for the foreseeable future.

1.2. Intangible assets

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an 
expense when it is incurred.

An intangible asset arising from development is recognised when:

• It is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
• there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
• there is an ability to use or sell it.
• It will generate probable future economic bene ts or service potential.
• there are available technical, nancial and other resources to complete the development 

and to use or sell the asset.
• the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment 
losses. An intangible asset is regarded as having an inde nite useful life when, based on all 
relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to 
generate net cash in ows or service potential.

Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment an-
nually and whenever there is an indicator that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangi-
ble assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation, which have been 
consistently applied in the preparation of these annual nancial statements are disclosed here-
after.

1.3. Presentation currency

These annual nancial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional 
currency of the entity.

1.4. Going concern assumption

These annual nancial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity 
will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

In preparing the annual nancial statements, management is required to make estimates and 
assumptions that a ect the amounts represented in the annual nancial statements and related 
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disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement is inherent in the 
formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could di er from these estimates which may 
be material to the annual nancial statements. Estimates and underlying assumptions are re-
viewed on an ongoing basis, based on historical experience and other factors including expec-
tations. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is 
revised and in any future periods a ected. Signi cant judgements include:

 1.5.1 Trade receivables / Held to maturity investments and/or loans and receivables

 The entity assesses its trade receivables, held to maturity investments and loans and 
 receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether 
 an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or de cit, the surplus makes
 judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in 
 the estimated future cash ows from a nancial asset.

 The entity follows the guidance of GRAP 104 to determine when an available-for-sale 
 nancial asset is impaired. This determination requires signi cant judgment. In making 
 this judgment, the entity evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to 
 which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the nancial health of and 
 near-term business outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry and sector  
 performance, changes in technology and operational and nancing cash ow.

 1.5.3. Fair value estimation

 The fair value of nancial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and 
 available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting  
 period. The quoted market price used for nancial assets held by the entity is the current 
 bid price.

 1.5.4. Provision for outstanding claims

 Liabilities for unpaid claims are calculated based on the long term trend of annual claim 
 payments. The long term trend is achieved by grouping claims paid in each of the 
 previous ten nancial years according to the year of the accident or diagnosis of the 
 disease and the number of years until a payment is made. The Fund makes an allowance  
 for short term factors and future claims in ations to project the likely incidence of future  
 claim payments. Furthermore, a ‘tail factor’ is applied to the results to re ect the fact  
 that the claims data contains claim payments in respect of accidents that occurred ten  
 or more years ago. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions are included in 
 note 14 - Provisions for outstanding claims.

 1.5.5. Capitalised value of pensions

 The present value of the capitalised pensions depends on a number of factors that are  
 determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions 
 used in determining the net cost (income) include the discount rate. Any changes in   
 these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post retirement obligations.
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Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based on current market conditions.  
Additional information is disclosed in Note 15, Capitalised value of pensions.

 Contracts under which the Fund accepts signi cant insurance risk from another party  
 (the claimant) by agreeing to compensate the claimant if a speci ed uncertain future  
 event (the insured event) adversely a ects the claimant are classi ed as insurance

contracts. The Fund accepts insurance risk as it is mandated by legislation to compensate  
 victims of work related accidents for injuries su ered as a result of work related 

accidents.

Uncertainties:

 Age of employees and Mortality rates are the drivers of the uncertainties a ecting the 
Liability.

Key uncertainties:

1. Tail data;
2. Future expenses;
3. Accident claims; and
4. Risk margin.

Additional information is disclosed in Note 15, Capitalised value of pensions.

1.5.7. Allowance for doubtful debts

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and de cit when there is objec-
tive evidence that it is impaired. The impairment is measured as the di erence between 
the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash

ows discounted at the e ective interest rate, computed at initial recognition

1.5.8. Accrual for assesments not raised

Where assessments have not been raised, the Fund makes an estimate by the assess-
ments revenue due from employers. The estimate is based on the most recent assess-
ment recognised in the previous four years. Impairment, blocked and inactive
employees are not included in the estimate.

1.5.9. Accrual for accumulated leave and service bonus

The cost of all short term employee bene ts is recognised during the period in which the 
employee renders related services. Employee entitlements are recognised when they 
accrue to employees. An accrual is recognised for the estimated liability as a result of 
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date. Accruals relating to employee 
bene ts include annual leave, capped leave and a thirteenth cheque.
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1.5.10. Claims incurred

Claims incurred comprise the total estimated cost of claims that have occurred in the 
year and for which the Fund is responsible, whether or not reported by the end of the 
year. Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to surplus or de cit as incurred, 
based on the estimated liability for compensation. The Fund does not discount its liabili-
ties for unpaid claims. Liabilities for unpaid claims are calculated based on an estimated 
average cost per claim for each underwriting year. The incurred but not reported claims 
(“IBNR”) are based on estimated unreported claims as calculated by the actuaries.The
average cost per claim is based on the actual claims paid and awards made, and esti-
mated outstanding costs (based on the latest and most reliable information available), 
and the number of claims registered.

1.6. Investment property

Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn 
rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for:

• use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
• administrative purposes, or
• sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic 
bene ts or service potential that are associated with the investment property will ow to the 
entity, and the cost or fair value of the investment property can be measured reliably.
Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial 
measurement.

Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair 
value as at the date of acquisition.

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a 
part of, or service a property. If a replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the 
investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is unrecognised.

1.6.1 Fair value

Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value.
The fair value of investment property re ects market conditions at the reporting date.
A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net surplus or de cit for 
the period in which it arises.

1.7. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the pro-
duction or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are 
expected to be used during more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
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• it is probable that future economic bene ts or service potential associated with the item 
 will ow to the entity; and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs 
attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted 
in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction. i.e. donations, its cost is its fair 
value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary 
asset or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset 
acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was not 
determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date 
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated 
impairment losses.

Revaluations are made with su cient regularity such that the carrying amount does not di er 
materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting 
period.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at 
the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the 
net amount restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a 
revaluation surplus. The increase is recognised in surplus or de cit to the extent that it reverses 
a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in surplus or de cit.

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus 
or de cit in the current period.

The decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance 
existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a speci c item of property, plant and equipment is 
transferred directly to retained earnings when the asset is unrecognised.

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a speci c item of property, plant and equipment is 
transferred directly to retained earnings as the asset is used. The amount transferred is equal 
to the di erence between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount and deprecia-
tion based on the original cost of the asset.
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Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected 
useful lives to their estimated residual value.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of 
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated im-
pairment losses. Revaluations are made with su cient regularity such that the carrying amount 
does not di er materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of 
the reporting period.

Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a 
revaluation surplus. The increase is recognised in surplus or de cit to the extent that it reverses 
a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in surplus or de cit.

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus 
or de cit in the current period.

The decrease is debited in revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the 
revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

No property, plant and equipment nor Land and Buildings have been pledged as security 
during the year.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item       Depreciation method  Average useful life

Land       Straight line    Inde nite
Buildings      Straight line    50 years
Furniture and xtures    Straight line    6 - 10 years
Motor vehicles     Straight line    5 years
IT equipment      Straight line    3 years
Escalators and elevators    Straight line    12 -20 years

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend 
the previous estimate unless expectations di er from the previous estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is signi cant in relation 
to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or de cit unless it is included 
in the carrying amount of another asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are unrecognised when the asset is disposed of or 
when there are no further economic bene ts or service potential expected from the use of the 
asset.
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1.8. Intangible assets

An asset is identi able if it either:
• is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, 

transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related 
 contract, identi able assets or liability, regardless of whether the entity intends to do so;  
 or
• arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether  
 those rights are transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights and 
 obligations.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
• it is probable that the expected future economic bene ts or service potential that are  
 attributable to the asset will ow to the entity; and
• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic bene ts or service potential 
using reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of 
the set of economic conditions that will exist over the useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the 
date of acquisition is measured at its fair value as at that date.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a nite useful life after it was classi ed 
as inde nite is an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for 
impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their 
residual values as follows:
Item       Useful life
Licenses and franchises    5 years
Computer software, other    5 years

1.9. Financial instruments

A nancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a nancial asset of one entity and a 
nancial liability or a residual interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a nancial asset or nancial liability is the amount at which the nancial 
asset or nancial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or 
minus the cumulative amortisation using the e ective interest method of any di erence be-
tween that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a nancial instrument will cause a nancial loss for the 
other party by failing to discharge an obligation.
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Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will 
uctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised nancial asset or nancial liability from 
an entity’s statement of nancial position.

A derivative is a nancial instrument or other contract with all three of the following  
characteristics:
• Its value changes in response to the change in a speci ed interest rate, nancial 
 instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit  
 rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non- nancial variable  
 that the variable is not speci c to a party to the contract (sometimes called the 
 ‘underlying’);
• It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than   
 would be required for other types of contracts that would be expected to have a similar  
 response to changes in market factors; and
• It is settled at a future date.

The e ective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a nancial asset 
or a nancial liability (or group of nancial assets or nancial liabilities) and of allocating the 
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The e ective interest rate is the 
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expect-
ed life of the nancial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying 
amount of the nancial asset or nancial liability. When calculating the e ective interest rate, 
an entity shall estimate cash ows considering all contractual terms of the nancial instrument 
(for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. 
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract 
that are an integral part of the e ective interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue 
from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is 
a presumption that the cash ows and the expected life of a group of similar nancial instru-
ments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably 
estimate the cash ows or the expected life of a nancial instrument (or group of nancial 
instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash ows over the full contractual term of the 

nancial instrument (or group of nancial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between 
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

A nancial asset is:
• cash;
• a residual interest of another entity; or
• a contractual right to:
 • receive cash or another nancial asset from another entity; or
 • exchange nancial assets or nancial liabilities with another entity under 
  conditions that are potentially favourable to the entity.

A nancial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make speci ed payments 
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a speci ed debtor fails to make payment 
when due in accordance with the original or modi ed terms of a debt instrument.
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A nancial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
• deliver cash or another nancial asset to another entity; or
• exchange nancial assets or nancial liabilities under conditions that are potentially   

unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will 
uctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of di culty in meeting obligations 
associated with nancial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another nancial asset.

Loan commitment is a rm commitment to provide credit under pre-speci ed terms and condi-
tions.

Loans payable are nancial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uc-
tuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency 
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

A nancial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contrac-
tually due.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative nancial assets or non-derivative 
nancial liabilities that have xed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

• the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
• are held for trading.

The entity has the following types of nancial assets (classes and category) as re ected on the 
face of the statement of nancial position or in the notes thereto:

1.9.1.1. Financial Assets     Category

Loans and other receivables     Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Receivables from exchange transactions   Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Receivables from non-exchange transactions   Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents     Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Fair value through pro t and loss held for trading  Financial asset measured at fair value

Designated as at fair value through pro t and loss  Financial asset measured at fair value

The entity has the following types of nancial liabilities (classes and category) as re ected on 
the face of the statement of nancial position or in the notes thereto:

`
1.9.1.2. Financial Liability     Category

Accruals       Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Payables from exchange transactions    Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Provision for outstanding claims    Financial liability measured at amortised cost
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1.9.2. Initial Recognition

The entity recognises a nancial asset or a nancial liability in its statement of nancial position 
when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The entity recognises nancial assets using trade date accounting.

The entity measures a nancial asset and nancial liability initially at its fair value plus transac-
tion costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the nancial asset or nan-
cial liability.

The entity measures a nancial asset and nancial liability initially at its fair value.
The entity rst assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On ini-
tial recognition, the entity analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts 
for each component separately. The entity accounts for that part of a concessionary loan that 
is:
• a social bene t in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation  
 of Financial Statements, where it is the issuer of the loan; or
• non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from   
 Non-exchange Transactions, where it is the recipient of the loan.

The entity measures all nancial assets and nancial liabilities after initial recognition using the 
following categories:
• Financial instruments at fair value.
• Financial instruments at amortised cost.
• Financial instruments at cost.

All nancial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.

1.9.5. Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a nancial 
instrument is not active, the entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The 
objective of using a valuation technique is to establish what the transaction price would have 
been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange motivated by normal operating
considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions be-
tween knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another 
instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash ow analysis and option pricing 
models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the
instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices 
obtained in actual market transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation 
technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies as little as possible on entity-specif-
ic inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price
and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing nancial instruments. Pe-
riodically, an entity calibrates the valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from 
any observable current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modi cation 
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or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data.

The fair value of a nancial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less 
than the amount payable on demand, discounted from the rst date that the amount could be 
required to be paid.

1.9.6. Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a nancial asset or nancial liability 
measured at fair value is recognised in surplus or de cit.

For nancial assets and nancial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is 
recognised in surplus or de cit when the nancial asset or nancial liability is unrecognised or 
impaired, or through the amortisation process.

The entity assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence 
that a nancial asset or group of nancial assets is impaired.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on nancial assets measured at amor-
tised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the di erence between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash ows. The carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the
loss is recognised in surplus or de cit.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can 
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previous-
ly recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does 
not result in a carrying amount of the nancial asset that exceeds what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is 
reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or de cit.

1.9.8. Derecognition

1.9.8.1. Financial Assets
The entity sermonises nancial assets using trade date accounting.

The entity sermonises a nancial asset only when:
• the contractual rights to the cash ows from the nancial asset expire, are settled  
 or waived;
• the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of  
 ownership of the nancial asset; or
• the entity, despite having retained some signi cant risks and rewards of 
 ownership of the nancial asset, has transferred control of the asset to another  
 party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
 entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally  
 and without needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer. In this   
 case, the entity :
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• unrecognised the asset; and
 • recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

1.9.8.2. Financial liabilities

The entity removes a nancial liability (or a part of a nancial liability) from its statement 
of nancial position when it is extinguished  i.e. when the obligation speci ed in the 
contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

1.9.9. Presantation

Interest relating to a nancial instrument or a component that is a nancial liability is rec-
ognised as revenue or expense in surplus or de cit.

Dividends or similar distributions relating to a nancial instrument or a component that is a 
nancial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in surplus or de cit.

Losses and gains relating to a nancial instrument or a component that is a nancial liability is 
recognised as revenue or expense in surplus or de cit.

A nancial asset and a nancial liability are only o set and the net amount presented in the 
statement of nancial position when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set 
o  the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously.

In accounting for a transfer of a nancial asset that does not qualify for precognition, the entity 
does not o set the transferred asset and the associated liability.

1.10. Leases

A lease is classi ed as a nance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards inci-
dental to ownership. A lease is classi ed as an operating lease if it does not transfer substan-
tially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classi cation 
of each element separately.

1.10.1. Finance lease - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of nancial po-
sition at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present 
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the statement of nancial position as a nance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments 
is the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the nance charge and reduction of 
the outstanding liability. The nance charge is allocated to each period during the lease 
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term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance
 of the liability.

1.10.2. Operating leases - lessor

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to 
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease 
term on the same basis as the lease revenue.

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the 
lease term on a straight-line basis.

The aggregate bene t of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over 
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of nancial performance.

1.10.3. Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term. The di erence between the amounts recognised as an expense and the 
contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.11. Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a 
non-exchange transaction, then their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

1.12. Unclaimed monies

If money owing to an employee or his/her dependant has remained unpaid after 12 months 
because it has not been claimed and the the person in question has not been traced, the Com-
pensation Commissioner shall e ect a notice to be published annually in the Government Ga-
zette with particulars of every unclaimed amount of more than R 100. Any person claiming the
amount shall be called upon to submit his/her claim to the Commissioner within one month 
after the date of the notice.

If at the expiration of the said month, no claim has been submitted, or a claim that has been 
submitted has been rejected by the Compensation Commissioner, the said amount shall be 
paid into the reserve fund.

1.13. Impairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the primary objective of gener-
ating a commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted 
by a pro t-orientated entity, it generates a commercial return.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic bene ts or service potential of an asset, over and 
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above the systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic bene ts or service 
potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of nancial 
position after deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses 
thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identi able group of assets held with the primary objec-
tive of generating a commercial return that generates cash in ows from continuing use that are 
largely independent of the cash in ows from other assets or groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, exclud-
ing nance costs and income tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset 
over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length 
transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs 
to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:
 (a)  the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or
 (b)  the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the as 
  set by the entity.

Criteria developed by the entity to distinguish cash-generating assets from non-cash-generating 
assets are as follow:

Employee bene ts are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service ren-
dered by employees.

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related 
party (as de ned in the Standard of GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting entity, 
if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay or fund employee bene ts under a de ned 
bene t plan and are not available to the reporting entity’s own creditors (even in liquidation)
and cannot be paid to the reporting entity, unless either:
• the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the  
 related employee bene t obligations; or
• the proceeds are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee bene ts 
 already paid.

Termination bene ts are employee bene ts payable as a result of either:
• an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal 
 retirement date; or
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• an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those bene ts.

Other long-term employee bene ts are employee bene ts (other than post-employment bene-
ts and termination bene ts) that are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end 

of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Vested employee bene ts are employee bene ts that are not conditional on future employment.

Composite social security programmes are established by legislation and operate as multi-em-
ployer plans to provide postemployment bene ts as well as to provide bene ts that are not 
consideration in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an 
established pattern of past practice, published policies or a su ciently speci c current state-
ment, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and as 
a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will 
discharge those responsibilities.

Short-term employee bene ts are employee bene ts (other than termination bene ts) 
that are due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service.

Short-term employee bene ts include items such as:
• wages, salaries and social security contributions;
• short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick   
 leave) where the compensation for the absences is due to be settled 
 within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the 
 employees render the related employee service;
• bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve   
 months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the  
 related service; and
• non-monetary bene ts (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods  
 or services such as housing, cars and cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the 
entity recognise the undiscounted amount of short-term employee bene ts expected to 
be paid in exchange for that service:
• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the  
 amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the bene ts, the 
 entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the  
 prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash  
 refund; and
• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the  
 bene ts in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employ-
ees render services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating 
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absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measure the expected cost of accumu-
lating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as 
a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related 
payments when the entity has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such 
payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to 
make the payments.

Post-employment bene ts are employee bene ts (other than termination bene ts) 
which are payable after the completion of employment.

Post-employment bene t plans are formal or informal arrangements under which an 
entity provides post-employment bene ts for one or more employees.

De ned contribution plans are post-employment bene t plans under which an entity 
pays xed contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or con-
structive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold su cient
assets to pay all employee bene ts relating to employee service in the current and prior 
periods.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the 
entity recognise the contribution payable to a de ned contribution plan in exchange for 
that service:
• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If  
 the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for service before the  
 reporting date, an entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to  
 the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future  
 payments or a cash refund; and
• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the  
 contribution in the cost of an asset.

Where contributions to a de ned contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve 
months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related 
service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount re ects the time value
of money. The currency and term of the nancial instrument selected to re ect the time 
value of money is consistent with the currency and estimated term of the obligation.

De ned bene t plans are post-employment bene t plans other than de ned contribu-
tion plans.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments (the e ects of di erences 
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between the previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and the 
e ects of changes in actuarial assumptions. In measuring its de ned bene t liability the 
entity recognise actuarial gains and losses in surplus or de cit in the reporting period in 
which they occur.

Assets held by a long-term employee bene t fund are assets (other than non-transfer-
able nancial instruments issued by the reporting entity) that are held by an entity (a 
fund) that is legally separate from the reporting entity and exists solely to pay or fund 
employee bene ts and are available to be used only to pay or fund employee bene ts, 
are not available to the reporting entity’s own creditors (even in liquidation), and cannot 
be returned to the reporting entity, unless either:
• the remaining assets of the fund are su cient to meet all the related employee  
 bene t obligations of the plan or the reporting entity; or
• the assets are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee 
 bene ts already paid.

Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the de ned bene t obligation 
resulting from employee service in the current period.

Interest cost is the increase during a period in the present value of a de ned bene t 
obligation which arises because the bene ts are one period closer to settlement.

Past service cost is the change in the present value of the de ned bene t obligation for 
employee service in prior periods, resulting in the current period from the introduction 
of, or changes to, post-employment bene ts or other long-term employee bene ts. Past 
service cost may be either positive (when bene ts are introduced or changed so that 
the present value of the de ned bene t obligation increases) or negative (when existing 
bene ts are changed so that the present value of the de ned bene t obligation decreas-
es). In measuring its de ned bene t liability the entity recognise past service cost as an 
expense in the reporting period in which the plan is amended.

Plan assets comprise assets held by a long-term employee bene t fund and qualifying 
insurance policies.

The present value of a de ned bene t obligation is the present value, without deducting 
any plan assets, of expected future payments required to settle the obligation resulting 
from employee service in the current and prior periods.

The return on plan assets is interest, dividends or similar distributions and other reve-
nue derived from the plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses 
on the plan assets, less any costs of administering the plan (other than those
included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the de ned bene t obligation) 
and less any tax payable by the plan itself.

The entity account not only for its legal obligation under the formal terms of a de ned 
bene t plan, but also for any constructive obligation that arises from the entity’s infor-
mal practices. Informal practices give rise to a constructive obligation where the entity 
has no realistic alternative but to pay employee bene ts. An example of a constructive 
obligation is where a change in the entity’s informal practices would cause unacceptable 
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damage to its relationship with employees.

The amount recognised as a de ned bene t liability is the net total of the following 
amounts:
• the present value of the de ned bene t obligation at the reporting date;
• minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the  
 obligations are to be settled directly;
• plus any liability that may arise as a result of a minimum funding requirement

The amount determined as a de ned bene t liability may be negative (an asset). The 
entity measure the resulting asset at the lower of:
• the amount determined above; and
• the present value of any economic bene ts available in the form of refunds from  
 the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. The present value of  
 these economic bene ts is determined using a discount rate which re ects the  
 time value of money.

Any adjustments arising from the limit above is recognised in surplus or de cit.

The entity determine the present value of de ned bene t obligations and the fair value 
of any plan assets with su cient regularity such that the amounts recognised in the 
annual nancial statements do not di er materially from the amounts that
would be determined at the reporting date.

The entity recognises the net total of the following amounts in surplus or de cit, except 
to the extent that another Standard requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an 
asset:
• current service cost;
• interest cost;
• the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement rights;
• actuarial gains and losses;
• past service cost;
• the e ect of any curtailments or settlements; and
• the e ect of applying the limit on a de ned bene t asset (negative de ned 
 bene t liability).

The entity uses the Projected Unit Credit Method to determine the present value of its 
de ned bene t obligations and the related current service cost and, where applicable, 
past service cost. The Projected Unit Credit Method (sometimes known as
the accrued bene t method pro-rated on service or as the bene t/years of service meth-
od) sees each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of bene t entitlement 
and measures each unit separately to build up the nal obligation.

In determining the present value of its de ned bene t obligations and the related cur-
rent service cost and, where applicable, past service cost, an entity shall attribute bene t 
to periods of service under the plan’s bene t formula. However, if an employee’s service 
in later years will lead to a materially higher level of bene t than in earlier years, an entity 
shall attribute bene t on a straight-line basis from:
• the date when service by the employee rst leads to bene ts under the plan   
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 (whether or not the bene ts are conditional on further service); until
• the date when further service by the employee will lead to no material amount of  
 further bene ts under the plan, other than from further salary increases.

Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries sepa-
rately for each plan. The results of the valuation are updated for any material transac-
tions and other material changes in circumstances (including changes in market
prices and interest rates) up to the reporting date.

The entity recognises gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a de ned ben-
e t plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on a curtailment or 
settlement comprises:
• any resulting change in the present value of the de ned bene t obligation; and
• any resulting change in the fair value of the plan assets.

Before determining the e ect of a curtailment or settlement, the entity re-measure the 
obligation (and the related plan assets, if any) using current actuarial assumptions (in-
cluding current market interest rates and other current market prices).

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expendi-
ture required to settle a de ned bene t obligation, the right to reimbursement is rec-
ognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In all other
respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or de cit, the 
expense relating to a de ned bene t plan is [OR is not] presented as the net of the 
amount recognised for a reimbursement.

The entity o sets an asset relating to one plan against a liability relating to another plan 
when the entity has a legally enforceable right to use a surplus in one plan to settle ob-
ligations under the other plan and intends either to settle the obligations on a net basis, 
or to realise the surplus in one plan and settle its obligation under the other plan simul-
taneously.

1.15. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
• the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an out ow of resources embodying economic bene ts or service 

potential will be required to settle the obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to 
settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to re ect the current best esti-
mate. Provisions are reversed if it is no longer probable that an out ow of resources embody-
ing economic bene ts or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation.
A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating de cits. If an entity has a contract that is 
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onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and measured as a 
provision.

Liabilities for unpaid claims are calculated based on the long term trend of annual claim pay-
ments. The long term trend is achieved by grouping claims paid in each of the previous ten 

nancial years according to the year of the accident or diagnosis of the disease and the number 
of years until a payment is made. The Fund makes an allowance for short term factors and
future claims in ations to project the likely incidence of future claim payments. Furthermore, a 
‘tail factor’ is applied to the results to re ect the fact that the claims data contains claim pay-
ments in respect of accidents that occurred ten or more years ago.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in 
note 30.

Where a fee is received by the entity for issuing a nancial guarantee and/or where a fee is 
charged on loan commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount 
required to settle the obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is charged and the entity con-
siders that an out ow of economic resources is probable, an entity recognises the obligation at 
the higher of:
• the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent 
 Liabilities and Contingent Assets;
 and
• the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative 
 amortisation recognised in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from   
 Exchange Transactions.

1.16. Commitments

Items are classi ed as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions 
that will normally result in the out ow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.
Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be dis-
closed in a note to the nancial statements, if both the following criteria are met:
• Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at signi cant cost (for example,  
 contracts for computer or building maintenance services); and
• Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of 
 the entity – therefore salary commitments relating to employment contracts or social 
 security bene t commitments are excluded.

1.17. Revenue from exchange transactions

1.17.1. Recognition
Exchange transactions are transactions in which the Fund receives assets or services, or 
has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the 
form of services rendered) to the other party in exchange.

Revenue is the gross in ow of economic bene ts or service potential during the report-
ing period when those in ows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases 
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relating to contributions from owners.

Amounts collected as an agent of the Fund or on behalf of other third parties are not 
economic bene ts or service potential that ow to the Fund and do not result in increas-
es in assets or decreases in liabilities. In an agency relationship, the gross in ows
of economic bene ts or service potential include amounts collected on behalf of the 
principal which do not result in an increase in net assets. Amounts collected on behalf of 
a principal are not recognised as part of revenue.

1.17.2. Measurement

Revenue from exchange transactions is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, be-
tween knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The consideration 
received by the Fund is in the form of cash and the amount of revenue is the amount of 
cash received or receivable by it.

When the in ow of cash is deferred, the fair value is determined by discounting all fu-
ture receipts using an imputed rate of interest. The imputed interest rate is the rate that 
discounts the nominal amount of the transaction to the current cash sales price of the 
services rendered.

1.17.3. Rendering of service
The Compensation Fund renders services to exempted employers in return for an 
administrative fee. Revenue associated to the receipt of the fee will be recognised by 
reference to the stage of completion when the outcome involving the rendering of the 
service can be estimated reliably at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can 
be estimated reliably when the all the following conditions are satis ed:
• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic bene ts or service potential associated with the  
 transaction will ow to the entity;
• the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured  
 reliably; and
• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction  
 can be measured reliably.

In terms of the percentage of completion method, revenue is recognised in the report-
ing period which the services are rendered.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a speci ed 
time frame, revenue is recognised on a straight line basis over the speci ed time frame 
unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of comple-
tion. When a speci c act is much more signi cant than any other acts, the recognition of 
revenue is postponed until the signi cant act is executed.

 When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be 
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised 
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that are recoverable. When the outcome of the transaction cannot be estimated
reliably and it is not probable that the costs incurred will be recovered, revenue is not 
recognised and the costs incurred are recognised as an expense. When the uncertain-
ties that prevented the outcome of the transaction being estimated reliably no
longer exist, revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the trans-
action at the reporting date.

When the uncertainty arises about the collectibility of an amount already included in 
revenue, the uncollectible amount is recognised as an expense and not as an adjust-
ment of the amount of revenue already recognised.

1.17.4. Interest and dividends

Revenue arising from interest and dividends received on the Fund’s investments in the 
pension and compensation portfolios is recognised when:
• It is probable that the economic bene ts or service potential associated with the  
 transaction will ow to the entity,
 and
• The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or de cit, using the e ective interest rate method.
Dividends or similar distributions are recognised, in surplus or de cit, when the entity’s 
right to receive payment has been established.

When an uncertainty arises about the collectibility of an amount already included in rev-
enue, the uncollectible amount is recognised as an expense and not as an adjustment of 
the amount of revenue already recognised.

1.18. Revenue from non-exchange transactions

1.18.1. Recognition

Non-exchange transactions are transactions in which the Fund receives value from an-
other entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value 
to another entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Revenue comprises gross in ows of economic bene ts or service potential received and 
receivable by an entity, which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases 
relating to contributions from owners. An in ow of resources from non exchange trans-
actions recognised as an asset and a corresponding credit is recognised as revenue.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a 
non-exchange transaction, an entity either receives value from another entity without 
directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another
entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Amounts collected as an agent of the government or other third parties will not give rise 
to an increase in net assets or revenue of the Fund, as the Fund cannot control the use, 
or bene t from, the collected assets in the pursuit of its objectives.
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Where the Fund incurs costs in relation to revenue arising from non-exchange transac-
tions, the revenue recognised is the gross in ow of future economic bene ts or service 
potential and any out ow of resources is recognised as a cost of the transaction.

Levies and penalty payments received from employers are accounted for as non-ex-
change revenue.

1.18.2. Measurement of revenue

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in 
net assets recognised by the entity.

When the Fund recognises an asset, it will also recognise revenue equivalent to the 
amount of the increase in net asset.

1.18.3. Fines and Penalties

The Fund imposes nes on employers for late submission of their return on equities as 
well as employees who register after the designated deadline. The Fund has a right to 
the economic bene ts or service potential from the nes when nes are imposed on 
applicable employers. Revenue will be recognised by the Fund when the receivable from 
the employer meets the de nition of an asset and sati es the recognition criteria. Fines 
are measured at the fair value of resources received or receivable.

1.18.4. Recognition of assets

An asset is a resource controlled by the Fund as a result of a past event and from which 
future economic bene ts will ow to the Fund. An asset is a non-exchange transaction is 
recognised only when the following recognition criteria are met:
 It is probable that the future economic bene ts or service potential associated  
 with the asset will ow to the Fund; and
 The fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

1.18.5. Measurement of assets

The asset acquired through a non-exchange transaction is initially measured at its fair 
value at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, an asset that meets the de nition of a nancial instru-
ment is measured and derecognised in accordance with the requirements of nancial 
instruments (see note on nancial instruments).

Where assessments have not been submitted by employers in the applicable period, the 
Fund uses judgement to estimate revenue due from these employers. The estimate is 
based on the most recent assessment recognised in the previous four years. When the 
assessment is received from the employer (even if in a di erent accounting period) the 
revenue is adjusted in the period which the assessment is received.
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1.19. Investment income

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the e ective interest method.

Where necessary, comparative gures have been reclassi ed to conform to changes in presen-
tation in the current year.

1.21. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoid-
ed had reasonable care been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the 
statement of nancial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expen-
diture is classi ed in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is 
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of nancial performance.

1.22. Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as de ned in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unautho-
rised expenditure, incurred in contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement 
of any applicable legislation, including:
 (a)  this Act; or
 (b)  the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in  
  terms of the Act; or
 (c)  any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial  
  government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) 
to 76(4) of the PFMA requires the following (e ective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identi ed during the current nancial year and which 
was condoned before year end and/or before nalisation of the nancial statements must also 
be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, no further 
action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the nancial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identi ed during the current nancial year and for 
which con nement is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure 
register. No further action is required with the exception of updating the note to the nancial 
statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous nancial year and is only condoned 
in the following nancial year, the register and the disclosure note to the nancial statements 
must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identi ed during the current nancial year and 
which was not condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant authority must be record-
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ed appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the irregular expenditure 
can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. 
Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. 
If recovery is not possible, the accounting o cer or accounting authority may write o  the 
amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the nancial statements. 

The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expen-
diture has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto 
must remain against the relevant programmer/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the 
note to the nancial statements and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register.

1.23. Budget information

Entity is typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authori-
sation’s (or equivalent), which is given e ect through authorising legislation, appropriation or 
similar.

General purpose nancial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether resources 
were obtained and used in accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis and presented by economic classi cation 
linked to performance outcome objectives.

The approved budget covers the scal period from 2015/04/01 to 2016/03/31.

The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities approved budgets under its control.

The annual nancial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore 
a comparison with the budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the 
Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

1.24. Related parties

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly 
owned by the South African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence 
of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only entities within the national sphere of 
government are considered to be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activi-
ties of the entity, including those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with 
legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may 
be expected to in uence, or be in uenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity.

Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of busi-
ness are disclosed.

1.25. Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur be-
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tween the reporting date and the date when the nancial statements are authorised for issue. 

Two types of events can be identi ed:
• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting  

events after the reporting date);
and

• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting  
events after the reporting date).

The entity will adjust the amount recognised in the nancial statements to re ect adjusting 
events after the reporting date once the event occurred.

The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its nancial e ect or a state-
ment that such estimate cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where 
non-disclosure could in uence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the nan-
cial statements.

1.26. Capitalised value of pensions

Pensions are paid to disabled claimants and widows and children of deceased workers from 
work related accidents or occupational diseases. The capitalised value of pensions (“CVP”) is 
the present value of future liabilities. The liability is based on assumptions as to future pension 
increases, mortality, demographics, management expenses and investment income, which 
are reviewed by management on an annual basis for reasonableness. The present value also 
provides for probable costs payable to the spouse and/or children on subsequent death of the 
pensioner. In addition to this basic liability value, contingency reserves are held to cover the 
possible impact of adverse variations of the Compensation Fund. This liability is recalculated at 
each reporting date, using the assumptions above. Independent actuarial valuations of the CVP 
are carried out annually and adjusted for any changes in the assumptions. Adjustments to the 
CVP are included in the surplus or de cit for the year.

1.27. Prior period error

Errors may arise from mistakes and oversights or misinterpretation of available information. 
Material prior period errors are adjusted retrospectively (that is, by restating comparative g-
ures), unless this is impracticable.

An omission or misstatement is material if it could in uence decisions of users, who are as-
sumed to have:

A reasonable knowledge of the public sector, economic activities and account;
A willingness to study the information with reasonable diligence.

The nature of a prior period error and the amount of the correction on each of the nancial 
statement line items a ected are required to be disclosed.

Hindsight should not be used when applying a new accounting policy to, or correcting amounts 
for, a prior period either in making assumptions about what management’s intentions would 
have been or estimating the amounts recognised, measured or disclosed in a prior period.
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Changes in accounting estimates will result when new information and new developments be-
come available and are therefore not corrections of errors Revisions of estimates do not relate 
to prior periods and a change in estimate is therefore applied prospectively.

130 Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 
ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

2. Investments
  

Designated at fair value
Listed shares                                                                                                                                           10,977,565       8,825,168

Unlisted shares                                                                                                                                        1,210,413          279,821

Bonds                                                                                                                                                36,476,615 37,857,184

Bills and promissory notes                                                                                                                       178,202           466,333

Loans and receivables                                                                                                                             2,617,865        2,324,523

40,483,095      40,927,861

51,460,660      49,753,029
Non-current assets

Designated at fair value                                                                                                                         36,476,630      37,652,192

Current assets

Designated at fair value                                                                                                                         14,984,029      12,100,836      

31 March 2016
Compensation Portfolio                                                   Loans and

other 
receivables

Fair value 

and loss

Designated as 
at fair value 

and loss

Total carrying 
amount

Fair value

Capital markets                                                                                     - 24,134,600                     - 24,134,600    24,134,600

Equity - Listed shares                                                                            - 7,332,744                     - 7,332,744                     7,332,744

Isibaya                                                                                                   - 1,204,549                     - 1,204,549                     1,204,549

Bills                                                                                                        -            - 48,623 48,623           48,623

Promissory notes                                                                                  - - 33,977 33,977                      33,977

Fixed deposits                                                                           832,767                     - - 832,767 832,767

Trading cash                                                                              849,983                     - - 849,983 849,983

1,682,750        32,671,893           82,600 34,437,243 34,437,243

Pension portfolio                                                                  Loans and
other 

receivables

Fair value 

and loss

Designated as 
at fair value 

and loss

Total carrying 
amount

Fair value

Capital market                                                                                        - 12,342,030                     - 12,342,030   12,342,030    

Equity - Listed shares                                                                            - 3,651,763                     - 3,651,763                     3,651,763                     

Bills                                                                                                        - - 23,161 23,161           23,161           

Promissory notes                                                                                  - - 72,442 72,442           72,442           

Fixed deposits                                                                          767,961 - - 767,961 767,961

Trading cash                                                                              167,137                              - - 167,137                     167,137                     

935,098        15,993,793           95,603 17,024,494 17,024,494

Totals Investments on 
31 March 2016

 2,617,848 48,665,686 178,203 51,461,737 51,461,737

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED



132 Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

ComComCompenpenpensatsatsationionion FuFuFundndnd AnnAnnAnnualualual ReReReporporport (t (t (20120120155 -5 - 20202016)16)16)

  

31 March 2016
Compensation Portfolio                                                   Loans and

other 
receivables

Fair value 

and loss

Designated as 
at fair value 

and loss

Total carrying 
amount

Fair value

Capital markets                                                                                     - 25,030,750                     - 25,030,750   25,030,750   

Equity - Listed shares                                                                            - 5,380,286                     - 5,380,286 5,380,286

Isibaya                                                                                                   - 279,823                     - 279,823 279,823

Bills                                                                                                        -            - 49,017   49,017   49,017 

Promissory notes                                                                                  - - 246,973 246,973 246,973

Fixed deposits                                                                           1,753,589                     - - 1,753,589 1,753,589

Trading cash                                                                              99,937                     - - 99,937        99,937        

1,853,526        30,690,859           295,990 32,840,375    32,840,375    

Pension portfolio                                                                  Loans and
other 

receivables

Fair value 

and loss

Designated as 
at fair value 

and loss

Total carrying 
amount

Fair value

Capital market                                                                                        - 12,826,434                                          - 12,826,434       12,826,434       

Equity - Listed shares                                                                            - 3,444,881                     - 3,444,881                           3,444,881                           

Promissory notes                                                                                  - - 170,343         170,343                             170,343                             

Fixed deposits                                                                          415,165 - - 415,165         415,165         

Trading cash                                                                              55,831                              - - 55,831                                55,831                                

470,996       16,271,315                    170,343    16,912,654    16,912,654    

Totals Investments on 
31 March 2016

2,324,522 46,962,174         466,333    49,753,029    49,753,029    

 
    

Investments (continued)

Financial assets at fair value

Basis of determining fair value

The following summarizes the signi cant methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair 
value of nancial instruments re ected in the table;

Money Market instruments

Money market instruments ( Financial instruments, Bills, Promissory notes ) are valued by the 
Money Market Curve. The nominal annual rate of interest compounded continuously is con-
verted to a simple rate for discounted securities.

Maturity Schedule Compensation Portfolio as at 31 March 2016
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Financial assets at fair value

Basis of determining fair value

The following summarizes the  methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair 
value of  instruments  in the table;

Money Market instruments

Money market instruments ( Financial instruments, Bills, Promissory notes ) are valued by the 
Money Market Curve  The nominal annual rate of interest compounded continuously is con-
verted to a simple rate for discounted securities.

Maturity Schedule Compensation Portfolio as at 31 March 2016

MATURITY SCHEDULE COMPENSATION PORTFOLIO AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

MONEY
MARKET

CAPITAL
MARKET

TRADING 
CASH

LISTED 
EQUITIES ISIBAYA TOTAL

0 - 3 months 359,929 - 849,983 7,332,744 1,204,549 9,747,205

3 - 12 months 555,438 - - - - 555,438

1 - 3 years - 1,003,959 - - - 1,003,959

3 - 7 years - 4,436,390 - - - 4,436,390

7 - 12 years - 7,784,161 - - - 7,784,161

12+ years - 10,910,090 - - - 10,910,090

915,367 24,134,600 849,983 7,332,744 1,204,549 34,437,243

MATURITY SCHEDULE PENSION PORTFOLIO AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

MONEY
MARKET

CAPITAL
MARKET

TRADING 
CASH

LISTED 
EQUITIES ISIBAYA TOTAL

0 - 3 months 234,391 - 167,137 3,651,763 - 4,053,291

3 - 12 months 629,173 - - - - 629,173

1 - 3 years - 619,998 - - - 619,998

3 - 7 years - 1,821,345 - - - 1,821,345

7 - 12 years - 4,241,255 - - - 4,241,255

12+ years - 5,659,432 - - - 5,659,432

863,564 12,342,030 167,137 3,651,763 17,024,494

1,778,931 36,476,630 1,017,120 10,984,507 1,204,549 51,461,737

Maturity Schedule Pension Portfolio as at 31 March 2016



134 Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

ComComCompenpenpensatsatsationionion FuFuFundndnd AnnAnnAnnualualual ReReReporporport (t (t (20120120155 -5 - 20202016)16)16)

MATURITY SCHEDULE PENSION PORTFOLIO AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

MONEY
MARKET

CAPITAL
MARKET

TRADING 
CASH

LISTED 
EQUITIES ISIBAYA TOTAL

0 - 3 months 286,225 - 55,832 3,444,881 -        3,786,938

3 - 12 months 299,283 52,470 - - -           351,753

1 - 3 years - 703,857 - - -           703,857

3 - 7 years - 2,781,021 - - -        2,781,021

7 - 12 years - 3,789,615 - - -        3,789,615

12+ years - 5,499,470 - - -        5,499,470

585,508 10,562,002 55,832 3,444,881 -      16,912,654

2,635,087 35,592,754 155,769 8,825,167 279,821 49,753,029

Maturity Schedule Pension Portfolio as at 31 March 2015

Maturity Schedule Compensation Portfolio as at 31 March 2015

MATURITY SCHEDULE COMPENSATION PORTFOLIO AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

MONEY
MARKET

CAPITAL
MARKET

TRADING 
CASH

LISTED 
EQUITIES ISIBAYA TOTAL

0 - 3 months 1,338,190 49,932 99,937 5,380,286 279,821 7,148,166

3 - 12 months 711,389 102,589 - - - 813,978

1 - 3 years - 1,874,152 - - - 1,874,152

3 - 7 years - 4,346,240 - - - 4,346,240

7 - 12 years - 9,336,884 - - - 9,336,884

12+ years - 9,320,955 - - - 9,320,955

2,049,579 25,030,752 99,937 5,380,286 279,821 32,840,375

3. Inventories

 

Consumable stores                      2,416              2,724

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED
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4. Receivables from non-exchange transactions 

           

Advances to Medical service providers 456,876 456,876

Disallowances 23,118 23,098

Duplicate payments to service providers 71,856 28,840

Other receivables 8 34

Provision for assessments not raised 2,753,000 1,403,000

Recoverable Medical expenses 9,565 9,025

Third party claims 182,837 183,448

Receivables of Contributions by Employers 9,851,702 9,427,368

Less: Allowance for impairment 13,348,962 11,531,689

Trade receivables (9,151,116) (9,042,153)

Advances to Medical Service providers (456,876) (456,876)

3,740,970 2,032,660

Age analysis of total gross Receivables from non-exchange transactions

30 days 1,736,208 326,592

60 days 117,233 103,168

90 days 14,866 66,490

180 days 211,874 420,783

365 days 1,428,587 3,131,821

more than 365 9,840,194 7,482,835

13,348,962 11,531,689

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of receivables from non-exchange transactions

Opening balance 9,499,029 8,490,966

Provision for impairment 108,963 1,008,063

9,607,992 9,499,029

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of 
Receivable from non-exchange transactions mentioned above. Refer to Note 21 for the debt 
impairment note.

The following factors and assumptions were used in the calculation of provision for 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions;

1.  Blocked inactive and estate debtors were fully provided for.
 2.  Individually signi cant debtors were provided for  from 180 days.
 3.  For the remaining debtors balance,s all debtors owing for more than 180 days 
  were provided for in full.
 4.  Sundry medical advances were provided for in full.

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED
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Age analysis of total gross Receivables from non-exchange transactions

The following is the ageing of material classes of receivables from 
non-exchange transactions:

                       

Contributions by employers

30 days 136,678 326,592

60 days 117,233 74,328

90 days 5,322 66,481

180 days 211,866 397,660

365 days 1,418,380 1,719,796

more than 365 days 7,962,223 3,842,511

9,851,702 6,427,368

Other receivables

30 days - -

60 days - -

90 days - -

180 days 8 34

365 days - -

more than 365 days - -

8 34

Recoverable medical expenses

30 days 372 -

60 days - -

90 days - -

180 days - -

365 days 9,193 9,025

more than 365 days - -

9,565 9,025

Duplicate payment to service providers

30 days 37,232 -

60 days - 25,080

90 days - -

180 days 9,544 -

365 days - -

more than 365 days 25,080 -

71,856 25,080

Provision for assessments not raised

30 days 1,561,905 -

60 days - -

90 days - -

180 days - -

365 days - 1,403,000

more than 365 days 1,191,095 -

2,753,000 1,403,000

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED
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Third party claims

30 days - -

365 days 1,014 -

more than 365 days 181,823 138,448

182,837 138,448

Disallowances

30 days 21 -

60 days - -

90 days - 9

180 days - 23,089

365 days - -

more than 365 days 23,097 -

23,118 23,098

Advances to medical service providers

30 days - -

60 days - -

90 days - -

180 days - -

365 days - -

more than 365 days 456,876 459,876

456,876 459,876

Receivables from exchange transactions

Accrued interest 24 23

Contribution exempted employer 41,378 34,070

Creditors with debit balances 172 4,993

Employee costs in advance 132 132

Investment income receivables 1,166,218 1,159,332

1,207,924 1,198,550

5. Receivables from exchange transactions

Ageing of receivables from exchange transactions

30 days 1,191,514 1,159,528

60 days - 2,122

365 days - 8,177

more than 365 days 16,410 28,723

1,207,924 1,198,550

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED



138 Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

ComComCompenpenpensatsatsationionion FuFuFundndnd AnnAnnAnnualualual ReReReporporport (t (t (20120120155 -5 - 20202016)16)16)

As at 31 March 2016, none of the receivables from exchange transactions, amounting to 
R 1 221 177 (2015: R 1 198 550), were impaired nor provided for.

The ageing of these Receivables from exchange transactions is as follows: 

Employee costs in advance

30 days - -

60 days - -

90 days - -

180 days - -

365 days - -

more than 365 days 132 132

132 132

Creditors with debit balances

30 days 172 145

60 days - 2,122

180 days - -

365 days - 2,726

more than 365 days - -

172 4,993

Investment income receivable

30 days 1,166,218 1,159,332

60 days - -

90 days - -

180 days - -

365 days - -

more than 365 days - -

1,166,218 1,159,332

Contribution exempted employer

30 days 25,100 28

60 days - -

90 days - -

365 days - 5,451

more than 365 days 16,278 28,591

41,378 34,070

Accrued interest

30 days 24 23

60 days - -

90 days - -

180 days - -

365 days - -

more than 365 days - -

24 23

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED
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Cash and cash equivalents consist of 

Bank balances 87,155 35,490

Cash on hand 3 3

Short-term deposits 240 61

87,398 35,554

6. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks and investments 
in money market instruments. There are no restrictions placed in the realisation or usability of 
cash balances.

7. Investment property

2016 2015

Cost/
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost/
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Investment property 8,300 - 8,300 7,500 - 7,500

Reconciliation of investment property - 2016

Opening 
balance

Fair value 
adjustments

Total

Investment property 7,500 800 8,300

Reconciliation of investment property - 2015

 Opening 
balance

Fair value 
adjustments

Total

Investment property 4,900 2,600 7,500

A register containing the information is available for inspection at the registered o ce of the 
entity.

Details of valuation

The e ective date of the revaluations was 31 March 2016. Revaluations were performed by an 
independent valuer, Poto Leonard Moyce Rural Valuers. Poto Leonard Moyce Rural Valuers are 
not connected to the entity and have experience in location and category of the investment 
property being valued.

The Investment Property  was revalued with reference to the market values of the properties 
with information received from  the deeds o ce.

The investment property is situated on ERF 252, Bhisho House. The building is leased to East-
ern Cape Department of Public Works.

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED



140 Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

ComComCompenpenpensatsatsationionion FuFuFundndnd AnnAnnAnnualualual ReReReporporport (t (t (20120120155 -5 - 20202016)16)16)

8. Property, plant and equipment

2016 2015

Cost/
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost/
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Land 36,000 - 36,000 36,000 - 36,000

Buildings 93,678 (5,529) 88,149 93,678 (3,831) 89,847

Furniture and xtures 19,105 (16,249) 2,856 18,733 (15,243) 3,490

Motor vehicles 2,825 (1,388) 1,437 2,953 (1,188) 1,765

IT equipment 12,940 (9,579) 3,361 11,756 (7,538) 4,218

Finance leased Assets 3,808 (2,373) 1,435 5,853 (3,434) 2,419

TOTAL 168,356 (35,118) 133,238 168,973 (31,234) 137,739

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2016

Opening 
balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Land 36,000 - - - 36,000

Buildings 89,847 - - (1,698) 88,149

Furniture and xtures 3,490 283 - (917) 2,856

Motor vehicles 1,765 - (40) (288) 1,437

IT equipment 4,218 1,184 - (2,041) 3,361

Finance leased Assets 2,419 420 - (1,404) 1,435

137,739 1,887 (40) (6,348) 133,238

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015

Opening 
balance

Additions Transfers Revalua-
tions

Deprecia-
tion

Total

Land 21,200 - - 14,800 - 36,000

Buildings 58,001 - - 33,695 (1,849) 89,847

Furniture and xtures 2,926 1,533 557 - (1,526) 3,490

Motor vehicles 2,080 - - - (315) 1,765

IT equipment 6,081 131 5,112 - (7,106) 4,218

Finance leased Assets 5,853 - - - (3,434) 2,419

96,141 1,664 5,669 48,495 (14,230) 137,739

Revaluations

The e ective date of the revaluations was 31 March 2015. Revaluations were performed by 
independent valuer, namely, The Property Partnership, and are not connected to the entity.

Land and buildings are re-valued independently every 3 years.

The Income Capitalisation approach was used which considers income and expense data relating 
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to the property being valued and estimates a value through a capitalisation process.  
The capitalisation rate is determined by the rate at which similar assets have traded recently.

A register containing the information required  is available for inspection at the registered  
of the entity.

9. Intangible assets

2016 2015

Cost/
Valuation

Accumulated 
amortisation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost/
Valuation

Accumulated 
amortisation 

and  
accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Computer software 21,329 (12,892) 8,437 21,329 (6,890) 14,439

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2016

Opening 
balance

Amortisation Total

Computer software and other intangible assets                                                     14,439 (6,002) 8,437

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015

 Opening 
balance

Amortisation Total

Computer software and other intangible assets      21,329 (6,890) 14,439

Pledged as security

None of the intangible assets are  pledged as security nor are there contractual commitments 
at year end for the acquisition of intangible assets.

10. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due
       - within one year 2,191 3,041

       - in second to  year inclusive 1,269 1,350

       - later than  years - -

3,460 4,391

less: future  charges - -

Present value of minimum lease payments 3,460 4,391

Non-current liabilities 2,191 3,041

Current liabilities 1,269 1,350

3,460 4,391

It is the Funds policy to lease certain equipment under  leases, the value of which is be-
ing determined by management at year end.

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED
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11. Payables from non-exchange transactions

Compensation medical and pension creditors 530,103 594,800

Other payables from non-exchange transactions 12,184 100

       542,287 594,900

Compensation medical and pension creditors relates to the money owed to the bene ciaries 
but due to a lack of banking details of these bene ciaries the Fund was unable to pay them. 
However strides will be made to locate all these bene ciaries by various media platforms.

12. Payables from exchange transactions

Debtors with credit balances 767,311 578,328

Trade payables 9,238 48,932

Unsettled investments 29,249 9,270

Unallocated receipts 12,085 83,938

817,883 720,468

Debtors with credit balances have been reclassi ed from receivables from exchange transac-
tions and represent employers who have overpaid on their assessment. 

13. Accruals

2016
Opening balance Additions Utilised 

during the 
year

Total

Accumulated leave 27,870 10,550 (7,466) 30,954

Service bonus(13th cheque) 12,738 2,629 (524) 14,843

Accrued expenses 14,666 552,736 (112,720) 454,682

55,274 565,915 (120,710) 500,479

2015
Opening balance Additions Utilised 

during the 
year

Total

Accumulated leave 38,879 7,961 (18,970) 27,870

Service bonus(13th cheque) 5,426 25,913 (18,601) 12,738

Accrued expenses 32,249 72,292 (89,875) 14,666

76,554 106,166 (127,446) 55,274

Included in accruals are the following items:
1.  Service bonus: Due to the split percentage agreement with the Department of 

  Labour the fund accrued for leave and bonus for all sta  including those on the 
  split percentage.
 2.  Accrued expenses: There is an invoice from the Department of Labour for shared 
  services. The amount also includes a transaction that occured after reporting  
  date with regards to payment made to a debt collector:  Refer to note 37

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED
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14. Provisions for outstanding claims

Reconciliation of provisions for outstanding claims - 2016

2016

Opening 
balance

Increase in 
provision 

during the 
period

Payments 
made during 

the period

Total

Total provision for outstanding claims                                                 10,548,000        2,088,968          (556,968)     12,080,000

Reconciliation of Non-current Provision for 
outstanding claims - 2016

Opening 
balance

Movement 
during the 

period

Less: Current 
portion

Total

Non-current Provision for outstanding claims                                     7,291,000       4,789,000      (4,093,000)      7,987,000

Reconciliation of provisions for outstanding claims - 2015

2015

Opening 
balance

Increase in 
provision 

during the 
period

Payments 
made during 

the period

Total

Total provision for outstanding claims                                                  7,752,935       4,155,075      (1,360,010)    10,548,000

Reconciliation of provision for outstanding 
claims - 2015

Opening 
balance

Movement 
during the 

period

Less: Current 
portion

Total

Non-current Provision for outstanding claims                                         7,752,935       2,795,065      (3,257,000)      7,291,000

Valuation methodology: General:

General

An Adjusted Bornheutter-Fergusson method was used to determine the Outstanding 
Claims Provision.

The Outstanding Claims Provision was determined by rst applying the Basic Chain Ladder 
(“BCL”) valuation method to the data.   For more recent accident years, the BCL method does 
not result in a plausible Outstanding Claims Provision due to recent changes in payment levels 
and settlement patterns.  The Outstanding Claims Provision for these years was derived as the 
independently calculated expected ultimate claim amount for each of these accident years re-
duced by claims paid to date. For medical claims, the method was used for the last two accident 
years only, but for all other bene t categories the period was extended to four years.

The provision was then discounted to re ect the extent to which it is expected that future 
investment returns will outstrip future in ation.  For all bene t types except medical, it was 
assumed that future investment returns will exceed claims in ation by 1%. For medical claims it 
was assumed that medical in ation will be equal to the expected investment return.

In accordance with insurance industry norms, the following margins were added to the di erent 
components of the Outstanding Claims Provision:
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• Expenses: 10%
• Mortality exposure: 7.5%
• Disability exposure: 10%
• Medical expense exposure: 15%.

Expense reserve

The number of claims expected, based on the Outstanding Claims Provision, is determined by 
dividing the provision into the average claim amount expected.  The average claim is derived 
as the average claim amount paid (in money-terms as at the valuation date) on all claims with 
accident date in or after the 2005/06 nancial year.

The expense reserve is determined as the number of claims represented in the Outstanding 
Claims Provision, multiplied by the assumed expense associated with administering and paying 
such a claim.

High-level description of the Basic Chain Ladder valuation method:

Claims processed are grouped into a matrix according to:

• Accident year: The nancial year of the accident or diagnosis or disease;
• Development year:  The di erence between the nancial year within which the claim 

was paid and the accident year.
• The claim payments are then adjusted for in ation (based on CPI gures) from date of 

payment till the valuation date, so that all the amounts in the matrix are in money terms 
 as at this date.   The in ation rates used are:

Historic in ation rates applied to past claims

In making this in ationary adjustment, we assume that claims are on average paid halfway 
through each nancial year. 

Temporary disability payments  2% per annum above CPI over the relevant period 
Permanent disability lump sum claims 2% per annum above CPI over the relevant period 
Fatal accident lump sums   2% per annum above CPI over the relevant period 
Medical claims     3% per annum above CPI over the relevant period 
Capitalised pensions and CAA bene ts 2% per annum above CPI over the relevant period

In making this in ationary adjustment, we assume that claims are on average paid halfway 
through each nancial year.

“Link ratios” (by how much the cumulative claim payments for a particular accident year is 
expected to increase from one development year to the next) are then calculated using the 
following formula:
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The development factors are then applied to total claims paid to date for each accident year to 
derive the total claims ultimately expected to be paid for that speci c accident year.

Tail factor adjustment:

TTD, PD and Death LS claims:  Payments for accident year 1992 are materially run o  and no 
need exists for the application of tail factors. For Medical expenses, claims are not yet fully run 
o .  A polynomial curve was tted to the percentage of claims that developed after 23 years for 

nancial years 1994 to 2016.  For capitalised pensions, claims are not yet fully run o .  An av-
erage percentage of the claims which developed after the sixth development year for accident 
years from 1994 to 2005 was determined.

15. Capitalised value of pensions

Carrying value
Opening Balances 18,044,000 17,261,000

Increase in Capitalised value of pension 90,153 (1,137,497)

Pension actuarial valuation 3,610,183 1,920,497

Pensions paid during the year (960,336) -

20,784,000 18,044,000

Non-current liabilities 19,742,000 17,152,000

Current liabilities 1,042,000 892,000

20,784,000 18,044,000

Method used is as follow:

The Pensioner and Constant Attendance Allowance Provision is determined by calculating the 
present value of all expected future:

• pension payments,
• constant attendance allowance payments and
• expenses associated with paying such pensions.

In the calculation, account is taken of expected future mortality, investment income and pen-
sion increases. The present value incorporates provision for the spouse and/or children on the 
subsequent death of a worker pensioner. It also allows for margins typically applied in actuarial 
valuations of insurance business.

The liability is calculated on a “best estimate” plus margins basis:

• The best estimate liability is determined such that where there is a 50% probability that 
 the actual cost will be either lower or higher than the estimated liability.
• The purpose of adding additional margins to the best-estimate liability is to protect the  

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED
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Pensions Account against possible future adverse experience.  Margins prescribed by  
actuarial practice notes for annuity business were applied.

The calculations allow for the following risk margins:

• Investment Return:  Expected pension payments and expenses were discounted using 
an investment return assumption lower than the best estimate by 0.25%.

• Mortality: Mortality assumption used in the provision calculations were reduced by 7.5% 
(implying improving longevity).

• Expenses:  Allowance was made for a 10% loading on the expected expenses and the 
 in ation assumption was increased by 10%.

The Basic Chain Ladder method to estimate the future capitalised pensions was used. The 
Bequest-Sherman method with a number of adjustments to the data was used for the previous 
valuation. Claims processed in each of the previous ten nancial years  were  grouped  into  a  
table  according  to  year  of  accident  (accident  year)  and  the  year  of  payment  of  the  claim 
(development year). The claim payments are then adjusted for in ation. The  link ratios per 
accident and development year with the following formula was calculated: (Cumulative claims 
paid in accident year x and development year i+1)/  (Cumulative claims paid in accident year x 
and development year x).  After investigation of these ratios, the accident years 2012, 2009 and
2001 were excluded in the calculation of the rst development factor. These accident years ap-
pear to have experienced a di erent development pattern compared to other accident years.

Tail factor

An increasing percentage of claims are paid in relation to development years beyond 17 years. 
We tted a polynomial to the percentage of claims that developed after 17 years for nancial 
years 1999 to 2016.

Opening balance 102,441 53,945

Change during the year - 48,496

       102,441 102,441

16. Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve movement relates to the fair value movement in Property, Plant and 
Equipment.

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED
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17. Revenue

Rental of facilities and equipment 1,019 1,013

Miscellaneous income 27 1,006

Administrative contributions by exempted employers (S88) 25,100 22,822

Interest received - investment 3,404,422 3,136,535

Dividends received 249,599 156,585

Contributions by employer 7,566,935 8,432,313

Penalties on late submission of  ROE's 107,155 112,145

Recoveries from third parties 1,014 -

11,355,271 11,862,419

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are as follows:

Administrative contributions by exempted employers (S88) 25,100 22,822

Dividends received 249,599 156,585

Interest received - investment 3,404,422 3,136,535

Miscellaneous income 27 1,006

Rental of facilities and equipment 1,019 1,013

3,680,167 3,317,961

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as follows:

Contributions by employer 7,566,935 8,432,313

Penalties on late submission of ROE's 107,155 112,145

Transfer revenue

Recoveries from third parties 1,014 -

7,675,104 8,544,458

18. Investment Revenue

Dividend revenue

Dividend income - Compensation portfolio 160,849 68,820

Dividend income - Pension portfolio 88,750 87,766

249,599 156,586

Interest revenue

Interest income - Bank 24,878 23,176

Interest revenue - Compensation portfolio 2,314,730 2,131,278

Interest revenue - Pension portfolio 1,064,813 982,081

3,404,421 3,136,535

3,654,020 3,293,121

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED
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Constant Attendance allowance 19,608 -

Increase in capitalised value of pension actuarial valuation 3,610,183 4,155,076

Compensation for temporary and permanent disability 132,247 3,000

Pension raised and paid in the same year 70,545 2,000

Medical claims (a) 2,031,353 186,240

Increase in provision for outstanding claims 2,088,968 1,683,733

7,952,904 6,030,049

(a) Medical claims are made up as follows:

Cash medical claims 2,057,682 190,000

Refunds due to the Fund (26,329) (3,760)

2,031,353 186,240

20. Employee related costs

Allowances 28,387 22,528

Basic 348,214 271,684

Bargaining council contributions 111 100

Bonus 4,250 2,344

Leave pay 5,716 19,412

Medical aid contributions 29,333 21,835

Overtime bene ts 6,217 4,738

Pension contributions 43,141 37,355

Thirteenth cheque 28,824 30,080

494,193 410,076

21. Debt impairment

Debt impairment 112,261 1,008,063

22. Administrative expenditure

23. Finance costs

Interest paid 5,770 211

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED
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24. General expenses

Assets expensed(Less than R 5000) 113 770

Auditors remuneration 8,856 9,743

Consulting and professional fees 41,609 32,915

Compensation board 804 1,576

Assessors' fees 2,545 2,670

ICT expenses 68,873 29,258

Investment management fees 49,415 29,707

Other expenses 92,816 104,001

Printing and stationery 3,552 3,553

Subsidies for accident prevention 7,323 3,553

Subsistence and travel 28,805 55,114

Training 3,894 3,850

Breach of Contract Debt Collector 398,042 -

Venue expenses 1,731 3,718

Discount Allowed - 211,886

708,378 492,314

The discounts were as a result of the Fund incentivising the employers to submit their ROE’s on-
line and pay within 30 days in order for them to qualify for discounts on their payments ranging 
between 5% and 15%. The is process was initiated in 2013/14 nancial year; however the Fund 
only implemented the discounts last nancial year. This was an once-o  arrangement in 2013.

25. Fair value adjustments

Investment property 800 2,600

Other nancial assets

    •  Investments (3,294,979) 2,821,622

(3,294,179) 2,824,222

26. Auditors’ remuneration

Fees 8,856 9,743

27. Operating lease

The fund’s signi cant leasing arrangements  includes leases of  Buildings: 

• There are no contingent rent payable on these leases.
• Terms of renewal for all contracts are month to month ; and
• There are no unusual restrictions imposed by lease arrangements.

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED
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2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED

Total operating lease amounts 73,836 83,945

28. Cash generated from operations

(De cit) surplus Adjustments  
for: Depreciation and

(1,302,955) 6,639,552

amortisation 12,350 21,119

Gain on sale of assets and liabilities 14 -

Fair value adjustments 3,294,179 (2,824,222)

Increase(Decrease) in Accruals 445,204 (21,280)

Increase in the Actuarial pension adjustment 2,740,000 783,000

Increase in the Provision for outstanding claims 1,531,998 2,795,065

Transfer to Unclaimed monies 9,353 12,865

Debt impairment 112,261 1,008,063

Refunds due to the Fund (26,329) (3,760)

Increase in inventories 308 (123)

Increase(Decrease) in Receivables from exchange transactions (9,373) (1,130,930)

Decrease in Other receivables from non-exchange transactions (1,794,245) (1,913,669)

Increase in Prepayments (327) (613)

Increase (Decrease) in Payables from exchange transactions 97,419 32,066

Increase (Decrease) in Payable from Non-exchange transactions (52,612) 56,382

5,057,245 5,453,515

29. Commitments

Authorised capital expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for

•   Property, plant and equipment                                                                                                                  541 13

Total capital commitments

Already contracted for but not provided for 541 13

Authorised operational expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for

•   Services 10,772 37,611

•   Goods 325 -

•   Contracts 31,705 -

•   Minor Assets 23 -

42,825 37,611

Total operational commitments

Already contracted for but not provided for 42,825 37,611

Not yet contracted for and authorised by members 6,884 2,789

49,709 40,400
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This committed expenditure relates to capital and operating expenditure and will be nanced 
by available bank facilities and retained surpluses.

Authorised capital expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for

•   Property, plant and equipment                                                                                                                  541 13

Total capital commitments

Already contracted for but not provided for 541 13

Authorised operational expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for

•   Services 10,772 37,611

•   Goods 325 -

•   Contracts 31,705 -

Operating leases - as lessee (expense)

Minimum lease payments due

•   Within one year 17,008 16,459

•   In second to fth year inclusive 2,067 12,651

19,075 29,110

30. Contingencies

Licences in terms of Section 30 of the Act to carry out the business of the Fund in certain indus-
tries have been granted by the Minister of Labour to two Mutual Associations. These mutual 
associations must deposit securities with the Fund to cover its liabilities. Furthermore, certain 
local authorities have been granted exemption from paying annual assessments and are liable 
to pay compensation bene ts to employees who get injured while on duty. In terms of Section 
31 of the COIDA, these exempted employees are required to deposit securities / cede securities 
to the Fund which are equivalent to the capitalized value of the pensions of their employees.

If a mutual association or an exempted employer fails to meet its liabilities in full in terms of 
the Act, the Accounting Authority may apply such securities to pay the liabilities and the balance 
of any liabilities not paid from such securities will have to be paid from Reserves from the Fund 
which creates a contingent liability to the Fund. The extent of securities held / ceded to the 
Fund amounts to R344 million ( 2015 : R 1 612 Million).

Furthermore the fund has received approximately 316 (2015 :181 )notices of motions and sum-
mons and as a result thereof is exposed to approximately R 310 million (2015: R 780 million).

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED
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31. Related parties
Relationships
Board Members   Refer to members’ report note 32
Ultimate controlling entity  Department of Labour
Senior management   Refer to note 32
Audit Committee    Refer to note 32
Department of labour   The department of Labour pays salaries of  and the 
     Fund reimburse them for the split percentage for the 
     shared services
Rand Mutual Association (RMA) Provides the support to the Fund on the 
     operational systems namely; Umehluko
Medical services providers  The four medical services that received interest free loans 
     from the Fund in 2012/13  year. Only MediClinic 
     paid back the loan of R77 million in 2013

Board Members who are serving without Compensation:
Ms Thelma Pugh
Mr Gys Mcintosh
Mr Charles Mbekeni
Mr B Kistansamy
Mr Tibor Szana
Mr Mongezi Mngqibisa 
Mr Patrick Matshidze 
Mr Jay Singh

Department of Labour:

Transactions and balances with the National departments of government and state controlled 
entities which occur other than in accordance with the operating parameters established are 
regarded as related parties transactions. The Fund is an entity of the Department of labour. 
Salaries of the Commissioner and  and employees are remunerated out of the National 
Revenue Fund which is in turn reimbursed out of the Fund. Expenditure in respect of COIDA 
related services rendered to the Fund by provincial  and labour centres of the Depart-
ment of labour are also reimbursed to the Department of Labour. The Director-General is the 
Accounting Authority and the Minister and Deputy Minister are the Executing Authority

Transactions between the Fund and Rand Mutual Association:

There are several board members of RMA who are also on the board of the Fund. This creates a 
related party transaction between the Fund and RMA. The Fund has the use of the RMA system 
for claims and it pays a monthly maintenance fee for this system. The system came into opera-
tion on 1 August 2014. R6 177 (2015: R7 540)

Loans to Service providers:

The Fund had made advance payments to 5 Medical service providers in 2013 amounting to 
R500 million.  The amounts of these payments have been  as debtors in the accounts 
of the Fund. The detailed balances owing by each service provider is summarized below. How-
ever one service provider has since refunded the Fund.



153Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

ComComCompenpenpensatsatsationionion FuFuFundndnd AnnAnnAnnualualual ReReReporporport (t (t (20120120155 -5 - 20202016)16)16)

Related party balances

Loan accounts - Owing (to) by related parties

Life Care 108,233 108,223

Coid Link 47,690 47,690

Compsol 150,953 150,963

Net Care 150,000 150,000

Allowance for impairment (456,876) (456,876)

Related party transactions

Department of labour: Amounts paid and recovered on behalf 
of Department of Labour

Compensation of employees 494,758 410,076

Goods and services 182,995 121,339

Transfers - 4,893

EOH payments

MSO 7,746 7,863

Kofax - 7,611

Rand Mutual Association

Software Licences billed 11,677 6,177

Paid during the year (7,846) (6,177)

3,831 -

32. Executive Emoluments

During the year under review the following changes occurred at the Fund:

01 June 2015 Compensation Commissioner (Mr SS Mkhonto ) was transferred to DoL and Mr V 
Mafata was seconded from the UIF to act as the Compensation Commissioner; he was subse-
quently appointed as Compensation Commissioner with e ect from 01 April 2016.

01 July 2015 Director: Organisational E ectiveness (Mr S Nkhabelane) was transferred to DoL 
and Mr J Ledwaba was transferred to CF as Director: Organisational E ectiveness.

01 September 2015 both Directors: Compensation Claims (Mr B Dingaan) and Director:  
Financial Control (Ms LJ van Wyk) were transferred to UIF. Ms P Sihlangu was transferred from 
UIF to CF as Director: Compensation Claims.

01 November 2015 Director: Financial Reporting (Mr P Moloto) was rotated to Director: 
Financial Control.

30 September 2015 Director: Human Resource Management (Ms TF Moleko) retired. Director: 
Income (Ms E Ntshabele) and Director: Medical Services (Ms KW Tselane) were seconded to 
SOE. Chief Director: Corporate Services (Mr T Mokomatsidi) was seconded to DoL.

O1 March 2016 Principal Legal O cer ( ) was appointed.

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED
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Executive 

2016
Emolument Pension paid 

or receiv-
able

Total

Compensation Commissioner 756 322 131 1,209

Chief Financial O cer 857 174 176 1,207

Chief Director: Human resource management 671 269 127 1,067

Chief Director: Operations 798 178 151 1,127

Director: Medical services 573 230 109 912

Director: Medical claims 652 103 128 883

Director: Financial Reporting 576 246 109 931

Director: Income 523 281 107 911

Director: Communications 655 125 124 904

Director: Human resources 307 112 54 473

Director: Organisational e ectiveness 590 132 117 839

Director: Compensation 518 251 106 875

Director: Risk Management 645 136 122 903

Director:  Call Centre 664 164 126 954

Director: SCM 645 128 122 895

Director: Financial Control 239 72 49 360

Director: Internal audit 592 158 121 871

Principal legal administration o cer 101 11 10 122

10,362 3,092 1,989 15,443

2015

Emolument Pension paid 
or receiv-

able

Total

Compensation Commissioner 777 307 147 1,231

Chief Financial O cer 870 252 170 1,292

Chief Director: Human resource management 643 248 122 1,013

Chief Director: Operations 426 89 85 600

Director: Medical services 627 97 119 843

Director: Medical claims 549 220 104 873

Director: Financial Reporting 554 235 105 894

Director: Income 503 270 103 876

Director: Communications 630 105 119 854

Director: Human resources 557 218 105 880

Director: Organisational e ectiveness 538 225 102 865

Director: Compensation 499 268 102 869

Director: Risk Management 597 123 118 838

Director:  Call Centre 354 79 70 503

Director: SCM 450 93 88 631

Director: Financial Control 191 57 39 287

Director: Internal audit 138 44 30 212

8,903 2,930 1,728 13,561
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Board members fees 

2016

Emoluments Total

Mr F Xaba 52 52

Mr Cowley: Busa  30 30

Mr Phala: Busa 6 6

Mr Samela : Nactu 36 36

Mr S Tsiane:Cosatu 54 54

Mrs J Bodibe: Cosatu 116 116

Mr S Motloung: Fedusa 96 96

Ms Ameyaw Kula 50 50

Prof MP Taukobong 17 17

MR S Sobuwa HPCSA                                                                                                                              3                                                                                                                              3                                                                                                                              

460 460

2015

Emoluments Total

Mr F Xaba 139 139

Mr Cowley: Busa  28 28

Mr Phala: Busa 31 31

Mr Samela : Nactu 23 23

Mr S Tsiane:Cosatu 73 73

Mrs J Bodibe: Cosatu 114 114

Mr S Motloung: Fedusa 73 73

Ms Ameyaw Kula 13 13

Prof MP Taukobong 26 26

                                                                                                                             520                   520                   

Audit committee member fees 

The following fees were paid to the audit committee members:

Emoluments 
2016

Emoluments 
2015

Ms R Kalidass 243          160

Mr K Buthelezi  176          160

Mr L Mangquku  225          396

Mr C Terhoeven  140          122

Mr F Xaba                                                                                                                                            96  92                                                                                                                                               

Risk committee member fees
Emoluments 

2016
Emoluments 

2015

Mr L Manqguku 342 188

Mr K Buthelezi 104 90

446 278
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33. Prior period errors

There has been a restatement in the prior year balances and net surplus due to the following:

 1.  Property, Plant and Equipment were transferred  from DOL to the Fund in the 
  prior years. (i.e.the Plasma television).
 2. The Fund didn’t record the nance lease as part of Property, Plant and Equipment.
 3.  The Fund was given the right to use the parking that should be part of assets
 4.  During the previous year the Fund did pay DOL thereby recognising the shared 
  services and salary paid by DOL on behalf of the Fund; the Fund went on to make 
  an accrual thereby double accounting for the DOL claim
 5.  The Fund reversed Interest and penalties that were incorrectly charged to the 
  employers
 6.  EOH repaid the Fund for the services not rendered as part of PPP.
 7.  The Fund went on to bill  DOL for the ss88 contribution for exempted employers 
  relating to the prior years that have been long outstanding
 8.  Unicomm refunded the Fund for overpayment of R20 000 instead of R200.
 9.  The Fund had to reclassify the interest ( nance charges) that were recorded as 
  general expenses

The correction of the error(s) resulted in adjustments as follows:

Statement of Financial Performance 

Net Surplus previously stated - 6,571,807

Basic Salary - 26,697

Allowances - 1,874

Bonus -    73

Thirteenth cheque -  1,707

Leave pay -    82

Overtime - 188

Bargaining councils -       9

Pension Contributions -   3,196

Medical Contributions - 1,870

Subsistence and travel -   925

Repairs and maintenance -  78

Depreciation and amortisation - 7,089

Professional fees - 277

Training -  263

Venues and facilities -    7

Lease rental on Operating lease - 8,985

Discount allowed -  (211,886)

Finance Costs -   13

ICT Expense -  10,345

Subsidies and prevention -  125

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED
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Statement of Financial Performance (continued)

Stationery and printing -  314

Compensation Board - 178

General Expenses -  1,697

Contribution exempted employer - 22,822

Refunds due - 3,760

Revenue from non-exchange transactions: Contributions by employers - 211,905

Revenue from non-exchange transactions: interest and penalties -  (6,279)

Net Surplus restated - 6,639,553

Statement of Financial Position 

2016
Previously 
reported

Prior period 
adjustment

-
tion

Restated 
balance

Receivables from exchange transactions 1,175,728 22,822 - 1,198,550

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 2,035,473 (2,813) - 2,032,660

Cash and cash equivalents 35,534 20 - 35,554

Property, plant and equipment 142,338 (4,599) - 137,739

Intangible Assets 12,815 1,624 - 14,439

Accruals (102,816) 47,542 - (55,274)

Payables from exchange transactions (444,979) - (149,821) (594,800)

Payables from non-exchange transactions (870,676) 387 149,821 (720,468)

Accumulated surplus 6,571,807 67,746 - 6,639,553

Revaluation 109,591 (7,150) - 102,441

Finance lease obligation - 4,391 - 4,391

Statement of Financial Performance Previously 
reported

Prior period 
adjustment

Restated 
balance

Basic Salary 298,383 (26,699) 271,684

Allowance 24,402 (1,874) 22,528

Bonus 2,417 (72) 2,345

Thirteenth cheque 31,787 (1,707) 30,080

Leave pay 19,494 (82) 19,412

Overtime 4,926 (188) 4,738

Bargaining Councils 108 (8) 100

Pension 40,551 (3,196) 37,355

Medical 23,705 (1,870) 21,835

Subsistence and travel 56,039 (925) 55,114

Repairs and maintenance 2,871 (98) 2,773

Depreciation and maintenance 14,030 7,089 21,119

Professional Fees 33,192 (277) 32,915

Lease rental on operating lease 86,010 (7,918) 78,092

Discount allowed - 211,886 211,886

Finance costs 224 (13) 211

ICT Expenses 29,707 (11,410) 18,297

Subsidies and prevention 56,039 (125) 55,914

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED
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Stationery and printing 3,867 (314) 3,553

Compensation Board 1,754 (178) 1,576

Venues and facilities 3,725 (7) 3,718

Training 4,293 (263) 4,030

General Expenses 105,497 (1,677) 103,820

Contribution exempted employer - (22,822) (22,822)

Refunds due - (3,760) (3,760)

Interest and penalties 118,423 6,279 124,702

Contributions by employers 8,220,408 (211,905) 8,008,503

- (72,134) 9,109,718

Certain comparative gures have been reclassi ed or reinstated. 

The e ects of the reclassi cation or reinstated as follows:

1. Receivables from exchange transactions Explanation Amount

1. Increase in Receivables from exchange transactions 22,822
1.1. Increase in Contribution exempted employers S88 During the year the Fund invoiced

the Department of Labour for the
services rendered on their behalf
in terms of section 88 of COIDA
on exempted employers, This
relate to the National and
Provincial Departments

22,822

2. Receivables from exchange transactions
2. Decrease in Receivables from non-exchange 
transactions

(2,813)

2.1. Decrease in Receivables from non-exchange: Trade 
Receivables

The Fund refunded the
employers that quali ed for
discounts relating to 2012 when
the ROE website was introduced.
This was part of the incentive
should the employers use the
website and pay within 30 days of
the invoice

   (211,886)

2.2. Decrease in Receivables from non-exchange: Trade 
Receivables

There was a reversal of Interest and
penalties relating to the prior
years that the Fund incorrectly
charged the employers

 (6,279)

2.3. Decrease in Receivables from non -exchange:Other 
Receivables

EOH refunded the Fund the
amount that was held on trust for
the services that were not
rendered as part of the PPP
agreement

   (313)

2.4 Increase in Receivables from non-exchange: Trade 

Receivables

The Fund made a duplicate
payment to the medical services
providers

3,760

2.5 Increase in Receivables from non-exchange: Trade 

Receivables

During the previous nancial year
the Fund did not adequately
provide for the assessment not
raised

      211,905
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3. Cash and cash equivalents Explanation Amount

3. Increase in Cash and cash equivalents 20

3.1. Increase in Cash and cash equivalents During the year the Fund was
refunded R20 000 by UniComm
for the amount incorrectly
charged for two-way radios. The
amount should have been R200

20

4. Accruals
4. Decrease in Accruals (47,542)
4.1. Decrease in Accruals During this current year the Fund

discovered that there was a pay-
ment made to DoL for the shared 
services and salaries and the Fund 
went on to accrue for the same in-
voice, The Fund had to reverse the 
accrual in the nancial year under 
review.

(47,542)

5. Payables from exchange transactions
5. Decrease in Payables from exchange transactions 150,207

5.1. Decrease in Payables from exchange transactions: 
Unallocated receipts

During the year the Fund had to
classify the unreconciled amounts 
for the services that were rendered 
in 2015 by GCIS for the promotion 
of ROE website Reclassi cation of 
debtors with credit balances

 65

5.2. Decrease in Payables from exchange transactions: 
Debtors with credit balances

incorrectly included under Pay-
ables from non-exchange transac-
tions, this were unclaimed monies 
that are less than 12 months.
During the year the Fund had to

  149,821

5.3. Decrease in payables from exchange transactions: 
Trade payables

reverse the incorrectly recognised
accruals.
During the nancial year the Fund

10

5.4. Decrease in payables from exchange transactions: 
Trade payables

revered the incorrectly
reclassi ed creditors with debit 
balances.

      310

6. Payables from non-exchange transactions
6. Increase in Payables from non-exchange transactions 149,821

6.1. Increase in Payables from non-exchange transactions:
Compensation,Medical and Pension creditors

The Fund had to reclassify the
unclaimed monies that were under 
12 months to the correct allocation

149,821

7. Intangible Assets
7. Increase in Intangible Assets 1,626

7.1. Increase in Computer Software and other intangible 
assets

The Fund revalued the intangible
assets

1,626

8. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
8. Decrease in PPE 4,599

8.1. Decrease in the PPE The Fund derecognised the
parking for visitors as it does not 
form of the Fund’s building
The Fund had to reclassify the

7,150

(2,419)

8.2. Increase in PPE Finance lease originally
recognised as operating lease
The Fund had to record the (132)

8.3. Increase in PPE plasma screens that were
transferred by DoL -
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9. Decrease in revaluation reserve Explanation Amount

9. Decrease in revaluation reserve                                                                      
9.1. Increase in Cash and cash equivalents The Fund derecognised the parking 

for visitors as it does not form of 
the Fund’s building

7,150 

Finance lease obligation -

Increase in the Finance lease obligation                                                               The Fund was not recognising 
nance lease lease; that was mainly 

part of the operating lease

4,391

Statement of Financial Performance                                                                                     Explanation Amount

Decrease in the Compensation of employees                                                                                                                                 During the 2014/15 nancial year, 
the Fund double accounted for 
the February DoL claim; in that the 
Fund accrued for it and as well paid 
for it

(35,696)

Decrease in Adminstrative expenses                                                                                        During the 2014/15 nancial year, 
the Fund double accounted for 
the February DoL claim; in that the 
Fund accrued for it
and as well paid for it

(18,802)

Increase in deprecation and amortisation                                                                                 The Fund had to reclassify the 
Finance lease originally recognised 
as operating lease and further-
more; the Fund had to record the 
plasma screens that were trans-
ferred by DoL

7,089

Increase in the contribution of employers                                                                                 During the previous nancial year 
the Fund did not adequately pro-
vide for the assessment not raised

(211,905) 

Increase in the contributions by exempted employers During the year the Fund invoiced 
the Department of Labour for the
services rendered on their behalf in
terms of section 88 of COIDA on
exempted employers, This relate to 
the National and Provincial Depart-
ments

(22,822)

Increase in  admin expenses The Fund refunded the employers 
that quali ed for discounts relating
to 2012 when the ROE website was
introduced. this was part of the
incentive should the employers use
the website and pay within 30 days
of the invoice

211,886

Increase in nance costs The Fund had to reclassify the
interest on late payment of
invoices initially recognised as legal
fees

 (13)

Decrease in interest and penalties The were reversal of Interest and
penalties relating to the prior years 
that the Fund incorrectly charged
the employers

  6,279

Decrease benefits  paid (medical claims) The Fund made an duplicate 
payment to the medical services 
providers

(3,760)

(67,744)
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35. Risk management 

Financial risk management 

In terms of Section 18(2) of the Compensation of Occupational Diseases Act (Act no 130 of 1993 
(“COIDA”), the Public Investment Corporation (“PIC”) is appointed as the Fund’s Investment 
Manager. The Fund transfers surplus cash to the PIC to invest in terms of the Fund’s investment 
strategy and the investment policy of the PIC. All investments and deposits are registered by 
the PIC in the Fund’s portfolio account.  The Fund is exposed to nancial risk through its nan-
cial assets and liabilities. The main components of nancial risk are:

Liquidity risk

The Fund is exposed to daily call on its available cash resources, arising mostly from short term 
claims.  Liquidity risk is the risk that cash resources or other nancial assets are not available to 
pay claims when due. The Fund ensures that adequate levels of cash are immediately available 
without incurring penalties. The Fund is exposed to daily call on its available cash resources, 
arising mostly from short term claims. Cash ow reports are prepared daily to ensure that the 
Fund’s has su cient funds to cover all the operational expenses. The Fund’s investment man-
date is guided by its operational requirements.

The Fund’s asset allocation ranges and attribution analysis on overall performance benchmark 
as per investment agreement.

Compensation investment portfolio

Category Ranges On overall performance for the 
portfolio on overall benchmark

Cash and money market 3%                           0% - 5%        

Capital market 65% 60% - 70%  

Domestic equity  22% 17% - 27%

Socially Responsibility Investment     10% 0% - 10%

Pension investment portfolio Asset 
allocation

ranges

Attribution analysis on overall 
performance for the portfolio on 

overall benchmark

Cash and money market 2,5% 0% - 5%  

Capital market 67.5% 62.5% - 72.5%

Domestic equity  20% 15% - 25%

Socially Responsibility Investment     10%                                                                                                                              0% - 10%                                                                                                                              

The table below analyses the entity’s derivative nancial instruments which will be settled on a 
gross basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the statement 
of nancial position to the contractual maturity date. The amount disclosed in the table are 
the contractual undercounted cash ows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying 
balances as the impact of discounting is not signi cant.
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As at 31 March 2016  Carrying
amount

R’000

Contractual

R’000

6 Months
or less
R’000

Debtors with credit balances                                                                                             767,311          767,311          767,311

Compensation, medical and pension creditors                                                                 530,103          530,103          530,103

                                              1,297,414                1,297,414                  1,297,414

As at 31 March 2016 Carrying
amount

R’000

Contractual

R’000

6 Months
or less
R’000

Debtors with credit balances                                                                                             578,326          578,328          578,328

Compensation, medical and pension creditors                                                                 594,800          594,800          594,800

                                  1,173,126               1,173,128              1,173,128

Credit risk 

The Fund has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterpart will be unable to pay 
amounts in full when due.  The key areas of exposure are amounts due from employers and 
investment securities. Assessments due are represented by assessments raised on employers. 
Assessments raised are distributed nationally across di erent classes of employers in terms of 
an industrial classi cation approved by the Director General as supported by the Compensa-
tion for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act (Act no. 130 of 1993). any changes from previ-
ous year in respect of objectives, policies and processes for managing risks and in methods to 
measure the risks. 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative nancial instruments 
and trade debtors. The entity only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit 
standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Account receivables are presented net of allowance for impairment, estimated by the Fund’s 
management based on prior experience and the current environment. The credit risk with 
respect to account receivables is limited due to the large number of employers and their distri-
bution across di erent industries and geographical areas. However, recoveries of outstanding 
amounts from liquidated and deceased estates carries a higher risk of moreover, due to the 
nature of accounts.

The Act provides the framework wherein the Fund assess employers and collects the assess-
ments due. The Fund has policies and procedures in place to ensure that assessments are 
made accurately and followed up timely, including issuing of penalties and interest on late 
payment.The Fund has an approved credit risk policy, which has been included in the invest-
ment mandate given to the Asset manager. The Fund utilises the policy to manage the credit 
risk limits and exposures by constraining the magnitude and tenor of exposures to counterpart 
and issuers

The Fund also uses the DI900 as a guide on limit setting for the Banking institutions. The Com-
pensation Fund only invests in listed instruments that are at least “A”s de ned by Fitch IBCA 
or any recognised credit rating agency. The mandate also permits investment in the following 
asset classes: cash, money markets, capital markets and domestic equities. Financial assets 
exposed to credit risk at  year end were as follows:
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Compensation portfolio Pension portfolio
2016 2015 2016 2015

AAA/Aaa 76% 63% 74% 75%

AAA/Aa1 12% 11% 14% 15%

AA/Aa2 10% 9% 10% 8%

AA-/Aa3 0% 2% 0% 0%

A+/A1 1% 2% 0% 0%

A/A2 1% 3% 0% 0%

A-/A3 0% 1% 2% 2%

Non-Rated 0% 9% 0% 0%

100 100 100 100

Concentration risk 

The carrying amount of nancial assets (net of impairment losses) represents the maximum 
credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Compensation
portfolio

Pension portfolio Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Capital Market 24,134,600 24,930,699 12,342,030 12,826,434 36,476,630 37,757,133

Equity 7,495,221 5,423,206 3,735,995 3,472,156 11,231,216 8,895,362

Money markets 915,562 2,149,630 166,799 585,508 1,082,361 2,735,138

Cash and cash equivalents 850,517 94,332 863,554 52,047 1,714,071 146,379

Receivables from non-exchange 
transactions

3,740,970 2,032,660 - - 3,740,970 2,032,660

Socially Responsible Investments 1,204,549 279,821 - - 1,204,549 279,821

38,341,419 34,910,348 17,108,378 16,936,145 55,449,797 51,846,493

Money market and cash 

Establishment of Investment limits per issuer for money markets. Money market instruments 
are spread across the South African Banks with a minimum of credit rating of “A” in order to 
diversify the counterpart’s exposure.

The limits are guided by DI900 information from the South African Reserve bank. 

The limits are as follows:

Instruments Maximum limit per user

ABSA 0% - 40%

First Rand 0% - 40%

Investec 0% - 40%

Nedbank 0% - 40%

Standard Bank 0% - 40%

Other Issuers 0% - 40%
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Capital Markets
Establishment of Investment limits per issuer for Capital markets

Instruments Maximum limit per user

Government bonds 0% - 100%

Other bonds (Corporate, Parastatal etc.) 0% - 20%

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and equity prices will 
a ect the Fund’s income or the value of its holding of nancial instruments.

Interest rate risk

The Fund holds more than 50% of its nancial assets in debt securities (Government Bonds 
and Public Utility Bonds) and substantial investments in cash and cash equivalents and money 
market instruments. The return on these instruments, and the market value of debt securities 
are a ected by uctuations in interest rates.

Excluding the movement in the pension’s liability and rebates provision, which is discretionary, 
the Fund currently covers all claims and bene ts from operational cash, and therefore is not 
dependent on investment income to sustain its operations. The pension’s liability is actuarially 
valued on an annual basis, which is impacted by the future anticipated interest return. Changes 
in interest rates are managed on behalf of the Fund by the PIC.

Compensation
portfolio

Pension portfolio

2016 2015 2016 2015
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Capital Markets 24,134,600 25,030,750 12,342,030 12,826,434

Money market 915,367 2,049,579 862,564 585,508

Subtotal 25,049,967 27,080,329 13,204,594 13,411,942

Total variable rate instruments 849,963 99,937 167,137 55,832

25,899,930 27,180,266 13,371,731 13,467,774

This risk is the potential nancial loss as a result of adverse movements in interest rates that af-
fects the value of bonds and money market instruments. Compensation Funds have exposure 
to interest rate risk through investments in money markets and bonds. The purpose of sensi-
tively analysis is to reveal any vulnerabilities of the portfolio to changes in the value drivers. For 
an equities portfolio the driver of value are the equity prices, while for a xed income portfolio 
the interest rates that determine the value of the investments are the value drivers. This type of 
analysis is overlooking in nature in that the current holdings of the portfolio at the point in time 
are used to assess the impact on the portfolio value due to potential changes in the value driv-
ers. The limitations of the sensitivity analysis are that there are no probabilities attached to the 
scenarios created as well as the fact that one is using a limited number of scenarios. The invest-
ment portfolio sensitivity is evaluated through stress testing the portfolio using the following 
methodology.
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The portfolio is separated into two: equities and xed income. The stress test is a point in time 
estimate.

On bonds the yields to maturity is moved by the speci ed quantum and the bond revalued 
(bond pricing formula). The aggregate value of all instruments represents the bond portfolio 
value and the di erence with the base value i.e. the current value represents the gain or loss.

The sensitivity to interest rate movements is measured by the duration of the xed interest ex-
posure. Such duration is managed relative to an appropriate benchmark. To manage the dura-
tion PIC utilises a combination of instruments to get closer to the benchmark duration.

The xed income asset class is not as volatile as the equity markets, an assumption of this 
sensitivity analysis is that the interest rates move by 50 basis points at a time. This analysis as-
sumes that all variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013.

The e ect of changes in interest rates on the xed income component of the assets under 
management, which excludes non performing instruments and over the counter structured 
products are set out in the following tables:
 

Compensation
portfolio

Pension portfolio

loss
Market value

of bonds loss
Market value

of bonds
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Spread in basis points

200 (2,944,638) 22,105,524 (2,325,872) 10,016,185

150 (2,267,592) 22,782,570 (1,734,058) 10,607,972

100 (1,553,049) 23,497,113 (1,148,964) 11,193,066

50 (798,206) 24,251,956 (570,850) 11,771,180

- - 25,050,162 - 12,342,030

(50) 844,918 25,895,080 563,272 12,905,302

(100) 1,740,212 26,790,374 1,118,620 13,460,650

(150) 2,689,906 27,740,068 1,665,666 14,007,696

(200) 3,698,410 28,748,572 2,220,211 14,562,241

Equity price risk 

Equity price risk arises from equity securities held for meeting the Fund’s compensation and 
pension obligations. This risk is the potential nancial loss as a result of movements in the level 
or volatility of equity prices, which a ect the value of equity and equity derivative instruments.  
The Compensation Fund has an exposure to equity price risk as a result of its investments in 
equity instruments and equity derivatives.

This is the risk that the Fund will not realise the value if its equity securities, which may impact 
the Fund’s ability to meet liabilities  The Fund manages this risk by investing in low risk/no risk 
instruments.

The Fund’s exposure to equity price risk was as follows based on fair value of the equity items:
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Compensation Pension
2016 2015 2016 2015
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

DAX 7,332,744 5,380,286 3,651,763 3,444,881

Compensation
portfolio

Pension portfolio

loss
Market value

of bonds loss
Market value

of bonds
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Spread in basis points

(20) (1,120,408) 4,302,798 (769,904) 2,966,091

(15) (840,306) 4,582,900 (577,428) 3,158,567

(10) (560,204) 4,863,002 (384,952) 3,351,043

(5) (280,102) 5,143,104 (192,476) 3,543,519

-                                            
-

5,423,206 - 3,735,995

5 280,102 5,703,308 192,476 3,928,471

10 560,204 5,983,410 384,952 4,120,948

15 840,306 6,253,512 577,429 4,313,424

20 1,120,408 6,543,613 769,904 4,505,900

36. Growing concern 

Financial risk management 

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2016, the entity had an accumulated surplus of  
R 21,758,268 and that the entity’s total assets exceed its liabilities by R 21,922,172.

The above stated amounts are after the entity has taken into account the actuarial valuation for 
outstanding claims of R12 billion and the pension actuarial adjustment of R20.7 billion.

The annual nancial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies ap-
plicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to nance future 
operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations 
and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

37. Events after the reporting date

There has been both a material and signi cant adjusting events after the reporting date. The 
Fund lost an arbitration case with the Debt Collector.

Amount
Description R'000
Payment to debt collector in lieu of lost income                                                                                                                  349,160

Vat Amount 48,882

The interest on the lost income         5,534

Legal fees                                                                                                                                            2,680

406,256 
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Total number of cases
Number of 

cases
Rand value

R’000

Cases carried forward/ Opening balance 01/04/2015 58 4,686

Registered allegations/new cases reported 89 10,502

147 15,188

Increase in estimates # 36,755

Total number of finalised cases

Cases finalised externally - -

Cases nalised internally - Prior year 45 39,536

Total Number of cases nalised (Internal and external) 45 39,536

Cases nalised - prior year 22 39,485

Cases nalised - current year 23 50

Total 45 39,536

Closing balance 31/03/2016 102 12,408

Analysis serves  as an illustration of how the actual, potential and referral to law enforcement have been 
broken down (the analysis amounts should be reconciled to the information above)

Recovered - -

Actual loss 11 39,536

Potential loss 5 2,459

Referred to law enforcement 12 2,072

Recommended to write o - -

Cases with no loss 32 -

Cases carried forward/Opening balance 01/04/2014 55 3,252

Registered allegations/new cases reported 53 3,748

108 7,000

Decrease in estimates # (716)

Finalised cases

Cases nalised internally - prior year 50 1,598

Cases nalised internally - prior year 20 1,598

Cases nalised internally - current year 30 -

Total 50 1,598

Closing balance 31/03/2015 58 4,686

Analysis serves  as an illustration of how the actual, potential and referral to law enforcement have been 
broken down (the analysis amounts should be reconciled to the information above

Actual loss 4 1,598

Referred to law enforcement 3 1,555

Cases with no loss 46 -

38. Material losses 
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39. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000 

RESTATED

During the current year (2015/2016) there was a change in the presentation of the material 
losses, whereby all  cases were based on actual losses/values to prior years wherein 
the  cases were based on estimated losses/values.  The Comparative  for the 
prior year (2014/2015) were also amended retrospectively.  The change in presentation was 
due to the  of actual loss which has been  as any amount -
culated during the investigation and recorded upon  of the investigation which has 
been transferred from the Compensation Fund’s bank account to the third party’s account with 
the intention to defraud/disadvantage the Fund.   Previously the actual loss was  as any 
amount of the  case that the Fund could not recover from the third party.  The  
cases values of prior year has been changed from R2 314 000 to R1 598 000

The new line item increase/decrease in estimates was also introduced and is based on the 
variance between actual values and estimates values on the cases  for the current year 
there was an increase in estimates of R36 755 000 (refer to note 12) and in prior year there was 
a decrease in estimates of -R716 424 

Opening Balance 32,318 15,026

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 403,808 17,292

436,126 32,318

In the prior year, the fund has incurred fruitless and wasteful expenditure during the period 
under review. A Financial Misconduct Register is in place and 71 cases have been recorded for 
investigation. A Financial Advisory Board has been established and the cases are being investi-
gated.

The massive increase in the Fruitless and wasteful expenditure was due to the payment made 
to the debt collector as per the court order for the breach of contract.

Opening Balance 1,009,566 595,467

Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 6,596 414,099

1,016,162 1,009,566

40. Irregular expenditure 

Current year 6,596 414,099

Prior years 1,009,566 595,467

1,016,162 1,009,566
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41. Taxation 

The Fund is exempted from normal income tax in terms of Section 21 of the Compensation 
for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act 1993, (Act No of 130 of 1993), as amended by 
Act 61 of 1997.

Details of irregular expenditure – current year
2016 

R’000
2015 

R’000 
RESTATED

Clearing of audit findings and compilation of Annual Financial Statements 1,648

Officials enrolled for the programme without purchase order 121

Out of scope work 165

Contract with a deregistered company: 247

Work commenced without contract in place 2,406

Transcription Services without the contract 8

Variation in excess of 15% 2,001

6,596


